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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREW|E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Mason Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to our
shareholders the audited annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2017 (the “Year”) as well as the prospects for the Group.

2017 was an iconic year for the Group. The Group recognised the
"Health + Wealth” strategic goal, implemented production and
financial integration, with the business direction of diversified
financial services going hand in hand with the “Health” business.
Following on its success in healthcare and mother-infant-child
investments, the Group devoted significant resources towards its
financial platform throughout the year 2017. With a will to create a
global platform capable of connecting capital markets around the
world and providing its clients a one-stop shop for tailor-made
wealth solutions, the Group's financial platform saw exponential
growth over the last 12 months, achieving many milestones through
strategic cooperation with, and acquisitions of asset management
companies, wealth management companies, private banks, and
securities companies.

In a bid to create a financial platform with strong product
development and distribution capabilities, the Group embarked on
an aggressive acquisition and investment strategy in the year 2017.
Our initial focus was on product distribution. We have made
significant progress in strengthening our worldwide distribution
capabilities during the second half of 2017 with the announcement
of our acquisition of Raiffeisen Privatebank Liechtenstein AG (“RPL"),
a private bank in Europe, and Harris Fraser Group Limited (“HFG
Group”), one of the historical independent financial advisor (“IFA")
networks in Asia. With both transactions expected to complete in
2018, the Group will be able to distribute products to its Asian and
European clients through a network of over 200 IFAs and relationship
managers. The Group has also expanded its in-house distribution
team significantly over the last 6 months by attracting talents from
the market. Well positioned to serve clients in all segments — from
mass affluent to high net-worth individuals — coupled with the
private bank’s deposit taking and trust function, we hope to create a
financial ecosystem that would make our financial services more
competitive.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

With our distribution network in Asia and Europe gradually taking
shape, the Group will focus on enriching its product line and
development capabilities in the coming year. Through acquisition
and organic growth, the Group aims to develop a top-class asset
management business capable of providing its clients best-of-breed
funds. The Group is actively looking into acquisition opportunities in
asset management companies around the world, including those in
Japan, Korea, Australia, and the United States. At the same time, the
Group has built a professional team of in-house fund managers with
strong track records and launched its first multi-strategy fund early
2018. It is the Group’s plan to further develop more fixed income and
structured products in the coming year and further expand its wealth
planning capabilities. To cater to the possible growth in demand for
brokerage services externally from new clients and internally from
in-house funds, significant resources were also deployed in 2017 to
enhance the infrastructure of our securities and futures brokerage
platform.

Complimentary to our financial platform is our healthcare and mother-
infant-child investments. We strongly believe that health and wealth are
two flip sides of the same coin. Since 2016, the Group has made
numerous investments in the healthcare and mom-and-baby industry,
targeting specifically first, premium healthcare services and biotech
companies with the aim to consolidate an otherwise fragmented industry
and market; and second, mother-infant-child related industries to create
an industry ecosystem that integrates upstream sourcing, midstream
processing and production, and downstream distribution and sales of
mom-and-baby related products. Over the last 12 months, the Group has
invested heavily and sponsored many successful entrepreneurs in these
sectors, including Pangenia Holdings Limited (formerly known as DiagCor
Technology Limited) (“Pangenia”), one of the largest biotechnology and
genetic diagnostic enterprise in Hong Kong; Reproductive Healthcare
Limited (“RHC"), one of the largest in vitro fertilization (“IVF") medical
clinic in Hong Kong; Alyingdao Zhuhai Business Chain Limited (“AYD"),
the largest maternal and infant products chain in Southern China; and
Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd. (“Blend & Pack”), Certification and
Accreditation Administration of the People’s Republic of China (“CNCA”)
approved producer and distributor of Australian milk powder and health
products. These investments allow the Group to broaden its product
range and create a health and wealth ecosystem that can satisfy the
needs of our clients from cradle-to-cradle, be it infant formulas or
diapers, or wealth and legacy planning for your next generation.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREW|E

Through facilitating interaction and promoting synergies within and
amongst our financial, healthcare, and consumer retail investments
on a group level, the Group has created self-sustainable ecosystems
that compliment each other.

Riding on the success of 2017, we enter 2018 with a clear strategy,
and are continuing with our plans to firmly establish the Group as a
leading “Health and Wealth Solution Partner”. Our people, the most
valuable asset of the Group, consistently went the extra mile
throughout 2017 to drive the Group forward and provide the best
solutions for our customers.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our appreciation for
that commitment and our gratitude for the work our employees have
done to lay a solid foundation for the Group and realize our vision.
Last but not least, we are equally grateful to our clients, business
partners and shareholders for their continuous support and
confidence in the Group.

Ko Po Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong

22 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEER R DT

ANNUAL RESULTS

During the Year, the Group reported a turnover of approximately of
HK$3,722 million and an operating income of approximately
HK$2,900 million compared with a turnover of approximately HK$454
million and an operating income of approximately HK$67 million in
2016. The Group reported a profit for the Year of approximately
HK$26 million (a loss for 2016: HK$790 million) and a loss attributable
to equity holders of the Company of HK$53 million in 2017 (2016:
HK$472 million) representing a decrease of approximately 88.8%.

The increase in operating income and the significant decrease of 10ss
were mainly attributable to the new streams of income generated
from the distribution, franchising and retailing of mother-infant-child
products, the provision of medical consultation and laboratory
services, the provisions of margin and loan financing, the provision
of securities and futures brokerage services and the provision of
financial advisory services, and the decrease in the net fair value loss
on financial assets held for trading. During the Year, a loss on
measurement of contingent consideration payable of approximately
HK$130 million was recorded by the Group’s mother-infant-child
consumer franchising and retailing business, namely AYD, which
also contributed to the loss attributable to equity holders of the
company.

The amount of loss per share for the Year was approximately HK0.13
cents (2016: approximately HK2.33 cents (restated to take into
consideration the completion of the rights issue and bonus issue in
February 2017)).

MARKET REVIEW

The growth momentum of the global economy strengthened during
2017. This was mainly driven by the increase in investment and trade
boosted by the increase in business confidence. Positive
employment figures were evidenced. There was broad base growth
witnessed across both developed and emerging countries. As
economic slack continues to diminish, central banks of developed
economies have reversed their quantitative easing policies. The US
Federal Reserve raised interest rates by 0.25% three times in 2017,
and in November 2017, the Bank of England raised interest rates by
0.25% to 0.5% for the first time in a decade.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WD

Amid strong growth of the global economy, corporations in general
also reported strong earnings results. Under this favorable
environment, major global stock markets reached record highs in
2017. The Hang Seng Index rose 36% throughout the year and
surpassed the 30,000 mark in November 2017 for the first time in 10
years, reflecting strong investor confidence and positive market
sentiment. In addition, active trading via the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect and the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect from
Mainland China was an important driving force behind the rise in the
Hong Kong stock market last year. The introduction of the Bond
Connect scheme in July 2017 was another landmark development for
Hong Kong's financial market, giving global investors the opportunity
to tap into the Chinese domestic bond market, the world’s third
largest bond market following the United States and Japan. The
scheme consolidated Hong Kong's position as a major offshore
market of foreign investment for China, while the increasingly
dynamic financial market in Hong Kong created business
opportunities for securities brokerages and margin financing
businesses.

With the improvement in citizens’ living standards, China’s
healthcare market expanded at an accelerating pace and
demonstrated tremendous growth. According to the “Health China
2020 Strategic Research Report” issued by the National Health and
Family Planning Commission, it is expected that the proportion of
health care related expenditure will account for 6.5% to 7% of GDP
by 2020. An average of more than 18 million births a year, the
increase in family disposable income and the greater emphasis on
children’s well-being will continue to act as catalysts for the mother-
infant-child healthcare market to flourish. According to the market
research published by Frost & Sullivan in November 2015 regarding
China’s mother-infant-child industry, the sales volume of China’s
mother-infant-child industry is expected to enjoy a 2-digit growth
rate and reach RMB552 billion by 2019.

Currently, the infertility rate in China ranges from 12.5% to 15%. It
has become more common for couples in China to take the initiative
to seek medical or IVF specialists assistance for infertility issues.
According to the figures published by the Council on Human
Reproductive Technology, total IVF cases in Hong Kong has grown
16.3% since 2009 and reached 5,136 cases in 2016, indicating
significant growth in demands for assisted reproductive services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEER R DT

During the Year, the property market in Hong Kong continued to rise.
In 2017, according to the Land Registry, property transactions in
Hong Kong rose 14.8% to 83,815 units. In particular, the sale of
residential units jumped 32.3% to HK$566.3 billion, with the number
of transactions increasing 12.6% to 61,591 units. The competition
among banks in the mortgage business became increasingly fierce.
With the heightened risk of potential overheating in the property
market, in May 2017 the Hong Kong Monetary Authority issued a set
of guidelines stipulating a new round of cooling measures on
mortgage loans. The risk-weight floor was raised from 15% to 25%
for new residential mortgage loans and the applicable loan-to-value
ratio cap was lowered by 10 percentage points for mortgage loans
extended to borrowers with one or more pre-existing mortgages.

Measures to curb bank lending resulted in an increase in demand for
mortgage loans from finance companies, instead of the conventional
commercial banks. According to Centaline Property Agency'’s report,
nearly 18% of mortgage loans for new flats due to be delivered in
2018 will come from finance companies, compared to 16.4% for 2017
and 11.6% for 2016. The trend of potential buyers seeking loans from
finance companies is expected to continue to gather momentum, as
buyers actively seek financing alternatives to support their property
purchases.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In July 2017, the Group re-branded its corporate identity by changing
the Company’s name from “Mason Financial Holdings Limited” to
“Mason Group Holdings Limited” to better align the Group’s
corporate and business identity with its vision to becoming a trusted
health and wealth partner. Adhering to its “Enterprise + Finance”
growth strategy, the Group expanded its financial service business,
healthcare business, mother-infant-child business and dairy products
manufacturing business during the Year. Carrying out the “Health +
Wealth" strategy, the Group focused on integrating its premium
medical and healthcare platform during the first half of 2017. By mid-
September, the Group has successfully established its mother-infant-
child ecosystem. The Group also deployed significant resources into
developing its financial platform, kick-starting several new initiatives
as well as announcing several key acquisitions, laying a strong
foundation for the development of a global health and wealth
ecosystem.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WD

The Group believes this strategy will enable the broadening of its
product range so as to create a health and wealth ecosystem that
can satisfy the needs of its clients from cradle-to-cradle, be it infant
formulas or diapers, or wealth and legacy planning for the next
generation. The Group’s healthcare, mother-infant-child and dairy
manufacturing businesses provide steady resources of capital and
client base, which subsequently support the development of the
Group's financial services business. The strategy helped the Group
to achieve an initial success by significantly reducing its net loss
during the Year.

To address the wealth arm of the “Health + Wealth” strategy, a
3-stage financial services development plan was put together in
2017, with the first stage being the establishment of a strong sales
and distribution network; second stage being the strengthening the
Group's product development capabilities; and the third stage being
the creation of a comprehensive financial ecosystem. A majority of
the first stage targets have been achieved in 2017. The Group will
continue to focus on the strengthening of its product development
capability in 2018 to create a financial ecosystem.

Through the acquisition of the HFG Group, a Hong Kong wealth
management company with long history, and RPL, a Liechtenstein-
based private bank, the Group intends to provide a wider range of
financial services, including asset management, corporate and trust
services, investment savings plans, tax planning services, life and
general insurance and MPF advisory services to a substantial and
diversified client base including corporations, financial institutions
and individuals in Hong Kong and throughout Asia reaching Greater
China, South Korea and Japan with tailor-made, niche products and
intimate services.

The Group's efforts in the healthcare sector have also begun to
prosper. Strategically formulating a premium medical and healthcare
ecosystem during the first half of 2017, the Group is bridging the gap
between its mother-infant-child consumer platform and healthcare
platform to create a “one-stop-shop” mother-infant-child products
and services line through providing RNA/DNA analytics, genetic
diagnostic services, assisted reproductive services, other high-end
medical services, as well as mother-infant-child food, apparels and
other mother care and childcare products to the clients within the
ecosystem. During the Year, it re-structured and re-branded its
molecular diagnostic operations to create a more premium brand
image, reflecting the quality of the services provided. The Group's
assisted reproductive business has also been growing steadily,
serving and caring for families producing outstanding results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEER R DT

Following the successful acquisition of Blend & Pack in September
2017, the Group made considerable progress in integrating its dairy
manufacturing business with the Group’s existing mother-infant-child
retail chain, offering a comprehensive mother-infant-child product
line, while vertically consolidating the supply chain within the Group’s
consumer platform, thus creating a self-sustainable mother-infant-
child ecosystem that exports dairy and nutritional products from
Australia to Asia, with a focus on China.

The Group’s businesses can be categorized under 3 major business
segments including financial services business, healthcare business,
and mother-infant-child consumer retail business.

Financial Services Business

The Group’s financial services business consists of financial
brokerage business and related services, financing services, trading
of investment securities, and asset and wealth management
services. The total turnover and operating income contributed by this
business segment amounted to approximately HK$1,034 million and
HK$212 million, respectively during the Year (2016: HK$430 million
and HK$43 million, respectively), accounting for approximately 27.8%
and 7.3% of the Group’s total turnover and operating income
respectively. The total loss contributed by this business segment
amounted to approximately HK$6.8 million during the Year (2016:
HK$941 million), representing 99% decrease of loss compared to last
year.

Financial Brokerage Business and related services
(Securities and Futures Brokerage Business, Corporate
Finance Services and related services)

During the Year, the Group continued to expand its presence in the
financial services sector, developing a diversified financial platform
with a differentiated range of financial products. Its securities and
futures brokerage business, securities margin financing, leveraged
and acquisition financing, corporate finance advisory services, and
other related financial services generated an operating income of
approximately HK$79 million in 2017 (2016 HK$61 million),
representing an increase of approximately 29.5% year-on-year or
2.7% the Group's total operating income. This business segment
reported a loss for the Year of approximately HK$16.4 million (2016:
HK$219 million).
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With an aim to enhance the quality and efficiency of its brokerage
services, the Group made a number of technology upgrades,
including its IT and online trading systems, as well as its internal
control system and risk management system, leading to enhanced
business growth and reduced business risks. The securities
brokerage business generated a trading volume of approximately
HK$13.2 billion in 2017 (2016: HK$9.99 billion), representing a growth
of approximately 32%.

During the Year, the Group continued to develop its financial services
platform through successful acquisitions and investments, enabling
it to meet growing demands for comprehensive wealth management
services by not only strengthening its sales and distribution network,
but also product development capabilities. The Group has always
sought to optimize its investment portfolio and achieve better
investment returns for its clients by investing in equities, bonds,
funds, derivative instruments and other financial products, as well as
providing money lending services. The corporate finance segment
offers diversified financial advisory and financing arrangement
services to help institutional clients achieve their financial goals.

Financing Services (mortgage and loans business)
During the Year, the Group's financing services business, including
its leveraged and acquisition finance activities and mortgage loan
securitization business in Hong Kong, continued to grow and has
already generated a stable income. The total size of its loan portfolio
of mortgage and loan business reached approximately HK$1,491
million in 2017 (2016: HK$911 million), while the total operating
income and profit derived from the provision of the financing
services was approximately HK$119 million and HK$5.5 million
respectively (2016: HK$23 million and HK$9.7 million respectively).

The Group adopts a conservative strategy towards its mortgage and
loans business, ensuring that it maintains sufficient collateral and
guarantees. In respect of the mortgage loan securitization business,
the asset-backed fixed income product was consolidated into the
securitization portfolio during the Year. In view of the expected
escalation in interest rates, the Group may capitalize on this business
in the near term.
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Trading of Investments Securities

Trading in securities remains one of the Group's principal activities.
In 2017, the Hang Seng Index experienced the largest surge since
2009, with an increase of 36%, resulting in 45 of 50 HSI constituents
recording a positive return. Along with the uptrend in the stock
market, the Group’s trading of investments recorded an operating
income of approximately HK$14 million (2016: negative income of
HK$42 million) and profit of approximately HK$4 million (2016: loss of
HK$732 million). The market value of the Group’s 15 investments
securities as of 31 December 2017 was recorded at approximately
HK$364 million. The Group will continue to look for promising
investment opportunities in the stock market based on its evaluation
methods and professional judgement.

Asset and Wealth Management Related Services
Around the middle half of 2017, the Group undertook active
enhancement of its wealth management and asset management
platform, particularly, to enlarge and improve its resources of people,
technology and infrastructure so as to strengthen its distribution
network and product development capabilities. The platform will be
further enhanced in anticipation of the acquisition of the new
business of the Group e.g. the HFG Group and RPL (details of which
are set out below under the paragraphs headed “Material
Acquisitions and Disposals”) which, upon completion, is expected to
create a significantly larger and wider customer base as well as the
supporting sales and distribution network for the wealth
management platform. In addition, a hedge fund structure was set
up and the Group's first fund, a multi-strategy fund was introduced
to the market for subscription in November 2017 targeting financial
institutions and professional investors to broaden the Group’s
product development capabilities.
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Healthcare Business (Medical and laboratory
services)

The Group has made multiple investments in the businesses relating
to mother-infant-child healthcare, to develop its healthcare platform.
The healthcare business generated an operating income of
approximately HK$143 million (2016: HK$24 million), accounting for
approximately 4.9% of the Group’s total operating income. Its
healthcare business generated a profit of approximately HK$42
million in 2017 (2016: HK$6 million). The increase was as a result of
the completion of the acquisitions of two renowned and profitable
specialist medical services and biotechnology companies, Pangenia,
which runs Hong Kong's largest gene laboratory, and Reproductive
HealthCare Limited (“RHC"). The acquisition of RHC was completed
at the end of 2016, hence the operating income of only the last
quarter of 2016 was consolidated, as compared to a full
consolidation of results for 2017.

RHC is a recognized IVF service provider with 2 IVF clinics and 2
laboratories supported by 8 specialists RHC serviced 988 out of 5,136
IVF cases, with market share of 19% in 2016. External factors such as
the implementation of the “two-child policy”, strong demand for egg-
freezing services, and deteriorating reproductive capabilities,
coupled with Hong Kong's strategic location and high standards of
medical services have created good market potential for IVF services
in Hong Kong. RHC generated an operating income of approximately
HK$143 million (2016: HK$24 million) and a profit of HK$36 million
(2016: HKS$6 million) for the Year. It contributed a profit of
approximately HK$17.8 million to the equity holders of the Company
after deducting the share of non-controlling interest for the Year.

In March 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of 42.9% interest
in Pangenia, which employs more than 80 bio-scientists. Pangenia
has serviced approximately 45,900 lab tests since the acquisition.
The Group's share of the profit of this associate company (for the
period from completion to end of the Year) was approximately HK$6
million.

Both acquisitions offered the Group with competitive edges to
capture market opportunities in the prime medical service industry
with focus on the mother-infant-child demographics. The Group
intends to consolidate Hong Kong's segmented premium medical
and healthcare industry and strengthen its market share in IVF in
Hong Kong through the promotion of medical tourism and online
specialist medical services by cooperating with travel agencies.
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Mother-infant-child Consumer Retail Business

The Group's mother-infant-child consumer retail business consists of
franchising and retailing of mother-infant-child products, and
manufacturing of infant formula and nutritional products. Through
the acquisition of AYD and Blend & Pack, the Group has established
an ecosystem that integrates upstream and downstream distribution
and sales of mother-infant-child products. The total operating
income contributed by this business segment amounted to
approximately HK$2,545 million, accounting for approximately 87.7%
of the Group's total operating income. During the Year, the mother-
infant-child consumer retail business recorded a loss of
approximately HK$5.1 million. Excluding the loss on measurement of
contingent consideration payable of approximately HK$130 million
recorded for the Year, the mother-infant-child consumer retail
business would have generated a profit of approximately HK$124.8
million to the Group.

Franchisor and Retail of mother-infant-child products
The acquisition of AYD at December of 2016 was the Group's first
important step towards establishing a mother-infant-child consumer
ecosystem. The Group’s mother-infant-child franchisor and retail
business generated an income of approximately HK$2,512 million
during the Year, representing approximately 86.6% of the Group’s
total operating income. The sales of AYD’s self-owned brands and
exclusive brands accounted for approximately HK$458 million out of
its total operating income for the Year. The Group’s mother-infant-
child franchisor and retail business generated a loss of approximately
HK$5 million. During the Year, a loss on measurement of contingent
consideration payable of approximately HK$130 million was recorded
by this business segment, namely AYD. Excluding this payable, this
business segment would have generated a profit of approximately
HK$125 million to the Group for the Year.

Established in 1998, AYD is a major mother-infant-child products
franchiser in South China, and has over 1,000 franchised and direct-
sale stores and 1,953 partnership stores in its sales network catering
for approximately 8.5 million members. AYD closely cooperates with
various renowned mother-infant-child products suppliers and has
become one of the top distributors for such suppliers over the years.
The sales of established (i.e. opened before January 2015) stores
have grown by 13% and reached RMB2.87 million during the Year. It
is expected that AYD will directly benefit from the continued growth
of China’s childcare market in the coming years, bringing stable
profits that will support the Group's development.
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Manufacture of infant formula and nutritional products
The Group completed the acquisition of Blend & Pack, a well-
established Australian infant formula manufacturer in September
2017, to strengthen the Group’s strategy of creating a mother-infant-
child ecosystem in Asia. The Group aims to build a vertically
integrated supply and distribution value chain that exports Australian
high quality dairy and nutritional products to the Chinese market, by
combining manufacturing, logistics, distribution, and retail operations
all under one single platform. The Group's dairy products business
generated an operating income of approximately HK$33 million and
a profit of approximately HK$0.2 million from the period from the
completion of the acquisition in September 2017 to the end of the
Year. Blend & Pack produced 5.42 million cans of milk powder during
the period of 1 July 2016 and 30 June 2017. Blend & Pack is one of
Australia’s infant formula manufacturers that hold an accreditation
provided by the CNCA. Such accreditation allows for the production
of infant formula for the purpose of exporting to the Chinese market.
The Group expects Blend & Pack to generate great level of synergies
through being a major producer and distributor of high quality dairy
and nutritional products, capitalizing and leveraging on the sharp
growth of China’s infant formula market arising from the “two-child
policy” and other growth factors.

PROSPECTS

2017 was an active year for Hong Kong's stock market, setting
several new records in terms of market capitalization, number of
new listings and trading volumes. The Group expects such
momentum to continue. In February 2018, The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) released a consultation
paper on a listing regime for companies from emerging and
innovative sectors, setting proposals to allow the listing of a broader
range of companies on the main board of the Stock Exchange. The
Group expects that the proposed amendments to the listing rules will
attract a number of eligible innovative companies with weighted
voting rights structure and a large number of bio-tech companies to
be listed in Hong Kong. However, the Group remains cautiously
optimistic about the global market environment due to the potential
uptrend of US treasury yields. In addition, upon the approval of
“southbound trading” of the Bond Connect scheme, the Group
expects the bond market to enjoy added benefits through the mutual
access arrangement in respect of trading, custody and settlement.
Meanwhile, China will continue to be a major source of capital as a
result of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect, which will drive the Hong Kong stock
market forward.
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During the 19th National Congress of the Communist Party of China,
the Chinese central government emphasized the importance of
implementing the “Healthy China” initiative, which will likely result in
an increasing effort by the government to improve the country’s
national health policy and to enhance its healthcare services for
citizens. The state will also work to ensure that the newly
implemented “two-child policy” seamlessly integrates with relevant
economic and social policies. According to government statistics, a
total of 17.23 million children were born in China in 2017, and the
government predicts that the full effect of the policy will emerge in
2018, leading to a stable growth in birth rates. The Group foresees
these new initiatives and rules to have positive impacts on its
healthcare/medical sector, and its mother-infant-child consumer
platform.

To seize opportunities and respond to possible challenges that may
arise, the Group will continue to promote its “Enterprise + Finance”
strategy in the coming year. The Group is planning to broaden its
channel of financing to improve its capital and debt structure, as well
as to fine tune its business model so that both business streams
complements each other. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
enhance its medical and mother-infant-child segments through
organic growth and further acquisitions.

In terms of the financial sector, the Group will respond to the
increasing demand for diversified and cross-border wealth
management services from high net worth and sophisticated
investors by enriching its variety of financial solutions while looking
for potential acquisition targets in different regions that will benefit
the development of the Group and create synergistic value. These
potential acquisition targets include asset management firms, wealth
management firms, investment banks and securities houses, which
can enable the Group to consummate its financial ecosystem,
offering custody, deposit and financial products of various types to
customers. Upon successful acquisition of RPL, the Group will utilize
RPL's deposit and custody capabilities to enhance the Group’s
customer loyalty, while strengthening its distribution channels for
various financial products. The Group’s goal is to establish a
multinational financial platform with world-wide asset allocation
capabilities that is capable of serving high net worth individuals
globally.
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The Group believes the aforementioned strategies will allow for
organic growth and provide the Group with steady capital inflow and
solid client base arising from healthcare and mother-infant-child
consumer sectors, which will subsequently support the rapid
development of the Group's financial services business.

The Group expects its healthcare and mother-infant-child consumer
sectors to be a major contributor of revenue in the future. Riding on
its cutting-edge RNA & DNA analytical technologies, as well as its
well-advanced assisted reproduction technology, the Group will
continue to serve and care for the Hong Kong market while exploring
China and overseas opportunities arising from the growing affluence
and size of the middle class population and China’s “two-child
policy”. In light of the rising demands for medical and mother-infant-
child products in the mainland China, the Group will strengthen its
products offered through Blend & Pack by bringing more Australian
made mother-infant-child products and services to China, while
looking for suitable expansion and acquisition opportunities in both
the healthcare and mother-infant-child industries

Furthermore, the Group intends to grow internationally. The Group
will assess potential acquisition targets that are tied to China’s “One
Belt One Road” initiative in the financial, healthcare and medical
sectors. The Group endeavors to establish an ecosystem where the
financial, healthcare and mother-infant-child consumer sectors can

complement and benefit each other.

The Group witnessed much progress with its “Enterprise + Finance”
strategy in 2017. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to stride
ahead with this strategy while maintaining high standards of
corporate governance so as to become an all-rounded “Health and
Wealth Solutions Partner” for its clients globally and to provide solid
results for the Group’s shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total equity amounted to
approximately HK$6,493 million (including non-controlling interests
of approximately HK$422 million), representing an increase of 83%
when compared with approximately HK$3,553 million as at 31
December 2016. The Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$3,219 million, including bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$1,759 million as at 31 December 2017, compared with
approximately HK$1,773 million, including bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$651 million as at 31 December 2016. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had borrowings of HK$321 million (31
December 2016: HK$320 million) and therefore maintained a zero net
gearing ratio (31 December 2016: zero) as computed on the basis of
net borrowings to total equity, and with a current ratio of four times
(31 December 2016: two times).

During the Year, the Group entered into 28 (2016: Nil) loan
agreements with third-party lenders and banks. As at 31 December
2017, the Group had outstanding secured bank loans, unsecured
bank loans and unsecured loans amounting to HK$85 million, HK$36
million and HK$179 million respectively (31 December 2016: Nil).
Bank and other borrowings of HK$189 million and HK$111 million
were denominated in RMB and Hong Kong Dollars respectively, in
which HK$251 million were at fixed interest rate and the rest
balances were either at variable rates or non-interest bearing with a
range from 0% to 18% per annum. All bank and other borrowings are
repayable in 2018. Furthermore, there were two outstanding
unsecured bonds with principal amounts of HK$10 million each,
which were issued in 2014 to two third-party investors. The bonds
interest rates were both 5% per annum payable annually in arrears
and will mature in 2021.

During the Year, a subsidiary of the Group entered into an loan
agreement with Pangenia, pursuant to which Pangenia granted an
unsecured loan of HK$20,000,000 to the Group, for a period of 6
months from date of drawdown with interest rate of 3.5% per
annum. The loan was drawdown in September 2017 and
subsequently settled in March 2018.

B % B B8

RBEERELER
R-ZZE—+tF+=-A=+—0 AEEZAER
#) 5 6,493,000,000% 7T ( B ¥E IE #2 A% 4E 25 4
422,000,000/ 7T) BT —"F+ZHA=+—
H #73,553,000,000 7 T 15 hn83% M =T —+ 4
TZA=+—"B AEBZFRBDEENA
3,219,000,000% T(BIFEHRTHEHR KRR £ L
1,759,000000% L) MR ZFE—~"FE+= A
=+—HB#%51,773,000,00055 7T (B IR 1T & 4
K354 #7651,000,0007C) c R=ZT—tF+=
A=+—8  REEHB{EE 321,000,000 7T (=
T—XRF+=A=+—H :320,000000%5T)
HWIZEE FREAEE L XA ENFELRAE
hEAT(ZE—R"E+ZA=+—HA:ZF) M
B ERAAME(ZE—ARF+ZA=+—08:
218F) °

RAFER  AEEEE=HEH RRITFIZH
BE(ZZ—AF: B EFBE N T —tF
TZA=+—B  AEENKREEFERRITE
FEEFRTEIREERERD R A
85,000,000 7T  36,000,0003% 7T K 179,000,000
BL(ZE—AF+ZA=1+—8 &) - R1TK
H & & 189,000,000 7T & 111,000,000 7T 7
BIAARE & TEHE - HA 251,000,000 8 0i%
EEFEGE - REIRFEFESTEE - FF
ENTEE18E - FTARTREMEEAR-F
—N\FEE - [ AARAMBER T —MF
MR 4 5 = 5 IR E & TR A £ %8 /& 10,000,000
Bz REREEIFES - EFFHEGASE
BUHESBEFHAIN  WHER = —FH/H-

RAFE - AREERE AR R RERTY 8
EXtE Bt FInERmASEEELE —%
20,000,000 T EIE IR EK - BIEM A MER
XA FRERE3S% - ZEEREH IR
T—tFAARBEEBER-T—/\F=AE
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In November 2016, the Company issued two unsecured fixed coupon
notes due 2017 with principal amounts of HK$100 million and HK$200
million to two third-party investors. Both notes carried interest of 8%
per annum. These bonds were redeemed in February 2017 upon
their maturity.

During the Year, the Company issued 22,124,799,450 shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.13 pursuant to rights issue (“Rights
Issue”) and 4,056,213,232 new shares pursuant to a bonus issue
(“Bonus Issue”), which raised the equity capital in sum of HK$2,840
million. Completion of the Rights Issue and Bonus Issue took place in
February 2017.

Treasury Policies

Having considered the Group’s current cash and cash equivalents,
bank and other borrowings, and banking facilities, the management
believes that the Group's financial resources are sufficient for its
day-to-day operations. The Group did not use financial instruments
for financial hedging purposes during the Year. The Group’s business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and Australian dollars. Fluctuations in
the Renminbi and, to a lesser extent, the Australian dollars may have
an impact on the Group’s results and net asset value as the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group's treasury policy stipulates managing foreign
currency exposure only when the potential financial impact is
material to the Group. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange position and, if necessary, utilize hedging tools, if available,
to manage its foreign currency exposure.

Guarantees

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has provided guarantees in
favour of banks and financial institutions, in respect of facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries, amounting to HK$109 million (31
December 2016: Nil). Of these facilities, a total of HK$85 million (31
December 2016: Nil) has been utilized.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group provided a guarantee in respect
of a loan granted to a third party individual with the principal amount
of RMB51 million (equivalent to HK$57 million) (31 December 2016:
Nil) for a loan guarantee fee income of HK$1.3 million (2016: Nil)
recognised in the profit or loss.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has issued a financial
guarantee in respect of a loan granted to a third party individual with
principal amount of RMB51 million (equivalent to HK$57 million)
(2016: Nil) to a third party. The management does not consider it is
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under this
guarantee. The maximum liability of the Group at the end of the
reporting period under this guarantee of RMB53 million (equivalent
to HK$59 million) (2016: Nil), representing the outstanding amount of
the loan and interest payable to the third party as at the end of the
reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank deposits, inventories and
trade receivables of HK$58 million, HK$51 million and HK$51 million
respectively were pledged to certain banks to secure loan facilities
amounting to HK$97 million and bills payables (31 December 2016:
Bank deposits of HK$23 million was pledged to a bank for bills
payables). Loan facilities amounting to HK$85 million were utilized as
at the end of the Year (31 December 2016: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group remains cautious about the trading performance of its
portfolio of securities. With volatile global financial markets during
the Year, the Group made stock investments to capture trading
profits. The Group will also leverage the Group’s healthcare and
consumer eco-system to identify securities investment opportunities
with the aim of not just benefiting the Group as a result of its stock
performance but also creating synergetic value by the investee
companies. A net fair value gain recognized for the Group's financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss amounted to approximately
HK$75.9 million during the Year. The Group held a few listed
investments as set out below:
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RBEHR  AEECHR —BHE=FEABER
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57,000,000 87) (ZE—RF : H)A—BFE=H
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RTHHEABERARE53000,00075T (HHER
59,000,00087T) (ZE—/RE : &) - B #wE H
RENZE=ZFTHOREEERRFL
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RZB—tF+-A=+—H AEERTHF
H o FERE 5 EIFRIASD B /358,000,000 7T -
51,000,000 T 5 51,000,0007% 7L 2 K30 F & T
#R17 - £/ 97,000,000 B TERBE &8 R EN
REZER(ZF-AFTZA=+—H  &/17
73 323,000,000 8 7T B 3L FE A IR T 9R1T) ©
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List of significant stocks in terms of market value R=-ZE—+tH&+=-A=+—HHTEL

as at 31 December 2017 BEINITERES X

Percentage to
total assets
Name of stock Number of Proportion of  Investment Market value of
listed on shares held  shares held cost value the Group
Stock Exchange/ as at asat as at as at asat
overseas stock Stock Brief description of 31December 31December 31December 31December 31 December
exchange Code the business 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
RERFT/ R EREN RZB-tF& RIE-tF RIZ-tf RIB-tF R-B-tF
BNRER S R +=ZA=t-H t+=A=+-B t=A=t+-B +=A=t-H +=A=+-H
rthzRHEE FERGHE  FHRALH ZRERK ZhE EN ]
EEAR
2B

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER THET
Kong SunHoldings 295 Investment in and operation 101,880,213 0.68% 122,684 31,583 0.41%

Limited of photovoltaic power
TIWERERAR plants, properties

investment, manufacturing
and sale of life-like plants.
KRB EERE
FHERE B
RBEHEEY

Hengtou Securities 1476 Provision of financial 40,376,000 8.96% 161,996 117,898 1.51%
Co., Limited products & services to
— H Shares corporations, financial
BRESRR institutions, government
BRAE—HE entities & individuals,
through brokerage &
wealth management,
investment management,
proprietary trading &
investment banking
business.
BREERMEEE
REER  FHE
RS RBERT
E3i ol
SRR R
ERREARY
SRERRES -
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List of significant stocks in terms of market value
as at 31 December 2017 (continued)

Name of stock
listed on

Stock Exchange/
overseas stock
exchange

Stock
Code
3
%4

B/
BHNEFR A
EazRfn £

QTechnology (Group) 1478
Company Limited
FHEER (5E)
BRAR
Sheng Ye Capital 8469
Limited
BREERERAA
Wattle Health WHA
Australia Limited (Australian
Stock
Exchange)
WHA
(RMEH
RBH)

R-Z—tHF+-A=+—HBRmEL
EROMNETERRIIR#E)

Percentage to
total assets
Number of Proportion of  Investment Market value of
shares held  shares held cost value the Group
as at as at as at as at as at
Brief description of 31December 31 December 31December 31December 31 December
the business 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
EBEN AZE-tF RIE-tF RIB-tF RIB-tF “E—tF
t=A=t-8 t=A=t-A +=A=+-B +=A=t-8 t=A=t-A
FisRGHE ARG LA ZREMA 2 e EAEE
EEAE
ZBEDL
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx
Engagement in the design, 382,000 0.03% 4,642 4,202 0.05%
research, development,
manufacture and sales of
camera modules.
e kst Hx -
BE - RER
HERGIRAE
Provision of factoring services, 28,600,000 3.86% 57,797 199,342 2.56%
including the provision of
financing services (secured
by accounts receivable) to
factoring customers and
the accounts receivable
management Services.
RURERS - 2
ARER PR
B IR (AR
fEER) RIEWERR
B MR o
Provision of developing, 236,429 0.16% 827 2,639 0.03%
sourcing and marketing
high quality Australian
made consumer food
products
REFE  RER
BEEERMNEE
HEERMRER
23

BEEBERERAT /| 2017 FERE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

—E-RE+ZA=+—HRTERE
BEoMEERRIIE

List of significant stocks in terms of market value
as at 31 December 2016

Name of stock
listed on
Stock Exchange

Kong Sun Holdings 295
Limited
TLZRERAR

Hengtou Securities 1476
Co., Limited
— H Shares
EfESBRAF
—HK

24

Number of ~ Proportion of

S el shares held

as at asat

Brief description of 31December 31 December
the business

E31)

+;H£ -
P IR )

Investment in and operation
of photovoltaic power
plants, properties
investment, manufacturing
and sale of life-like plants.

HRBIEERE -
FHERE  BE
REEREREY

101,880,213 0.68%

Provision of financial
products & services to
corporations, financial
institutions, government
entities & individuals,
through brokerage &
wealth management,
investment management,
proprietary trading &
investment banking
business.

ARSI EER
REER  RBiE
RS RIRBRT
EBmiE
SRR R
ERREARY
SRERRES -

40,376,000 8.96%
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Investment
cost

asat

31 December

HK$'000
TR

122,684

161,99

Market
value
as at

31 December

HK$'000
TAL

34,639

181,692

Percentage to
total assets
value of

the Group
asat

31 December

A

i

0.69%

3.60%
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List of significant stocks in terms of marketvalue =—T—XE+=-A=+—HRTELE
as at 31 December 2016 (continued) BIoMEERENR &)

Percentage to

total assets

Number of  Proportion of Investment Market value of

shares held shares held cost value the Group

Name of stock asat as at asat as at asat

listed on Brief description of 31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December
Stock Exchange the business 2016

EA1)

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TBT

China Huarong Asset 2799 Provision of financial asset 2,523,000 0.01% 7875 7,039 0.14%
Management management in China,
Co,, Ltd. including distressed asset
FEREREEER management, financial
B BRAR services and asset
management and
investment.
RAERENBEE
ER(BEIREAE
EIE) - 2BRBN
REEEBRRE -
Harbin Bank Co., 6138 Provision of deposit services, 120,403,000 3.98% 385,568 275,723 547%
Limited — loan services and payment
H Shares and settlement services,
BRERTRN as well as other approved
BRAF —HE business.
RUFHRS - EX
RERARREE
FRE% - AR Et
SRR -
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Significant stocks gains/(losses) for the year BE-S—t+tH&+-BA=+—HILEE
ended 31 December 2017 BEERZEWZE(BR)
Realised gains/ Unrealised gains/ Dividend
(losses) for the (losses) for the received for the
Name of stock listed on year ended year ended year ended
Stock Exchange Stock Code 31 December 2017 31 December 2017 31 December 2017
RERFETH 2 RS BE-Z2—t#% BE-Z—tF BE-E2—tH§
RiEMH +ZA=t-H +=HA=+-H +=A=+-H
LEEZESE LEEZRER LEEZ
Wi/ (BR) W/ (E8) ERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR
Kong Sun Holdings Limited 295 - (3,056) -
TILERBRAR

Hengtou Securities Co., Limited
—H shares 1476 - (63,794) -
BREFROEBAT —HR

China Huarong Asset Management
Co., Ltd. 2799 1,256 - -
TREREEEERNBRAF

Harbin Bank Co., Ltd. 6138 11,007 - -
BRERERITRN BRAF

Sheng Ye Capital Limited 8469 - 141,545 -
BREETBERRAA
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== == 2A 13 A
B EEE nq-nﬁ &JJ *ﬁ'
Significant stocks gains/(losses) for the year BE-S—X<E+-BA=+—RHILLEE
ended 31 December 2016 BEERZEWZE (BR)
Realised gains/ Unrealised gains/ Dividend
(losses) for the (losses) for the received for the
year ended year ended year ended
Name of stock listed on Stock Exchange Stock Code 31 December 2016 31 December 2016 31 December 2016
B R BT £ 2 B B BRI H5R BEZZT—F BEZZ—F BE-_Z—%F
+-A=t+-8 +=RA=+-8
HEEZRE HEEZ
Wiz ( B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET ;
HengTen Networks Group Limited 136 (7,728) - -
BEAESEER AT
Kong Sun Holdings Limited 295 - (30,564) -
TIERER AR

Evergrande Health Industry Group
Limited 708 (20,864) = =
BARREXEEERAF

Carnival Group International Holdings
Limited 996 (12,592) - -
FEERREREBRAA

China Smarter Energy Group Holdings
Limited 1004 (7,073) - -
HEEEREERRERAF

C C Land Holdings Limited 1224 (15,793) - 6,380
R EMIZERER AR

Hengtou Securities Co., Limited - H
Shares 1476 - (109,683) 4,230
BREFRHERAR] —HR

China Huarong Asset Management
Co., Limited 2799 230 (844) -
TEEREEERRNERDA

Harbin Bank Co., Limited 6138 - (6,909) 13,559
BRERERITRNERAF

27

BEEBERERAT /| 2017 FERE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WD

USE OF PROCEEDS

Reference is made to the announcement, the circular and the
prospectus issued by the Company on 22 September 2016, 28
October 2016, 13 December 2016, 13 January 2017, 7 February 2017
and 8 September 2017 respectively, the interim report 2017 and
Annual Report 2016, in relation to, among other things, the rights
issue on the basis of six (6) rights shares for every five (5) shares
(“Rights Issue”). The Company (i) allotted and issued 22,124,799,450
ordinary shares to the qualifying shareholders on the register as at
12 January 2017 at a subscription price of HK$0.13 per share for a
total consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$2,876
million and (ii) allotted and issued 4,056,213,232 new shares (“Bonus
Shares”) of the Company to qualifying shareholders, on the basis of
one Bonus Share for every ten shares held by the qualifying
shareholders at the date for determining their entitlements (the
“Bonus Issue”). Both the Rights Issue and Bonus Issue were
completed in February 2017. Following completion, the Company
changed the original intended use of proceeds. Further details of the
change are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 8
September 2017.
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The Group has applied the net proceeds from the Rights Issue of

approximately HK$2,840,000,000 , in the following manners:

Planned use of
proceeds as stated
in the prospectus
as subsequently
revised as disclosed
in the announcement
dated 8 September
2017
MR SR R EE R
m-—E—tFHhANA
A& ATk BAE HER

ALBE R T 577 8 A AR P18 SR F 8 A
2,840,000,000 7T :

Actual use of proceeds of rights issue
WEIERFAEREZERRAR

HAEREANEERR

(i) Financial services
B ARTS

(@ [T upgrade
BIAR

HK$40,000,000
40,000,000 7T

(b)  Online service projects HK$600,000
B LIRISIER 600,000/8 7T
() MSL (brokerage & margin HK$260,000,000 to
financing) HK$310,000,000
MSL (B4 RfTERE) 260,000,000 L&

310,000,000 % 7T

The Group used approximately HK$18,000,000 to upgrade
its IT system, stocks and futures internet trading platform
(including approximately HK$5.54 million for upgrading its
stocks trading platform) and back-end support system for
the online service projects related to (i)(b) below) and
internal control system.

REE 418,000,000 TARAREEMRZS - RE
REEEEER 5T A (BIE5,540,000% T - ARFA
BREBABTXOO)EERBEENERERGTaRER
XIER RS RNEDESI R4

The Group used approximately HK$187,000 for the rental
of a new branch office in Sheung Shui and HK$388,000 for
other information cost and subscription expenses for the
online trading platform. Please see note 1.

REE# 187,000 TARI A EKFHHARNES R
388,000 B TR HEMEMK ARG LR ST EMHTE
FEFE o FELHMEE -

The total facilities granted to margin clients was about
HK$1,000,000,000 and the Group has utilized
approximately HK$149,000,000 as facilities granted for
existing and new margin clients.
BYHFREF LSS 1,000,000,00047T - A%E
B % 49149,000,000 8 TRER THEBERFINATRES,H
BE o
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(d)

Leverage and acquisition
financing
EIROERE

Planned use of
proceeds as stated

in the prospectus

as subsequently
revised as disclosed
in the announcement

dated 8 September
2017
SR R R
m-—ZE—tFhANAH
A& AT B S ET
MBS RENREAE

HK$500,000,000
500,000,000 7T
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Actual use of proceeds of rights issue
W B LRt Fr S mIE 2 B A&

The Group granted three loans in the aggregate amount
of approximately HK$501,000,000 as follows:
ANE B 4255 47501,000,000 8 TR =E2E5 0T ¢

—  HK$158,000,000, being the loan to Cosmicfield
Investments Limited in connection with the
acquisition of AYD, at an interest of 8% per annum.
The loan was drawn down on 28 February 2017.

— 158,000,000 7T - BN 3t U 3 & &2 & (7 Cosmicfield
Investments Limited &% i 6 8. /2 8% BV E K  EFRN
—E—tF-HA/\HEmR -

—  HK$148,000,000, being a loan granted to an
independent third party borrower at an interest of
10% per annum. The loan was drawn down on 3
July 2017.

— 148,000,000 T - IR FTEBIE=ZFERAFER
BI0%—EER - ZEERN_T—+F+H=
B -

—  HK$135,000,000, being a loan granted to an
independent third party borrower at an interest of
10% per annum. The loan was drawn down on 9
October 2017.

— 1350000007 BIRTEBUYE=ZFERAFER
RI0%H—FER - ZEZEFR_Z—+FTAN
HiZER o
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Planned use of
proceeds as stated

in the prospectus

as subsequently
revised as disclosed
in the announcement

dated 8 September
2017 Actual use of proceeds of rights issue
MBERMARER WAMRBRFAEREZERAZ
m=—=F—-+tF£AANH
WA & TR B AE S ET
MBS RENRE AE

— HK$60,000,000, being a loan granted to an
independent third party borrower at an interest of
9% per annum. The loan was drawn down on 27
February 2018.

— 60,000,000 BT —EBBIE=FBRAK
BN BREMERI%TE - ZERERZZT—N\F
ZAZ+EHREER -

(i) Asset management, wealth
management and lending
business
BEEE MEEBRRERES

(@)  Private bank and wealth HK$700,000,000  The Group applied approximately HK$520,000,000 towards
management 700,000,000%7C  the payment of part of the total consideration for the
FLARITRABERE acquisition of RPL as disclosed in the announcement of

the Company dated 19 October 2017 plus expenses
amounting to approximately HK$17,000,000 up to March
2018. Please see note 2.

BEEZZ-N\F=H  ~&EEER#Z 520,000,000 TH
SABERPLH B ARE(MARRARHRR T —+F
TATABEONRAEMEE) - KX &R 17,000,000%
7T o w2 B2

(b)  Mason Resources Finance HK$140,000,000 The Group granted a loan in the amount of
Limited 140,000,000/ C  HK$145,000,000 to an independent third party borrower
ERERMBEBER AR at an interest of 11% per annum. The loan was drawn

down on 4 September 2017.
£ B35 — 28 5 £0145,000,000 7 T I B FRUAFE B 1% 1%
TEBUEZFERA  c BERRZZT—+FNANBRR -
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Planned use of
proceeds as stated
in the prospectus

as subsequently
revised as disclosed
in the announcement

dated 8 September
2017
SR R R
m-—ZE—tFhANAH
A& AT B S ET
MBS RENREAE

Actual use of proceeds of rights issue
W B LRt Fr S mIE 2 B A&

(i)  Direct investment (Note 3)

BEERE (HiE3)
Mother-infant-child business HK$461,000,000
IS R0 461,000,000/ 7T
Laboratory testing services HK$200,000,000
EREAIRS 200,000,000 77T
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The Group applied approximately HK$457,000,000 towards
the payment of the total consideration for the acquisition
of AYD as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 30 December 2016 plus expenses amounting to
approximately HK$4,000,000.

RNEBE A 457,000,000 TR SHEZZEENL
REWARARBHAZSE—R"ET+_A=THNRERH
58 ) RS2 1 & F#4,000,00058 7T °

The Group applied approximately HK$200,000,000 as part
payment of the consideration for the acquisition of certain
interest in a molecular diagnostics business as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 30
December 2016.

AN 5= 18 49 200,000,000 74 7T R AT Uk B 0 F 22 T 3 75
ETEZNDOARE(WARTBHAE-Z— F+=A
=THENAEMHEE) -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Planned use of
proceeds as stated

in the prospectus

as subsequently
revised as disclosed
in the announcement

dated 8 September
2017

R EE AR R
m=—=F—-+tF£AANH
WA & TR B AE S ET

Actual use of proceeds of rights issue
W B AL Rt Fr S mIE 2 B &

HAREREANEERE

HK$488,400,000
488,400,000 7T

Manufacture of infant formula and
nutritional products business and
other potential projects

BEBNBR AN REEEMFER
K E A EEIE B

Notes:

1. The Group had resolved to shelve the Online Services Project for the 1.
time being and apply the remaining proceeds of approximately
HK$149.4 million of the Net Proceeds originally allocated for the
development of the Online Services Project for the Blend & Pack
Acquisition as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8

September 2017.

2. The Group intends to apply approximately HK$116.5 million and 2.
acquisition expenses for the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital in a wealth management group, HFG Group as disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 7 September 2017.

The Group applied the remaining proceeds from direct
investment and the proceeds from shelving the Online
Services Project mentioned in note 1 of approximately
HK$488 million as payment of the consideration for the
acquisition of Blend & Pack (the consideration for the
acquisition of 75% of the issued capital of Blend & Pack is
AUD75 million, which is equivalent to approximately
HK$479 million) as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 4 July 2017 and 27 September 2017 plus
expenses amounting to approximately HK$2,000,000. The
consideration is subject to further adjustment due to the
disputed items in the completion accounts.
REBBAEERER TABRBERMF1MANBEES
F AR IE B & A7 1S 3K 7B 49488,000,0007% 7T 1E & W &
Blend & Pack (Y Blend & Pack 75% B # /TR ARHI K (B
/575,000,0008 7T (A& 7 47479,000,000 7% 7)) (R B3k
(ARBIERAE_E—+FtAWARZZE—+FNA
ZTHEBEMAERNEE) RINEAZ 2,000,000 T
AEkiRE HREFRER  REFRFE—FSHE -

MieE

FEFERRERBER LRBAL - LHRE
BRMEG LIRBEE 2SR EO R
15 3RIE 49 149,400,000 7 7T FA 72 Blend & Pack Ui
FE MARFBEHMA-—T—LFAANBNR
EATHEE o

A 52 @ B A 49 116,500,000 78 7T A A 32 - U B
— B EEREENBEREENS IO BHITRA
MUEER S - MARBRERA-Z—+FNAL
BRRAEMEE -
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38 The Group applied the remaining proceeds from direct investment and
the proceeds from shelving the Online Services Project mentioned in
note 1 of approximately HK$488 million as payment of the
consideration for the acquisition of Blend & Pack (the consideration for
the acquisition of 75% of the issued capital of Blend & Pack is AUD75
million, which is equivalent to approximately HK$479 million) as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2017 and
27 September 2017 plus expenses amounting to approximately
HK$2,000,000. The consideration is subject to further adjustment due
to the disputed items in the completion accounts.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 31 March 2017, the Group completed its acquisition of a 42.9%
interest in Pangenia and its subsidiaries (“Pangenia Group”). The
principal activities of Pangenia Group are trading of laboratory
products and provision of laboratory testing related business. The
consideration for the acquisition was HK$214 million. The acquisition
will allow the Group to further capture growth opportunities in the
life sciences and premium medical service industry in Hong Kong
and create synergy with the IVF services.

On 4 July 2017, GL Food Holdings Pte. Ltd (“Mason Food"), the
Company, Wattle Health Australia Limited (“Wattle Health”), Blend
& Pack and the vendors (comprising eight individuals and a family
trust, who together beneficially own 100% of Blend & Pack) entered
into an agreement in relation to the acquisition of 75% and 5% of the
issued capital of Blend & Pack by Mason Food and Wattle Health,
respectively. Blend & Pack is one of Australian infant formula
manufacturers accredited by CNCA to produce infant formula (baby,
follow-on and toddler formula) for export to the Chinese market and
is one of the major independent infant formula manufacturers in
Australia. The aggregate consideration for the acquisition of 80% of
the issued capital of Blend & Pack was AUD81,896,676, payable by
the purchasers in cash pro-rata to their respective proportion. The
consideration is subject to further adjustment due to disputed items
in the completion accounts and has not been confirmed at the date
of this announcement. Completion of the acquisition took place on
27 September 2017.
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On 7 September 2017, Mason Strategic Investment Company Limited
purchased sale shares in the HFG Group and Harris Fraser (Hong
Kong) Limited for a consideration of HK$116,500,000, which totalled
the entire issued share capital of both entities. With the acquisition,
the HFG Group'’s competitive advantages in wealth management
services will strengthen the Group’s wealth management business. It
is expected that the acquisition will benefit the overall development
of the Group. Through the HFG Group’s IFA network, the Group will
be able to rapidly expand its wealth management customer base.
The acquisition has not completed as at the date of this annual
report.

On 18 October 2017, Mason Strategic Investment Company Limited
entered into a agreement in relation to the acquisition of RPL for a
consideration of CHF58,600,000 (subject to adjustments). Through
the acquisition, the Group intends to leverage on the target company
as the Group’s platform as its core financial practice which will
supplement the existing financial segments of the Company and
enable further cross-selling and create synergies amongst the
Group's different line of businesses. The Group will utilise this
platform to further develop its wealth management business by
offering a wide range of Asian financial products to European clients
and providing high-quality European private banking services for
high-net-worth clients in Asia Pacific. The acquisition completed on
28 March 2018.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 1,139
employees around the globe (as at 31 December 2016: 106). The
significant increase in the number of employee was primarily
attributable to the acquisition of AYD completed in December 2016.
The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees are
structured in accordance to market terms and statutory
requirements where appropriate. In addition, the Group also provides
other staff benefits such as medical insurance and mandatory
provident fund.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

»n =% — 4+ F A ALt B Mason Strategic
Investment Company Limited EEZ M EB LS
HRIZ B A R A AR E 116,500,000 78 7T &9 $5 5 I
7 BFARZMEIEENDIE ZITRA - @il
WHEEIE  ENEEEEMRETHORFES
EEBEAREEIRHER - REAREEIR AR
RASERNEEEE SRASHEENE LV
FEMAEE  NEEKERRBERAEIBMESE -
RAFRBE - WEERTHK o

RZ=ZZ—+F+ A+ /\H  Mason Strategic
Investment Company Limited &t LA & 58,600,000
I AER (AT T %) I RPLET M 1% © BB UK
BEE AEEEFNABRAARERASENZ
DERBETE AREARTNRESMSH
EEAXIL A B #E— PR NEEREAEETR
EBREPRIERRME - KEBBHELTAE
A BN R P IR MR 2 TR & Bl EE A [A) 2 K 3
ESFERFREEEBMNLARITREN S
XN E—SREREVEEEER - WEEERZ
Z—NF=ZA=-F+N\BZEK -

& 18 & % A B 3R
RZZE—+F+A=1+—0 AEEEE2IRE
BEANGFEA119ZET(R=2—X<F+=A4
=+—H:106%) - BEABABEINEZERA
RZE—RET_ATKUEELE - X5EEB
THFNBUR RFBTRET B IEME REATE B K
(WER)EE - BN AEBMTREERERRE R
BFEAEEEHEME TER -

RERE
EFETRBENBE_S—tF+-A=1—
BLEFEZ RERE (ZT—AF &) -
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Mr. Ko Po Ming, has over 34 years of extensive experience in
finance and investment banking business. Mr. Ko has been appointed
as the Joint Chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 8 September 2016. Mr.
Ko has been re-designated as the Chairman of the Board and
appointed as the chairman of nomination committee on 2 January
2018. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company,
including being appointed as the chairman of board member of RPL
and the chairman of Shining Time Holdings Limited. Mr. Ko is mainly
responsible for the formulation of development strategies of the
Group, as well as giving guidance to the Group’s project planning,
financing and investment. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ko was
the chief executive officer of CMBC International Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd. From
October 2012 to March 2015, Mr. Ko was a consultant of China
Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch and was
responsible for the setting up of CMBC International Holdings
Limited. Prior to cofounding Goldbond Capital Holdings Limited
(“GCHL") in 2003, he was the head of asian corporate finance of BNP
Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited where he was in charge of the
corporate finance business in Asia. GCHL was acquired by Piper
Jaffray Companies (NYSE: PJC) in 2007 and its name was changed to
Piper Jaffray Asia Holdings Limited (“PJA"). Since then and until
September 2012, Mr. Ko served as the chief executive officer of PJA.
Mr. Ko graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1982
with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.

Mr. Ko had acted as independent non-executive directors of a
number of Hong Kong and Mainland China listed companies,
including (i) Nanjing Panda Electronics Company Limited (stock code:
553.hk) between 1996 and 1999; (ii) Dazhong Transport (Group)
Company Limited (SHA: 600611) between 1997 and 2003; (i) Chinese
Energy Holdings Limited (formerly known as iMerchants Limited
(stock code: 8009.hk)) between 2000 and 2004; and (iv) Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection Group Company Limited (stock code: 1065.
hk) between 2003 and 2009. Mr. Ko was a Listing Committee member
of the Main Board and Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange between May 2003 and June 2009. He was a non-executive
director of Petro-king Qilfield Services Ltd. (stock code: 2178.hk)
between February 2013 and March 2018. Mr. Ko is a hon-executive
director of Globe Metals and Mining Limited (ASX: GBE). He is also a
trustee of St. Johnsbury Academy, an independent day and boarding
secondary school. St. Johnsbury Academy is a non-profit corporation
under section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in the United
States of America.
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Mr. Chang Tat Joel, has been appointed as an executive Director,
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company, the Chief
Operating Officer and the Authorised Representative of the Company
since 8 September 2016. Mr. Chang has considerable strategic,
financial and advisory experience. Mr. Chang responsible for leading
the overall strategic development and the general operation of the
Group. He was the co-founder of AID Partners Capital Limited (“AID")
and a founder of Genius Link Assets Management Limited, both are
private equity investment companies. He was an executive director
and investment committee member of AID, and is responsible for its
strategic investment planning. Prior to founding AID, he was the chief
investment officer of Investec Asia Limited, a managing director of
China Everbright Capital Limited and an executive director of BNP
Prime Peregrine Capital Limited. He is also a member of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants (“ASCPA") and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Monash
University in 1990.

Mr. Chang is an independent non-executive director of OCI
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 329.hk), and an
independent non-executive director of Hailiang International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2336.hk). He was formerly an independent non-
executive director of AID Partners Technology Holdings Limited
(stock Code: 8088.hk), and he was a non-executive director of Kong
Sun Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 295.hk). He was an independent
director of China Mobile Games and Entertainment Group Limited, a
company previously listed on NASDAQ.

EERLE AT R"FHLANBREZTA
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Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company since 26 April 2016. Ms. Lui is also the chief
financial officer of the Group. Ms. Lui has also been appointed as the
Company Secretary and an Authorised Representative of the
Company since 8 September 2016. She is responsible for overall
financial strategies, planning and management of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Lui had over 4 years of experience in audits in
an international certified public accounting firms, over 16 years of
experience in accounts, finance, operations, compliance and
company secretarial duties in a listed securities and futures
brokerage firm and over 7 years of experience in company
secretarial duties in a listed electroplating equipment designing and
manufacturing company in Hong Kong. She has over 20 years of
experience in finance, accounting, and management and company
secretary as well as extensive experience in management and
operations of brokerage business. Ms. Lui graduated with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Accounting from Azusa Pacific University in
California, USA and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is
currently a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the HKICPA.

Ms. Fu Yau Ching Shirley, is the chief human resources officer of
the Group and has been appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 24 May 2017. She is responsible for the overall human
resources strategies, planning and management of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, she has over 20 years of experience in the field
of Human Resources Management. Ms. Fu is mainly responsible for
the human resources and related functions of the Group. She
worked in the human resources management of multinational
organizations like JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN AMRO Bank N.V. and UBS AG before
joining the Company. She is a seasoned Human Resource
professional responsible for managing the full spectrum of the
Human Resources functions. Ms. Fu graduated with a Bachelor of
Business degree in Human Resources Management from La Trobe
University in Australia. She is currently an Associate Member of Hong
Kong Institution of Human Resource Management.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director, a member of the remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company since 5 October 2016. Ms. Hui has more
than 19 years' experience in property development, and more than
11 years’ experience in management and strategic planning of listed
companies. Ms. Hui obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Commerce
majoring in Accounting from Macquarie University in Australia in
1997. She is also a Certified Practising Accountant in Australia. Ms.
Hui is currently a member of Beijing Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a council
member of Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and a
member of the Youth Committee of All-China Federation of Returned
Overseas Chinese. Ms. Hui is currently the vice chairman of Shanghai
Shimao Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(SHA: 600823), and the vice chairman and president of Shimao
International Holdings Limited. Ms. Hui is also the sole director of
Future Achiever Limited ("FAL") and the daughter of Mr. Hui Wing
Mau, the beneficial owner of FAL which is a substantial shareholder
of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, and is the
chairman of the audit committee and member of each of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
since July 2017. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of solid experiences in
business management, auditing, accounting and internal control. He
was employed as vice president by Wang Kei Yip Development Ltd
from 4 July 2017 to 3 October 2017 and be appointed as the chief
financial controller of Wang Kei Yip Development Ltd since 4 October
2017. He was the investment director of FD(H) Investments Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Regenerative Medicine
International Limited (stock code: 8158.hk). He was also the vice
president and the chief investment officer of Legend Strategy
International Holdings Group Company Limited (stock code: 1355.hk).
He was also the vice president and the company secretary of Austar
Lifesciences Limited (stock code: 6118.hk). Mr. Chen was an
independent non-executive director of Huarong International
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as Simsen International
Corporation Limited, stock code: 993.hk) and was a non-executive
director of KOALA Financial Group Limited (formerly known as
Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited, stock code: 8226.hk).
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Mr. Chen had worked for KPMG from September 2004 to March 2011
and his last position was an audit senior manager. He had also
worked for Ernst & Young from January 2000 to September 2002 and
his last position was a senior auditor. Mr. Chen graduated from City
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy in
June 1996. Mr. Chen has been a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”") since 2001 and a fellow
member of the HKICPA since 2016.

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen Alice, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, and the chairman of the remuneration
committee and member of each of the audit committee and the
nomination committee of the Company with effect from 24 May
2017. Ms. Kan has over 25 years of experience in corporate finance
and is well experienced in both the equity and debt markets. She has
held various senior positions in international and local banks and
financial institutions and is currently a controlling shareholder and
the Managing Director of Asia Investment Management Limited, a
licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO"). Ms. Kan is a fellow member of the ACCA, the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and ASCPA, and an associate member of the
HKICPA. She is also a licensed responsible officer under the SFO. She
currently also serves as independent non-executive director for
several listed companies on the Stock Exchange, namely, China
Energine International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 1185.hk),
Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited (stock code: 120.hk),
Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited (stock code: 78.hk),
Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited (stock
code: 697.hk) and Shimao Property Holdings Limited (stock code:
813.hk) and is also an independent director of AVIC International
Maritime Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Catalist Board of
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
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Mr. Tian Ren Can, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company, and is the member of each of
the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company since 26 April 2016. Mr. Tian has more
than 20 years of working experience in the field of finance. Mr. Tian
is currently the chief executive officer of UBP Investments
Management (Shanghai) Limited. He was the chief executive officer
of HFT Investments Management Co., Ltd. from April 2003 to March
2015. Before that, Mr. Tian worked for multi-national financial
institutes. Mr. Tian obtained a Master Degree of Business
Administration awarded jointly by Manchester Business School and
University of Wales of the United Kingdom. He obtained a Master
Degree in Political Sciences International Relations from Shanghai
International Studies University. Mr. Tian graduated from Shanghai
Foreign Languages Institute with a Bachelor Degree in French
Language and French Literature. Mr. Tian was an executive director
of Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2277.hk).
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The board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) submits
their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2017 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a health and wealth solutions service conglomerate. It
was principally engaged in (i) the provision of comprehensive
financial services in Hong Kong, including dealing in securities,
commodities broking, provision of securities margin financing,
provision of investment and corporate finance advisory services,
investment in securities, asset management, money lending and
investment holding; (i) the provision of medical and laboratory
services; (iii) franchiser and retail of mother-infant-child products;
and (iv) manufacture of infant formula and nutrition products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The discussion and analysis of the Group’s business review and
prospects can be found in the “Chairman Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this annual
report while details of the principal activities and other particulars of
the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are set
out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The name of the Company was changed to “Mason Group Holdings
Limited”. The proposed change of company name was passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held on
26 June 2017 and have become effective on 14 July 2017.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 120 to 121.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
Year (2016: Nil).
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity from pages 124 to 125 of the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$159,000 (2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on pages 275 and
276.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

BORROWING AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in notes 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE BONDS
Details of corporate bonds of the Group are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) adopted
on 22 May 2012 (the “Adoption Date") which will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date to give
the participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company and to encourage them to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole. Under the Scheme, the
Directors may at their discretion grant options to participants
including all directors and employees of the Group and any other
persons including consultants, advisors, agents, customers,
suppliers, service provider, contractor, business partner or
connected person of the Group or its associates to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at any point in time, without prior approval
from the shareholders of the Company. The limit may be refreshed
at any time provided that the new limit must not be in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting. However, the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other scheme of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month period
unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an
option.
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Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the
option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the date of the grant of the options; (i) the average closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the options; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share option was
granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and there is no outstanding
share option under the Scheme. The total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme as at 31 December 2017 was
4,461,834,555 shares which represented 10% of the ordinary shares
of the Company in issue at 31 December 2017.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OF SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Ccompany.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ko Po Ming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chang Tat Joel

Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela

Ms. Fu Yau Ching, Shirley (appointed with effect from 24 May 2017)
Mr. Man Wai Chuen (resigned with effect from 24 May 2017)
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Non-executive Directors
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol
Mr. Tong Tang Joseph (resigned with effect from 2 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tian Ren Can

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (appointed with effect from 24 May 2017)
Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund (appointed with effect from 3 July 2017)
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin (resigned with effect from 24 May 2017)

Mr. Yuen Kwok On (resigned with effect from 3 July 2017)

Pursuant to Article 115 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Ko Po Ming,
Mr. Chang Tat Joel and Ms. Hui Mei Mei Carol will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at that meeting.

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meetings of the Company in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company. The Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting do not
have service contracts which are not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of the independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of Directors who have served on the Boards of the
Company’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out below:

Andrew James Grant
Chan Kok Chung Johnny
Chan Wing Kei

Chang Kit Sun Lama
Chang Tat Joel

Chong Ka Yee

Fok Kenny Tsz Chun
Gao Qin

Hui Ho Lok

Ho Wing Chiu, Clement
Ho Chan Yuk Lin Anita
Kevin Andre Phillip

Ko Po Ming

Lai Kwai Chun

Lam Po Mui

Lam Sze Wai Derek
Lau Cheuk Hang
Lazarus Karasawvidis
Lee Tai Hay Dominic
Leung Chun Keung
Leung Po Tin

Lin John Sian-zu

Liu Jianyi

Lui Choi Yiu Angela
Natisha Nicole Ramroop
Phey Sai Lin Serene
Tseung Yuk Hei Kenneth
Wwong Chi Kin Kenny
Wong Chi Kit Nelson
Wong Shun Yun

wong Wei Man

Ye Faduan

Yeung Shu Fan

Yip Shing Fung

Yuen Chi Fung
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2017:

ESRROREBRO ZEZRAR

\ZE—+F+_A=1+—H ARFAESFE&
THRABRAABINHBREE (ERRBFH
A 1601 ([ 5% 5 RENE RG] EXVER) Z i D
AR D REHFPHE BN AR RIREES
REEEAIZEI2GFE 2 B MR £z
TAESRETESFRH2EESFA([EESFA])
BESITHE AR R R 2w AR T -

X o o
==

NSEEEN

REZF—LF+-A=+—8  RADALER
RABBIRA 2 AT

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued share

ordinary capital of the

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held Company

B AT B BT

EEnH B RERME FrisEERHE REZBNEDL

Ko Po Ming Interest of controlled corporation 632,104,000 1.42%
St SEHEEER (Note ff7E 1)

Chang Tat Joel Interest of controlled corporation 483,370,800 1.08%
BPEE ZEHEAE R (Note f1 7 2)

Notes: Hfat -

1. These shares are held by Jovial Epoch Holdings Limited, a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Ko Po Ming, who is an executive director, the
chief executive officer and the chairman of the Company.

2. These shares are held by True Elite Limited, a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Chang Tat Joel who is an executive director and the chief
operating officer of the Company.

At no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its
holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.

No contract of significance has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder
as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the (“Listing Rules”) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

EXREN

REFEE RSN AFEEEMERE - SERQAE
HERAREMEARREITIMARBEER
HAERSRREAEARGECERGH -

RAFER  RNABHEEMHEQRLEEE
BHMARSGMBRARES EMARNT ETR
R D) B SRE 2 AR B I B R R 2 SR IR AT
TERAH o

FERRREMATRRG RARRKRG
ZEBRKR

As at 31 December 2017, the following interests and short positions WZZ—+F+-ZA=+—H AR FAREES
of 5% or more of the issued share capital and underlying shares of N B & 15015 336 16FF17 B 2 #Ex & i M 8R A
the Company (other than a Director or chief executive of the TAT(XHARBEEHGZSHTHRAB)HAR
Company) were recorded in the register of interests required to be A T2 BHITIRA RIAMEAR D 5% IA F 7 R
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: KR
Long position %r
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Nature of interest shares held shareholding
ERME FrisEERHE REMAOB D
Hui Wing Mau Interest of controlled corporation 7,656,916,000 17.16%
BT ERTX Stk E RS (Note fifa# 1)
Chen Sung-Tse Interest of controlled corporation 3,976,495,616 8.91%
BRIDZE SAEHEEER (Note f/7E 2)
Notes: Btat -

1. These shares are held as at 116,460,000 shares by Shiying Finance
Limited and as to 7,540,456,000 shares by Future Achiever Limited,
both of which are wholly-owned by Mr. Hui Wing Mau.

2. These shares are held by Investment Talent Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Chen Sung-Tse.

1. % & W9 A 116,460,000 f% K2 7,540,456,000 A% 53
Al At 2 B £€ B BR A &) & Future Achiever Limited
BE  MEZMRARBFEKTEEEES -

2. 2 % % B Investment Talent Limited (— & g1 B
NBEERERANRENIZE ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
this report, had registered an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong to all staff. Under the MPF Scheme, employer and
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income. Details of the retirement
scheme are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

the largest supplier 16%
the largest suppliers in aggregate 43%
Sales

the largest customer 2%
the largest customers in aggregate 5%

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the Year did a Director,
an associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company owned more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital) had any interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers.
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DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACT

All the executive directors and independent non-executive directors
of the Company has respectively entered into a service contract/
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years unless
terminated by not less than three month'’s notice in writing served by
wither party on the other. The non-executive director of the
Company has entered into a service contract with the Company with
no specific terms unless terminated by not less than three month’s
notice in writing served by wither party on the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Details of the capital commitments are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company, or the laws of Hong Kong, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 December 2017, the market capitalization of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$5,755,766,577
based on the total number of 44,618,345,557 issued shares of the
Company and the closing price of HK$0.129 per shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities (to
the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover for legal
actions brought against the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS
During the Year and up to the date of this report, save for Ms. Kan
Lai Kuen Alice’s interest in Asia Investment Management Limited,
which is licensed corporation under the SFO, no Director of the
Company is considered to have an interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that such competition, if any, is neither
significant nor material to the Group as a whole. Furthermore Ms.
Kan Lai Kuen Alice will fulfill her fiduciary duties in order to ensure
that she will act in the best interest of the Shareholders and the
Ccompany as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable of
carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the businesses of such companies.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout this
year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT
No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or
existed during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions of the Group (which did not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) for the Year are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements contained
herein.

Details of the related party transactions (which did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
discloseable under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) for the Year are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, a continuing connected transaction undertaken by
the Group is included in the transactions set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to the requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, details of this transaction are
described as follows:

On 30 December 2016, Pioneer Leap Investment Limited (“Pioneer
Leap”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an
investment agreement with Golden Metro Investments Limited
("Golden Metro”), Cosmicfield Investments Limited (“Cosmicfield”),
Shining Time Holdings Limited (“Shining Time") and their
management team (comprising Mr. Yip Shing Fung, Mr. Ye Faduan,
Mr. Ye Fachao, Mr. Lin Han and Ms. Gao Qin) in relation to the
acquisition of 55% equity interest in Shining Time, a company
engaging in the mother-infant children products business in Southern
China. At the same time, Pioneer Leap entered into a loan agreement
with Cosmicfield, to extend part of the proceeds of the investment in
a form of a loan of RMB140,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$157,696,000) (the “Loan”) to Cosmicfield and Cosmicfield, in turn
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lends to Golden Metro and the burden of the Loan between
Cosmicfield and Golden Metro shall simultaneously be novated to
Shining Time and be settled by the allotment and issuance of certain
Shining Time's shares to Cosmicfield by Shining Time. Upon
completion of the acquisition on 31 December 2016, the provision of
the Loan by Pioneer Leap to Cosmicfield (a substantial shareholder
of Shining Time) under the loan agreement constituted a financial
assistance and hence, a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Since (i) each of Cosmicfield and
Golden Metro was regarded as a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level; (i) the Board (including all the independent
non-executive directors) had approved the transaction and (iii) the
independent non-executive directors have confirmed that the
transaction was fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole, the transaction contemplated under the loan agreement was
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but was
exempted from circular, independent financial advice and
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of
the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transaction in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements and have confirmed that the continuing
connected transaction has been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial
terms; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and are in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

For the propose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of
the Company has provided a letter to the Board, confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the
continuing connected transaction abovementioned:

(i) was not approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;
(i) was not in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if
the transaction involve provision of goods and services by the

Group; and

(i) was not entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transaction.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Rules and Regulations Risk

During the Year, the Group’s businesses were operating principally in
the mainland China, Hong Kong and Australia and were hence,
subjected to different governmental rules and regulations in these
jurisdictions such as Companies Ordinances/Acts, taxation laws,
environmental protection regulations, employment regulations, etc.
The holding company of the Group, Mason Group Holdings Limited is
listed on the Stock Exchange and is therefore subjected to the Listing
Rules. The Group's primary operation i.e. the financial services
business operates in a highly regulated environment in Hong Kong
and is governed by SFO. Furthermore, the Group has recently
expanded its business into new industries e.g. IVF and diagnostics,
retail and food processing and are hence, required to comply with
various industry standards and regulations e.g. food safety, waste
disposal, etc. More recently, the Group acquired a milk powder
business in Australia which holds various certifications including a
CNCA accreditation to export milk powder for sale in China, which
requires compliance with CNCA standards.

Failure to comply with the applicable rules and regulations may
result in fines, restrictions on the Group’s activities or even
suspension or revocation of some or all of the Group’s business
licences/certifications. The Group faces increasing compliance
burden with its rapid expansion into new business areas, new
jurisdictions and the ever-changing SFO and Listing Rules.
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Business Transformation Risk

The Group’s rapid expansionary plans through mergers and
acquisitions carry the risk of its investments not achieving the
Group's strategic business objectives or failing to maintain or make
profit. Failure to properly transform its new investments will affect
the Group's reputation and its shareholders’ confidence and in the
more severe cases, the long term sustainability of the Group will be
impacted and/or the exit strategies for the investments will be
delayed or aborted.

Even though, the Group has established a direct investments
department to carry out detailed analysis, valuation assessments
and due diligence review work for each of its managers and
acquisition projects and its Investment Committee will carry out in-
depth review and approval process for each of its investment
decisions, the Group is still subject to the risk of its investments not
performing according to its expectations as this is an inherent risk.
Going forward, the Group intends to continue to strengthen its
investment review and approval processes including setting specific
milestones and measurable KPIs for its new investments.

Liquidity Risk

As the Group’s businesses and in particular, its financial services
business are highly capital intensive, any cash shortfalls of the Group
may lead to inadequacy of funds to support its daily operations and
in severe cases, bankruptcy, business expansion failures,
reputational damages and stakeholders’ suits. In order to finance the
growth of its financial services business and its current strategic
expansions, the Group requires substantial funding resources and a
strong capital base. The Group has set up a treasury department to
manage its relationship with banks and other financial institutions
and to closely monitor the Group’s cash flow adequacy, together
with the Finance department. To build up its capital base, the
Company completed a Rights Issue exercise last year which
successfully raised approximately HK$2,840 million. In future, the
Group will consider other fund raising activities, such as share
placements, the issuance of convertible bonds, etc. to strengthen
the Group's capital base and bank/other borrowings and trade
facilities to improve its financial position.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's businesses for the Year were mainly located in the
mainland China, Hong Kong and Australia. All domestic sales are
transacted in the local currencies, whereas export sales and imports
of raw materials, machineries and equipment are transacted in
foreign currencies. Previously, the Group is mainly affected by RMB
fluctuations, however, for the last quarter of the Year, the Group was
further exposed to the Australian dollar exchange rate fluctuations
due to its acquisition of an Australian milk powder company. Going
forward, the Group will be further exposed to Swiss Franc and other
European currencies as a result of its proposed acquisition of a
private bank in Liechtenstein.

Failure to properly manage and mitigate the Group’s foreign
exchange exposure will affect the Group's cash flow and possibly its
ability to complete its new acquisitions. The depreciation of RMB or
AUD against HKD will adversely affect the consolidated results of the
Group, as the results of the subsidiaries in mainland China and
Australia will be reduced on translation from RMB or AUD to HKD,
which is the Group'’s reporting currency. The Group intends to closely
monitor its foreign exchange exposure and would consider hedging
and/or other foreign currency instruments. Please refer to note 41 to
the financial statements of the annual report for the foreign currency
risk exposures as at the end of the reporting period.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group had total bank borrowings of HK$120.82 million as at 31
December 2017 and none of which were at floating rate which
subjects the Group to interest rate risk. In the decision making for
the selection of sources of capital, the Group will consider various
factors such as rate of return expected by shareholders, current and
expected interest rates in the market and debt-to-equity ratio of the
Group. Please refer to note 41 to the financial statement of the
annual report for the interest rate risk exposures as at 31 December
2017.
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Systems vulnerability and Cyber-attacks

The operation of the Group's business and in particular, its financial
services sector is highly dependent on its trading, data management
and information technology platform. The information technology
landscape of the Group may be vulnerable to a number of
disruptions such as computer viruses and/or cyber-attacks. Such
disruptions may cause data corruption and interruptions, delay or
cessation in the services provided through the Group’s securities
trading facilities, exposure of sensitive/confidential information to
unauthorized persons, non-compliance with data privacy
requirements, stolen intellectual properties, etc. During the Year, the
Group has made substantial investment in improving its IT
Infrastructure including enhancing its IT security and protection
against cyber-attacks. The Group has successfully implemented a
world class 2-tier firewall and solutions against Distributed Denial of
Service (DDoS) attacks, etc. The Group also carries out regular
reviews on its compliance with Securities and Futures Commission
("SFC") cyber security regulations and provides training on cyber
security to its relevant staff. At the same time, the Group's business
continuity plan is being revised to meet new needs resulting from its
rapid expansion and growth.

Competitive Risk

In the financial services sector, the Group faces intense competition
from the new e-services that have emerged as a result of the
advancement in technology in recent years. The growing acceptance
of retail investors to these new emerging e-brokerage services have
also added to the competition faced by the traditional brokerage
companies. Together, these factors have put immense pressure on
traditional securities brokerage companies including the Group, to
lower their commission rates.

The healthcare services industry is highly competitive. Even though
the Group's healthcare services are highly specialized and skill-
intensive i.e. in the provision of IVF treatments which caters mainly
to a niche market segment and the Group strives to be the leading
provider in this premium medical services segment, it still faces
competition from other healthcare services providers and specialist
healthcare solutions providers in Hong Kong.
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Although the global milk powder market demand is on an upward
growth trend, globally prices of dairy products have stabilised and
stringent regulations regarding the production of milk powder in
many countries especially China, pose a challenge to milk
manufacturers. China imports large quantities of infant milk powder
each year to satisfy local demand for overseas products, especially
infant formula. Hence, the Chinese government is increasingly
reinforcing regulations on the infant milk powder industry. Though
the new The China Food and Drug Administration (“CFDA")
regulatory changes which limit the number of CNCA registered
brands will create much opportunity for the Group, competition
amongst the accredited manufacturers are expected to intensify.

Financial Services Business Related Risks

Market Risk

The Group's financial services related businesses are exposed to
market risk. The Hong Kong financial markets are directly affected
by, among others, the global and local political, economic and social
environments. Historically, global and local financial markets have
fluctuated considerably over time. Any sudden downturn in these
financial markets may adversely affect the market sentiment in
general. Further description of the market performance can be found
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this report
under the paragraph entitled “Market Review".

Settlement Risk

There is a minimum margin deposit for opening of each futures
contract as required by The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
(the “Futures Exchange”). Clients of the Group are required to
maintain such minimum margin deposit with the Group at all times
as determined by the Futures Exchange. Although the Group is
entitled to close out the futures contract when a client is unable to
meet his/her margin call, in the event that the client’s margin deposit
with the Group is unable to cover the loss arising from closing out of
the futures contract, the Group would be exposed to the risk of not
being able to recover such shortfall from the clients, particularly in
times of a volatile market.
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Credit Risk

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations may be
affected by its ability to maintain and/or improve the quality of its
loan portfolio. Deterioration in the quality of its loan portfolio may
occur due to the general slowdown of the economy. Moreover,
actual or perceived deterioration of the creditworthiness of
borrowers, a slowdown of the economic growth, reduced profitability
or cash flows of corporate borrowers or the unemployment of
individual borrowers, may cause our asset quality to deteriorate and
may lead to significant increases in its allowance for impairment
losses on loans.

The Group normally obtains liquid securities and/or cash deposits as
collateral for providing margin financing to its clients. Margin loans
provided to a client is required to be maintained within the margin
value of his pledged securities, which means the aggregate market
value of his pledged securities after discounts. In the event that a
client is unable to meet a margin call, the Group is entitled to dispose
of the pledged securities and use the sale proceeds thereof towards
repayment of the loan. However, there is a risk that the amount
recovered from the disposal of the pledged securities may fall short
of the outstanding amount of the loan. The Group would suffer a loss
if it fails to recover the shortfall from its clients.

Mother-Infant-Child Business Related Risks

The Group's mother-infant-child business carried out under AYD, is
dependent on a number of factors such as the popularity and
strength of the brands it carries, the company’s relationship with the
brand owners, seasonality of sales and its ability to expand its
franchise network.

AYD sources products directly from brand owners and the success
of its business is highly dependent on its ability to source the right
brands and the popularity and strength of these brands which are in
turn dependent on customers’ perception of them. AYD has little or
no control over the design, production and marketing of these
products which are carried out directly by the brand owners. Both
AYD and the brand owners need to respond promptly to the
customers’ evolving demands and preferences. Further, AYD needs
to maintain good relationship with the brand owners in order to
secure competitive terms from them and to maintain a stable
product range in its stores.

60

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017

FERR
AEBRFERFRAEREAEENENEY
EHPBRRAREEEE - AEENEFRESE
EARE RSB EMEE © I - BRAN
FEERAEHREE KEEENE  2FER
AR BMENHISZSHRSRER D HBAETKA
RE-GUREHHEEELGREE - 5IREFA
EE R EHREEM -

s

AEEREFPRUFERENBFESSNES
FR/BREFRERERR RETEFPHNF
REFARAEMRESNRESEEBIDEA
ESFTREOMEAE)AE - HEPEIER
RESER  AEEBERLECHERESLER
HEMSRREEER - A - HECEIPFS
P e IR AT BB RN E AR - AREEEE
AEFEENRZE  BIMREREEX -

BREXBHAEER

AEEEERE THRNSREXEERANSE
FE - PInEREOMNEBERES  RAIRGKIE
FiB AR - SHENTEM R BRI E
B -

ERESHEBNMEMEARBER  HEXBHOK
FEBERBEYEERMENE N RZEmEDN
MBEEEE S - MEXBURRNEEE B ZFmE
BIRA - ZFEMARAT - EERZHBmERT
BEAEEET EESHENEFHIRIEERA
BAES RREEMEMEADTREEEE
P REr B LB RAR AT o tHh -
MEFTA AMRFFRIFEIER - HREREHRENH
BRERFEREHTOREERBE -

T EE B = =
2 Z a4 H‘E-EEEIEI



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEE®RE

AYD's sales are, similar to other retail businesses, affected by
seasonal factors and consumer consumption patterns, most of
which are outside AYD's control. In China the peak sales periods are
from Chinese New Year to June and from September to October.
During these periods, higher sales are typically recorded and the
sales during the non-peak periods are generally lower.

AYD has over 1,000 franchise stores as at 31 December 2017 and it
intends to expand the geographical coverage of its franchise network
to deepen its market penetration and accessibility to consumers in
China. However, its ability to expand its franchise network is
dependent on its ability to find suitable franchisees, ability to
negotiate with the franchisees for competitive franchisee fees and its
ability to manage the relationship with its franchisees going forward.
Furthermore, AYD needs to continue to monitor trends in the
distribution channels for mother-infant-child products in China and
to make necessary changes in order to optimize its distribution
network. If it is unable to maintain and further develop its distribution
network, its business will be adversely affected.

Healthcare Business Related Risks

The Group’s specialized healthcare business is highly dependent on
its ability to attract and retain highly skilled and professional medical
specialists and embryologists in Hong Kong. Competition for such
skilled and qualified professionals in Hong Kong is intense as the
pool of these specialist doctors and registered medical practitioners
is small. The Group's business and future growth expansion are
dependent on its ability to attract and retain these specialists and
medical practitioners to practice at its medical centers.

The IVF and diagnostics business is also dependent on the
technological advancements in the IVF treatment techniques,
diagnostics techniques and the costs of embracing these
advancements will have an impact the Group’s future performance
and competitiveness.

The success of the Group’s healthcare services is also dependent to
a significant extent on the recognition of it brand and reputation as a
reliable and results-proven service provider. Any complaint or
litigation from its clients in relation to the quality or result of services
provided by the Group may adversely affect its reputation or image
and may in turn, materially and adversely affect the demand for its
services.
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Infant Milk Powder Business Related Risks

The Group’s infant milk powder business, Blend & Pack faces a
number of key risks and uncertainties such as the market demand
for its customers’ brands of milk powder products, consumers’
perception of and confidence in Australian manufacturers, changes
in the China Government’s regulations governing the infant milk
powder industry and the reliability of its highly automated
manufacturing process. As Blend & Pack intends to focus on export
sales to the China market, any changes to the regulatory in China
and in particular the CNCA/CFDA regulations and any failure by its
three selected brands to be commercially viable or to penetrate the
Chinese market will affect the company’s financial performance.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate and effective risk management
procedures that enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control
the various types of risk it faces. This is supplemented by active
management involvement and effective internal controls in the best
interests of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of events after the reporting period are set on in note 47 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited has been appointed as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 4 January 2018. A resolution will be proposed at the next
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mason Group Holdings Limited

Ko Po Ming
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

22 March 2018
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The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance to protect and enhance the benefits of
shareholders. The Board and senior management of the Company
recognized their responsibility to maintain the interest of the
shareholders and to enhance their value. The Board also believes a
deliberate policy of corporate governance can facilitate a company
in rapid growth under a healthy governance structure and strengthen
the confidence of shareholders and investors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and integrity, and to ensuring transparent and adequate
levels of disclosure. No corporate governance committee has been
established and the Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code") under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The
Board will continue to review and recommend such steps as
appropriate in a timely manner in order to comply with the
requirements of the CG Code.

Throughout the Year, the Company complied with all of the code
provisions set out in the CG Code, save for the deviations from code
provision A.2.1 as noted under the various sections of this report.

Under the CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ") should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Ko Po Ming
(“Mr. Ko") is the chairman of the Company and has also carried out
the responsibility of chief executive officer which constitutes a
deviation from the code provision A.2.1. Mr. Ko possesses the
essential leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. The daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive
directors. The Board considers the present structure is more suitable
for the Company because it can promote the efficient formulation
and implementation of the Company’s strategies. The current
leadership structure facilitates the execution of the business
strategies, decision-making and maximizes the effectiveness of the
Group’s operations.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all of the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the requirements as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE
Promoting good corporate governance and managing enterprise-
wide risk is a priority of the Company. The Company convinced that
corporate governance and Directors and Officers Liability Insurance
(the "D&O Insurance”) complement each other. The Company has
arranged appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against directors and
senior management arising out from corporate activities. The D&O
Insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The board composition of the Company has more than one-third are
Independent Non-executive Director, the Board comprises eight
members as at the date of this report and their positions are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ko Po Ming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chang Tat Joel

Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela

Ms. Fu Yau Ching, Shirley

Non-executive Director
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

Mr. Tian Ren Can
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Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall business strategy,
management planning and control of the Company. The
management is responsible for day-to-day management of the
Group. The Directors have accumulated sufficient and valuable
experience to carry out their duties in an efficient and effective
manner. Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the
Directors are set out in the section headed "Biographies of Directors”
on pages 36 to 41 of this annual report. None of the members of the
Board have, in any respect, relation to each other in any
circumstances.

There is no relationship among members of the Board.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with an induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/she has
adequate understanding of the businesses and operations of the
Group. The Directors are also kept informed on a timely basis of their
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules, as well as
other relevant statutory or regulatory requirements. The Company
also encourages its Directors to participate in other continuous
professional development programmes for directors.

All of the Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for the
best interests of the Company and the shareholders of the Company.
Other than the statutory duties imposed on each of them, all of the
Directors have exercised due care in monitoring the corporate
matters of the Company and have provided grave concern, sufficient
time and attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the
Group.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The chairman is responsible for the management of the Board and
external corporate communication whereas the chief executive is
responsible for the day-to-day operation, among other matters, the
implementation of overall strategy and direction set by the Board.

Mr. Ko is the chairman of the Company and has also carried out the
responsibility of chief executive officer. Mr. Ko possesses the
essential leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board considers the
present structure is more suitable for the Company because it can
promote the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Company’s strategies. The current leadership structure facilitates the
execution of the business strategies, decision-making and maximizes
the effectiveness of the Group’s operations. The Board recognizes
that this constitutes a deviation from the code provision A.2.1.

Non-executive Director

Each of the existing independent non-executive Directors were
appointed for a specific term of 3 years and the non-executive
Director has been appointed with no specific terms of office, subject
to the provision of retirement and rotation of directors under the
Articles of Association of the Company.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors.
Two of the independent non-executive Directors have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received confirmations of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors and considers them to be independent.
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Board Composition EEg4AR

The Board has established a set of board diversity policy setting out =ZZ=EgCHlFrEEEZ bR HISESS
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board with the aims of E#Z(br H#t SRIEAEEERER N E¥
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as &4 BREKBIENASERE - EEEKE
achieving our business objectives and sustainable development. (bR ZEBEMAEE - BEETER K
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, 7l F&  XIERHBEES  Ek  FELR
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational  FrEEA -~ He - MBRBRGEH - EES BRI
background, ethnicity, professional experience, required expertise, HZTILEESKEMEK - AR A FINERE
skills, knowledge and length of service. The current Board consists of sk o

a diverse mix of Board members appropriate to the requirement of

the business of the Company.

Attendance Records o FE R0 8%
Details of the attendance of the Board members are as follows: EEERE2HEFBOT ¢

Meeting Attended/Held During the Year Ended
31 December 2017
BE-Z-tE+-A=t+-HLEEHE BTzER

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting
EEg ERZEE §FMZEE REZEES BRRAE

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Ko Po Ming SERLE 2121 NATER O NATEE  NATER 2/2
Mr. Chang Tat Joel BERLE 221 NATER 212 NATER 2/2
Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela BRI T 2121 NATER  NATER  NATER 2/2
Ms. Fu Yau Ching, Shirley BXExL 1010 NATEB  NATEER  NATER 111
Mr. Man Wai Chuen XEFRE 1111 NATER  NATER  NATER 171
Non-executive Directors FBTES

Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph EEEAE 20/21 N/A i@ N/A T 3/3 0/2
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol BT 2021 NATEE 2/2 3/3 112

Independent Non-executive B E#HTES

Directors
Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund BRERLE 717 202 NATEH 0/0 0/0
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice EBBRL 10/10 22 N/ATER 2/2 N
Mr. Tian Ren Can HC&EE 20/21 4/4 112 2/3 112
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin MR 4 91 2/2 1/2 0/1 111
Mr. Yuen Kwok On REZEE 14/14 2/2 2/2 3/3 1/2
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Save for regular board meetings held in 2017, meetings of the
Directors were held to discuss and transact other special businesses.
The Board members are provided with appropriate and sufficient
information in a timely manner to keep abreast of the Group's latest
developments. All businesses transacted at the board meetings are
properly documented and recorded.

All resolutions put forward at the general meetings of the Company
were voted by way of poll and the announcement on the poll vote
results was made by the Company after the general meetings in the
manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has arranged and funded suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director. The Company Secretarial Department of the
Company would provide relevant reading materials to the Directors
to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in the
commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forum, or
training course on relevant topics. During the year, the Directors of
the Company had provided their records of continuous professional
development to the Company. The Board has reviewed and
monitored the continuous professional development of the Directors.
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The Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed and  #i@ (A aE) U T RBERENTHEEY

refreshed by, inter alia, the following means: FIE IS Es T
Types of
Trainings
EHER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ko Po Ming SERLE A
Mr. Chang Tat Joel EEMR A A
Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela Bkt A
Ms. Fu Yau Ching, Shirley X BT A/B
Mr. Man Wai Chuen NEFEE A
Non-executive Director FPITES
Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph BEEEE A
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol Bt e A
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund PRIZERZ 4 A/B
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice B Ck e A/B
Mr. Tian Ren Can IR E A
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin RS A
Mr. Yuen Kwok On REZ LA A

A.  attending seminars/courses/conferences in person or by A %E%iLiﬂ%%LEﬂﬁﬁﬂhuﬁﬁaiﬁﬁﬂ

teleconference in relation to the responsibilities of directors’ of a listed EFEMT PEERAREESRMEMOM
company, corporate governance and regulatory updates g/ RE g%
B:  orientation of newly-appointed directors B: A¥EESMRAWHEI
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in January 2003 and written
terms of reference were formulated and were revised on 29 March
2012 and 18 December 2015 and the adopted terms of reference are
in compliance with the code provision in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee, among others, are:

Relationship with the Company’s auditor

(@)

70

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to act as the key representative for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” shall include any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should
report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed,;
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$&£h

Review of the Company'’s financial information

©)

to monitor integrity of the Company'’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them. In reviewing
these reports before submission to the Board, the Audit
Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices,

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(viy compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting;

Regarding (e) above: (i) members of the Audit Committee
should liaise with the Board and senior management and the
Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the
Company’s auditor; and (ii) the Audit Committee should
consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need
to be, reflected in the reports and accounts, it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by the
Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function and compliance function or the auditor;
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Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems

®

72

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee, or by
the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider any findings of major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and the management’s response
to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness,

to review the group'’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and the management’s response,

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;
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(n)  to review arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters and the Audit Committee is to ensure proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action,

(0) to report to the Board on the matters in these Terms of
Reference; and

(p)  to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund (chairman)
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Tian Ren Can

During the Year, the Audit Committee met four times with the
external auditor and/or representatives of the management of the
Company. The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 with the external auditors and reviewed
the Company’s unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2017. The Audit Committee also reviewed and discussed the
internal control necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. The Audit Committee submitted its
views and recommendations on the Group's financial statements to
the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was formed on 28 June 2005. The
Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee and the adopted terms of reference are in
compliance with the code provision in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee, among others,

are:

@)

/74

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives,

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;,

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;
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(h)  toensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

() when the occasion arises, to advise shareholders on how to
vote with respect to any service contracts of directors that
require shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing
Rules; and

() to do any such things to enable the Remuneration Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, one executive Director
and one non-executive Director, namely:

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (chairman)
Mr. Chang Tat Joel

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund

Mr. Tian Ren Can

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2017 to review
and assess the performance and remuneration of the directors and
to review the proposed remuneration packages of the new directors
and their terms of service, to make recommendations to the Board.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration is
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee of the Company annually.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 11 of the
consolidated financial statements.
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REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT =R E R E &M
For the Reporting Period, the remuneration of senior management is  RREHIR - SAEIEBIZEE S D O MHIR
listed as below by band: N
No. of person A
HK$10,000,000 and below 10,000,000 /8 70 & LA T~ 4
HK$10,000,001 to HK$20,000,000 10,000,001 7 7T 2 20,000,000 7% 7T 0
HK$20,000,001 to HK$30,000,000 20,000,001 7% 7t 2 30,000,000 7% 7T 0
HK$30,000,001 to HK$40,000,000 30,000,001 7 7T 2 40,000,000 /5 7T 1

The senior management are also the executive directors of the
company.

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees required to be disclosed under Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules have been set out in note 11 and note 12 respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was formed on 29 March 2012. The Company
formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee
and the adopted terms of reference are in compliance with the code
provision in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee, among others, are:

(@ to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;,

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

() to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;
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(d) toreview the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review
the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on
achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of its review
results in the Corporate Governance Report annually from year
2013 onwards;

(e)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive;
and

(f)  to consider other topics as defined by the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, one executive Director
and one non-executive Director, namely:

Mr. Ko Po Ming (chairman)
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

Mr. Tian Ren Can

The Nomination Committee held three meetings in 2017 to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive directors, to
make recommendations to the Board on the new appointments and
the reappointments of directors and to review the composition of
the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY

Directors’ and Auditor's Responsibilities for
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the Group's financial statements and believe that these
statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs
and of its results. The responsibilities of the Directors and Auditor
are set out on pages 110 to 119 of this annual report. The Board has
adopted appropriate accounting policies and made proper estimates
for the preparation of financial statements. The Directors confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief and
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cause significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The Board therefore continues to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the financial statements for the
financial year of 2017.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Mazars CPA Limited resigned as auditors of the Company with effect
from 4 January 2018 and BDO Limited (“BDQ") was appointed as
auditors of the Company on 4 January 2018 to fill the casual vacancy
S0 arising. There have been no other changes of auditors of the
Company in the past three years.

BDO is subject to reappointment as independent auditors of the
Group at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. It
is the auditors' responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those financial statements and to report their
opinion solely to the Company and for no other purpose. They do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of the independent auditors’ report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit services
performed by the external auditor. During the Year, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s auditor for the provision of
services as follows:

/8

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017

BE

ESREHOAHMBERR2EE

EEMAAAAREAEEZHBEHREK - IFEE
ZEMREAE D THRMAER 2 EHMRK
FE - BEENRBEN2ETHRAFRENOE
M9E - EXECHRAAE LS HRLRRE
MHBRED BB b - EFWER - BRFE
H—Y B EEREMA - FIERAAE - WEER
BREFEARAFECERN2ETEHRIE
MERNBEA T EERE - At EFFNARK
RAFEKEEERU_T—FHRFEZHH
K -

B M A% B ED
BEGAMEBMARARNN-_Z—\F—AN
HEHEARRIZHE  MEALERRGE
BRERAR ([ LEEE)R-_Z—\F—HHE
B &R R 7R RIAZ BR B0 DASE 7 P EE AL H R B 22
BR e RARIIZBENBE=F U EEMEE -

Y EBRRANRARRERERRBFAS LEHNE
ERAEEE T ZEE - ZBENEEHREE
ERTENER HRSUBRRERBILE
R UERARBERS - AR BIEEMARE -
BB TS B I RBEM R EN AR - HEM
Hib AT BBESAERE -

ERZESAAERINELEED 2 RRE s
R BE IR 2 A SR BRS - RAFER -
ERARAZEE N RENORBHM T



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

During the year under review, the professional fee paid/payable to
the Company’s independent auditors, Mazars CPA Limited and BDO
Limited is set out as follows:

REEFEA - Eﬁ/ﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬂﬂﬁjﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂi
BEEHAMEEMARAR LB EERES
EMEBRAERDRMBEEEHIIMT

HK$000
THAT

Audit services ZEURS

— Mazars CPA Limited — IBEEMEBBRAR 400

— BDO —YEER 3,000

Non-audit services IR ARTS

— Mazars CPA Limited — IBEEMEBBRAR 1,500
4,900

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
oversight and corporate governance roles in the Group's financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls, and
the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

The Group has defined and endorsed the risk management policy,
align risk management objectives and strategies of the organization,
ensuring necessary resources are allocated to risk management and
to assign accountabilities and responsibilities at appropriate level
within the organization. The Risk & Compliance Committee assists
the Board and the Audit Committee in the review of the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis. The directors through the Audit Committee are kept
regularly apprised of significant risks that may impact on the Group's
performance.

Appropriate policies and procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that key risks are identified, assessed and
managed within the defined risk tolerance level. Through such a
systematic approach, assets are safeguarded against improper use
or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.
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The Group’s risk governance structure adopts a “Three Lines of

Defense Model”, which entails the accountabilities and

responsibilities across the organization as depicted in the below
illustration.

Oversight: Board of Directors

BE: -E=%F

AEENEREBRBRA [ ZEHGEX] - &
HABANNBE REERATRATIUARE

80

Ownership: Executive Committee
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E—ER

Ongoing Identification,
Assessment, Monitoring and
Reporting of Risks in
Respective Areas

Plan and Implement Actions
to Manage Risks

Escalate Risks According to
the Escalation Requirements
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Risk Owners
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Periodic review on the whole
risk management process

Intermediary role for risk
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management process
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Risk &

Compliance Committee
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The executive committee comprises all executive directors of the — *

Company.
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The Group has established a risk & compliance committee, which co-
ordinates enterprise risk management activities and reviews
significant aspects of risk management for the Group, reports to the
senior management at each regularly scheduled meeting including
amongst other things, significant risks of the Group and the
appropriate mitigation and/or transfer of identified risks. The
operating units of the Group, as risk owners, identify, analyze,
prioritize and monitor their own risks, and report such risk
management activities to risk & compliance committee on a regular
basis. Proper escalation mechanism with well defined threshold and
tolerance level is communicated to risk owner.

The senior management of the Group, supported by the risk &
compliance committee and internal audit department, is responsible
for the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and for providing regular
reports to the Board and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness
of these systems.

The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the core
operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, the
respective operating units will review and assess the status of
potential risks which may impact on their ability to achieve their
business objectives. This review process includes assessment as to
whether the existing system of internal controls continues to remain
relevant, adequately addresses potential risks, and/or should be
supplemented. The results of these reviews are recorded in the
operating units risk registers for monitoring and incorporated into
the Group’s consolidated risk register for analysis of potential
strategic implications and for regular reporting to the senior
management.

During 2017, the Board has engaged an external consultant to
perform a review services of the effectiveness of the systems of
internal controls of the Group’s brokerage business operations
focusing on operational and compliance controls as well as general
controls environment on its information systems. The assessment
results and proposed improvement opportunities were discussed
and agreed with management and were reported to the Audit
Committee. The Company considers the above-mentioned risk
management and internal control systems of the Group during the
Year are effective and adequate.
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Company Secretary

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary
of the Company has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

Shareholders’ Rights

Enquiries

Shareholders may put enquiries to the Board or put forward
proposals relating to the operations, strategy and/or management of
the Group to be discussed at shareholders’ meetings. Shareholders'
enquiries or proposals can be directed in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the registered office or by email to
info@masonhk.com.

Meetings

Pursuant to Article 69 of the Articles of Association of the Company
and Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
laws of Hong Kong), shareholder(s) of the Company holding not less
than 5% of the total voting rights of the Company may request the
Board of Directors of the Company to convene a general meeting by
way of depositing a written request at the registered office of the
Company or by email to info@masonhk.com. The objects of the
meeting must be stated in the related requisition which must be
authenticated by the requisitionist(s).

Under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s)
holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights or not less than
50 shareholders may propose any resolution at the annual general
meeting by way of depositing a written notice authenticated by the
requisitionist(s) at the registered office of the Company or by email
to info@masonhk.com not less than six weeks before the meeting.
The notice shall contain a description of the proposed resolution
desired to be put forward at the meeting, the reasons for such
proposal and any material interest of the proposing shareholder(s) in
such proposal.
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INVESTORS' RELATIONS

The Company’'s website (www. masonhk.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of the
Company to the shareholders of the Company, other stakeholders
and investors. The Company will also update the website information
from time to time to inform the shareholders and investors of the
latest development of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, no change was made to the
constitutional documents of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Company committed to protect the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures and
awareness in our daily business operations. Our Group encourages
environmental protection and promote awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees. The Group adheres to
the principle of Recycling and Reducing. It implements green office
practices such as double-sided printing and copying, setting up
recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance.
The Group is also using office equipment carrying energy label issued
by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department which save
energy in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation of our Group's businesses to move
towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle and Reuse and
enhance environmental sustainability.

ESG POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Information about the Company’s ESG policies and performance in
2017 is set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 84 to 109.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview of the
Group's management on significant issues affecting the operation,
and the performance of the Group in terms of environmental and
social aspects. This Report is prepared by the Group with the
professional assistance of APAC Compliance Consultancy and
Internal Control Services Limited.

Preparation Basis and Scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules — “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
and has complied with “comply or explain” provision in the Listing
Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect of
corporate social responsibility, covering its operating activities which
are considered as material by the Group — (i) financial services
business in Hong Kong; (ii) provision of medical and laboratory
services in Hong Kong; and (iii) franchisor of mother-infant-children
products in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). With the aim to
optimise and improve the disclosure requirements in the Report, the
Group has taken initiative to formulate policies, record environmental
data, and implement monitoring measures. This Report shall be
published both in Chinese and English on the website of Stock
Exchange. Should there be any discrepancy between the Chinese
and the English versions, the English version shall prevail.

Reporting Period
This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in trading of investments, provision
of financing services, and provision of financial brokerage and
related services with dedication to provide financial services with the
highest quality to our clients. Meanwhile, the Group is actively
expanding its healthcare and medical business through acquisitions,
on the back of an aging population and the two-child policy in the
PRC, coupled with the rising health awareness and the increase in
income of the Chinese citizens. The Group is well prepared for its
future expansion in the healthcare and mother-infant-children
industries.

The Group has a clear “Health + Wealth” strategy for its
development, at the same time it also endeavours to be an
environment-friendly organisation and to fulfil its responsibilities to
the environment and community, whilst maintaining its position as a
global service provider.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholders engagement is essential for the formulation of
strategies for sustainable development. It allows the Group to
understand risks and opportunities. The Group has identified key
stakeholders that are important to our business and established
various channels for communication.

Stakeholders Issues of concern
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Engagement channels
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Government and — Comply with the laws and regulations — On-site inspections and checks
regulatory authorities — Proper tax payment — Research and discussion through work

— Promote regional economic
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— BBTIESHE  TERERENMERE
BETHR LR

— FERERAE

— REIHETL
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Stakeholders Issues of concern Engagement channels
& BEEE SHERE
Shareholders and — Protection of interests and fair — Annual general meeting and other
Investors treatment of shareholders shareholder meetings
— Annual reports and announcements
— Newsletter

— Meeting with investors and analysts
— Company website and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BRREEEE — RERRED R ATFHFRR — BRBFAREREMKRRES
— FERERAE
— BEEA

— BEEERONEEE
— REBUEREEBERZMARAT

Employees — Safeguard the rights and interests of — Meetings and conference
employees — Trainings, seminars, briefing sessions
— Working environment — Entertainment
— Career development opportunities — Intranet, emails, circulars and manuals

— Self-actualisation
— Occupational health and safety
— Staff remuneration, benefits and well-

being
(== — RIEE B 8RR K F = — FERERE
— I{EIRR — &I e Hmhe
— BEZRREE — XREH
— BRER — NEAE - B - BT
— BEREREERZE
— BIHM - M= REH
Financial Institutions — Annual reports and announcements
SRS — FERERQE
Media — Annual reports and announcements
— Press release
HeE — FE@WmERASE
— ¥E
Public and communities = — Social responsibilities — Volunteering
— Charity
ABRHEE — HEEAF — EREEH
— =
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Emissions

The Group's business bears low impact on air and carbon emissions.
Throughout the year, the Group fully complied with all of the relevant
environmental laws and regulations, and no concluded cases
regarding emissions brought against the Group were noted. The
Group promotes environmental protection by introducing a number
of measures to enhance the environmental protection awareness
among its employees, encouraging them to develop environment-
friendly working habits and to take action in protecting the precious
environment.

Air Pollutants Emission

Air pollutants emission control is essential for mitigating the impact
on the environment and protecting the health of employees. The
Group's air pollutants are mainly generated from the vehicles. The air
pollutants emission during the reporting period is as follows:

RIREE

29587
AEBEEBHERRBMIRNZER) - AEE
EERDETHERBEBNOAEERENE  LE
HRARAH B AEBIRH Y D BENPRENS -
AEERBBE - RIIEERIES B THIREZR -
FEURERRRE BB TERNRRNITIES
BY BRBRERTHREEENIRE

2RISR B
ERFANGREHNGREREYERRERE
REZMEE - AEENZRSRANEBIRR
B - RESHBRNERSRMIROT

Provision of  Franchisor of
Financial medical and mother-infant-
services laboratory children
Air Pollutants business services products
£ wl AR RUEBER BBEEEMR
)3 ERERE NIRRT
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) kg 2.30 - 127.24 129.54
A/LAINO,)
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) kg 0.06 - 6.33 6.39
Z&1EH (SO,
Particular matter (PM) kg 0.17 - 12.48 12.65
oKL (PM)
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emission BERE(RERE |)EERHK

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community as it GES(SZEKMPANBEELEE  AmMEH= 3t
affects our daily life. GHG is considered as one of the major EMEET - E=RERG AL TES(LREERE
contributors to the climate change and global warming. The Group BEMFERREY — - NEE B BREL R Y ER
tackles the GHG emission by lowering the energy consumption. BT iasE - RSB BT HITHRER
Policies and procedures (as mentioned in the section “Use of /([ &RFE | —& ) SRS 488 -
Resources”) to encourage energy saving have been incorporated LA A it HEBT o 5 345 HA PO H9OR = SRS HE p a0
throughout the operations in order to reduce the carbon footprint. T :

The GHG emission during the reporting period is as follows:

Provision of  Franchisor of

Financial medical and mother-infant-
services laboratory children
GHG Emission’ business services products
£ wl iR REHERR BREER
AERBEHEN E3 ) BERERS HETEERD
Scope 12 tonnes of 10.36 - 130.53 140.89
CO,-e
& E 12 N
—&RER
Scope 28 tonnes of 299.32 86.79 1,929.26 2,315.37
CO,-e
#[E 23 N
“EtREE
Total GHG emission tonnes of 309.68 86.79 2,059.79 2,456.26
CO,-e
BERBEHHRE NI
—EtREE
GHG intensity tonnes of 0.15 0.09 0.50
CO,-e/m?
mERERE B¥HK
N k=R 7
2
L The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on the ' AEREBHRNDERAERBACEN XS
“Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from greenhouse gas T REREER ] FHE -
protocol.

2 Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled by 2 HE: RERNEBRHER IITHIO RO EE
the Group. e

E Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity consumed by 3 HE2 - RENEEPTEFEINEE F)EOFREEHERL -
the Group.
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Although the Group’s business has no significant impact on the
environment, certain clinical wastes are generated from the
associated healthcare operations and services, medical laboratory
analysis, as well as medical and related research. The Group is fully
aware of the risk of pollution and potential health hazards that may
have arisen from the operation of clinical and scientific services.
Although our laboratory and medical wastes amount is not
significant, the Group has implemented proper clinical waste
management and mitigating measures in full accordance with the
Code of Practice for the Management of Clinical Waste — Small
Clinical Waste Producers imposed by the Environmental Protection
Department of Hong Kong and is in compliance with the legal
requirements of waste disposal. For example, clinic and laboratory
wastes are segregated, packed and temporarily stored for collection
by licensed medical waste collectors. All of the disposals are
properly recorded for follow-up in future if necessary. There are clear
instructions for staff to follow, so as to promote efficiency in utilising
the raw materials during the pharmaceutical process. Hence,
medical waste is reduced through careful and smart ways of
handling different chemicals and materials.

As a franchisor of mother-infant-children products, its major wastes
are carton boxes from the logistics of products. There are clear
procedures to handle these carton boxes to reduce waste produced.
For example, the carton boxes are reused for several times if they
are not damaged.

The Group promotes the idea of “green office” by introducing more
paperless solutions in its daily operations to reduce the volume of
paper and printed materials used. The Group introduces knowledge
on environmental protection to all employees and encourages them to
consider environmental-friendly printing. For example, double-sided
printing and copying is implemented by encouraging employees to
reuse single sided non-confidential print out. On top of that, the Group
actively promotes the use of email to replace traditional mails. Email is
used among staff whenever possible. The Group has also replaced
most fax machines with e-fax. All these measures are geared at
reducing paper waste generated which can help mitigate the global
greenhouse effect as well. Recycling bags are available for paper
collection. All paper boxes, papers, newspaper and magazines are
collected for recycling purpose. During the reporting period, a total of
1,042 kg of paper wastes are collected by financial services business
to reduce the burden on landfill. Besides, notices are posted in the
pantries to remind staff to use less paper cups.

REREEREY
BEASENEBHRETGELEATZE A
BEREGESTHRBRARNEENRY B2ER
= 53 T A B B8 BB A0 AR B T 5T 7 B O K LE B KRR
W) o RE BT FBE R R MBI AR TS @2 P A 8k
EERSRAMARMEENRERS - #AER
ENBEEVNELTKN  AEECET2RRE
BREREZSRMOEBHEEYEETHETA —
NEVBE BB YIEE A B A E MR R R Y E IR A
BRI B ST RN EMRIERERENR - I
wme KEANEREEDERSE T2 ERK7F
& - Righ BB RS RE IR W E AR
& PIANERBIGZETHAT BRENRE
B TR A REBIE P8 BRI RIA R
MROFIRE - Qi BBRREREENT
AEETRMEER R LR T BREY -

EABEREERSHELSR HIBBEYRER
IR ARG o B BRREIR 7 B IR X S AVIRAR AR
DEEWHES o Pl - MR REIEE - ATE
EERBUR -

AEBEZIGERAINES  EERFES
FIBBESI AR Z M EAR(CRRIR YT R B A AR
ENRIF S A& - ARERE2EE TNHARR
- Y EEMBPIREEDR - H10 - BigEmET
EAEE ZRETEEFERIFRTEMNNER
TE - EREENR - AEERBRENETE
HREEGNEMY - BRETHENERE T
B - AREENEFEEDMRABOEEK -
FIAELERE EERDBERNES  RREE
BREZIORERE - CWRATARERREE - 7
B - 8RR A EUREFRAE - 7B
WEHME - BB R FEE YR, 002 3T REAR -

PAUREE s FIRIR ) B AE o thSh - AEAERA
BE RES T MERAR -
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In addition, the Group also encourages electronic corporate
communication and shareholders of the Company are encouraged
to receive corporate communication documents using electronic
means through the Company’s website.

The Group takes effort to reduce wastes in our business operation
and handles wastes in an environmental-friendly way. Although our
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes amount is insignificant, the
Group will continue to improve by recording the wastes amount and
setting related measures and targets. For financial services business,
the Group has outsourced its office cleaning work to an independent
contractor for handling and collecting the non-hazardous waste in
the office and the waste volume record is not provided by the
cleaning contractor. The Group will coordinate with the cleaning
contractor to collect the waste volume data in the coming year in
order to formulate appropriate measures to reduce the non-
hazardous waste production.

The wastes generated by the Group during the reporting period are
as follows:

%%'$%lﬁ BRAREFLEBER - 5E
ARIREFNAETREBBAPBINESARR
RS o

AEEE R K E BRI ELERREYIIA
RRTABEEY BERMANEEREZTEY
BEM  BEXAKEMEBTHENE R EHERE
it N B RS ENCE - MERRBEEBHE - &
SEBERAZERTIEINATE AR AR
ERBERAEANEEZEY - MERAEHL
BIRHUEYERLHE - ARESERFRAEE A
RARRERRREYEBIRASEEE B ERD

AEBERREHRELNEDOT

Provision of  Franchisor of
Financial medical and mother-infant-
services laboratory children
Wastes disposal business services products
£ wl AR RUBER BBEEMR
EEYI R ) BERERS HErEER
Hazardous waste tonnes - 0.72 - 0.72
BERED N
Hazardous waste tonnes/m? - 0.00073 -
intensity
BEREYRE RWE T K
Non-hazardous waste tonnes N/A* 16.20 30.00 46.20
mEREY) N AiEA
Non-hazardous waste tonnes/m? N/A* 0.016 0.0073
intensity
EEREYRE YN P AiEA

& N/A refers to “not available”. The non-hazardous waste amount is not
available for financial services business.
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Use of Resources

The Group attaches great importance to efficient utilisation of
resources by introducing various measures. It understands that staff
participation is the key to achieve such goals. As a part of such
effort, green leafy plants are used as one of the office decoration to
provide a green and lively working environment. The Group strives to
build up a working environment that emphasises the “Environmental
4Rs”, which consists of Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace.

Energy

The Group promotes energy saving awareness among its staff by
posting related reminders or messages through emails,
recommending them to switch off all the lights, computers and
printers by the end of the work day. The Group encourages all
employees to set their computers to sleep-mode automatically when
left idle for a certain period of time. Printers and copiers are also set
to sleep-mode automatically for the computers. Receptionist is
responsible for turning off lights and all the electronic appliances
after meeting. Air-conditioners are set between 24 and 27 degrees
Celsius. During lunch time, air-conditioners in the office area are
switched off. Under these measures, it is believed that less electricity
will be consumed.

In order to keep pace with the market trends, the Group regularly
upgrades its existing facilities such as replacing outdated computers,
phones and other electrical appliances to meet the needs of our
customers and enhance operational efficiency. The Group adheres
to environmental protection and waste reduction principles for its
upgrading processes, and reuses existing facilities and materials
wherever possible, so as to reduce waste. Meanwhile, it also actively
uses eco-friendly equipment for any replacement.

&IRA A
AEEREERY BB ASBERERER
WEUFE - AEERB/EIN2EIEREL
BERNEESE - EAB NN —B9 - REEMHIE
RMRENRHRZ —  AREHR (AR
W ITERYE - AEBBENNEYT —ERH [REF
MER | M TERS - AIBERE 8NA - 518
RMBER -

BEIR
REBAEEFEAHEMBERIRESE B IALE
TTEIRE R ER - RRE 8 T TR T BRI
FRIERE  BINAITENR - AEBEZBMEET
EEREERRERBBEREN  THHRNE
ERTRESTMNEDEREN - ZHFABER
BENEREAMBELRMAER EAREEUE
72 - FEER  SEEARARANZER -
FELERT BERSERELNES -

RTRETSBY  AEBETHRAATBRRAR®E
I B ER - FHRMEMLERS - U
EFMFERTARSELUEX - EFRBRET &
BEFRBRETRDEYRA - B LM ER
ERBEEOREBNHE > UWRADIRE o EIL[F
B 2 EmERERRERE
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REEHIRE - sERERENT

During the reporting period, the energy consumption is as follow:

Provision of  Franchisor of
Financial medical and mother-infant-
services laboratory children
Energy business services products
L& AR REBER BEEEMR
E4) 3 ERZERE HErEER
Purchased electricity kwWh in "000s 386.98 128.37 2,868.61 3,383.96
SNEE FF R
Petrol kWh in "000s 34.00 = 491.91 525.91
b FFER
Diesel kWh in '000s - - 37.48 37.48
g FFEE
Total energy kwWh in "000s 420.98 128.37 3,398.00 3,947.35
consumption
HBEERE FFEE
Energy intensity kwh in 0.20 0.13 0.83
‘000s/m?
gEREE FFEE
S E Ik
Water 7K

Water is another important natural resource. Regarding water KAZ—EBEENBEARER - BT RIRBELHN
consumption for financial services business, the water supply is  #H/KkEME - HKERMNEBRAEHYES
solely controlled and centrally managed by the property BEAFBERESIRERESE - RILBERT AR
management company of our Hong Kong office premises. In this  EABAEBM W EDRLERFAKE - FibARE
case, it is not feasible for the Group to provide water consumption — EREFKELZEIL FAI1T - AEEBBEEL
data as there is no sub-meter for individual office unit to record = - FIFfiREME RN BBEMBBREIRAE
water usage. The Group raises the employees’ awareness of water — &i7/kE#% o

saving through posting notices in pantries, toilets and other

communication channels.

H
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During the reporting period, the water consumption of our Group is
as follows:

RiEHRE - AEBOFKENT

Provision of  Franchisor of

Financial medical and mother-infant-

services laboratory children

business services products

£ ml AR RUEBER BBEEEMR

)3 BERERS NIRRT

Total water consumption me N/A3 720.00 51,125.11 51,845.11

BRI E K TEAS

Water intensity ms/m? N/A® 0.73 12.47
K E SRS TiEAS

FIAR
The Environment and Natural Resources BERAREE

Mason's mother-infant-child and finance business has no significant
impact on the environment. The Group reviews its environmental
policy from time to time and will consider implementing further eco-
friendly measures and practices in the Group’s business operation in
order to enhance environmental sustainability.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group pays special attention to its employees’ rights and strictly
complies with Employment Ordinance and other relevant regulations.
Employment contract terms are in accordance with the Employment
Ordinance or any other applicable regulations. Any changes of
employment terms will be notified to staff and agreed in writing to
protect the lawful rights and interests of all employees.

The Group recognises that the most valuable asset is its employees,
hence, it treats its employees fairly based on a series of standardised
internal policies and procedures in a proactive manner. The Group
updates and improves these policies and procedures regularly by
taking into consideration the health and well-being of its employees.
All employees are kept abreast of any updated policies and practices
through emails, and details are also available from the Human
Resources Department.

& N/A refers to “not available”. The water consumption amount is not
available for financial services business.

EROBRELRBEXBHRELBESATE -
AEETERFERERRLBE BN AEEDN

EBEEPE—SEERRIEGRED - LA
RE AR -

HEREME

ERANEEHER

(=0

AR RIRE S TR - AR ESEM D)
REAMBRIRTE  BEEOEFIRBRBED
A E A B AR « BRI R B R

£ HERMNETYRSEEERABARERE

BTWAE AR -

FAEERBIETIEXAEENEE  AitEE
R — R AN BREER AR Fr ATE 1R T B8
FARTFHEFEUET - AEBETHEHMT
SZEEBRMEF - XA E THRBEMBEILEE
FEA o P B THA] PARB E F 1 B AR BN
EBETEOEAERN - WAl REA N EREBPIE
fig B ARSI

5 N/ASE[TER | - FKETERNEEREER -
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In respect of the Group’s hiring process, objective basis for
judgement during interviews is detailed in the interview assessment
form, which contains key qualities and requirements to allow the
hiring manager to comprehensively assess the suitability of the
candidates and to avoid risks of discrimination or bias.

Apart from the usual job advertisements, job openings will also be
offered to all qualified employees with good work records so as to
promote career advancement among employees. The Group
promotes fair competition among employees and all employees have
equal opportunities for promotion. Consistent criteria will be applied
for assessing both internal and external candidates regardless of
age, sex, race, national origins or physical disabilities to ensure fair
judgment and avoid any risk of favouritism or discrimination.

The Group has established a sound performance appraisal and
promotion mechanism, under which outstanding employees will be
recognised through various means such as remuneration, bonus,
incentives and other benefits, as well as promotion, so as to
recognise their contribution and encourage them to keep up their
good performance. Under such recognition system, annual
performance appraisals are used for evaluating employees’ capability
and potential to take up more responsibilities in a higher position.
The evaluation of individual's work performance will be agreed
among managers and their subordinates. Employees are encouraged
to discuss their progress towards their career goals. Besides,
objectives are set for the forthcoming period so as to optimise their
potential and development. All employees are able to get a fair
promotion and receive career improvement recommendations from
their managers. The appraisal is also a channel for considering the
needs of training and compensation review.

The Group has set up a well-developed job grading system to
differentiate different levels of employees, and has established a fair
compensation program for each level of job position. The Group
endeavours to offer its employees competitive remuneration which
is in line with the market trends. In order to understand the market
pay structure, salary benchmarking exercise is conducted each year
by the Human Resources Department. A number of reliable and
reputable salary surveys are selected from professional bodies and
recruitment agencies to provide up-to-date salary data for the annual
review of salary and reward system.
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The Group’s management attaches great importance to the needs
and opinions of its employees. There are different means for the
employees to communicate with the management, this can maintain
a good relationship between the management and employees. The
Group has established an open-door policy which promotes open
dialogues with line mangers and the senior management. Employees
are encouraged to consult with their managers for any work-related
matters. Under our well-developed escalation procedures, in cases
of disputes or disagreements between employees and their
managers, the Head of Human Resources Department will be
involved and the matters will be escalated to the Executive
Committee for decision when necessary.

With the belief that a harmonious workplace and the sense of
belonging among employees are essential for the development of
the Group, it actively promotes team building development by
encouraging employees to participate in various charity and social
activities. During the year, the Group has held various employee
activities, such as Christmas party, annual dinner and staff birthday
celebration to enhance team spirit and strengthen relationship
between employees and the Company. The Group attempts to meet
its employees’ needs in all aspects so as to cultivate loyalty and
dedication.

Health and Safety

The Group takes into consideration every precaution to establish a
healthy and safe working environment for its employees. The Group
strictly complies with the rules and guidelines stipulated in
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance by the Labour Department
in Hong Kong and any other applicable laws and regulations such as
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Treatment of Occupational Diseases. Besides, we maintain a healthy
and safe workplace for our employees. Reviews will be conducted
with immediate follow-up actions and improvement whenever
necessary. Safety guidelines are in place for our laboratories as well.

FEENEEESEEREINERMEL - B
TrRIABB AR A REE AR WRATR
FEEBME TZRRIFHBIER - NEE D&
BT —IEE R RUBOR AR R R AR M S AR
EEABMABMESHE ZBE TRKEEAET
o] 2 TEAR R 0 8 - 1R AR IR A RO T AR AR
Fro ERBEMET ZHEEF RIS BENER
T ANBRHBEEABENA - EHLEEAIA
B ERTTRBIAITEEGRE -

REMBEN TERRENE THNRBRYRENE
RELAADH  REBRESEEBKREZRE
B SBEI2NSEREMLEFTH - FA -
AEBBPTREELREY  MERBRE  FE
BENE T4 RERAEREGES MRS T
HEARZEHER KEESRECE IR TED
TR AR R RAER S o

RENMZZ
AEBERESRENEESETBERRNRZE
W TERE - AEBERETEESBHFINE
Xz 2 MEFEGRGINGENRAEETH UKL
R EAE AR RG] - thE ARKXABE B
EmPaE - 1o BB EB TRIEY i
RENTIFSM - AEEBELERETREY
KA R IR AE TR RAEHHBOE - RPN ERE
TRHIE TR 2R Ty 8t
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The Group ensures that its employees are able to carry out their daily
work in a comfortable environment by installing or replacing office
equipment whenever there is a need, and providing them with all the
necessary equipment for protection against work-related injury.
Employees are required to participate in the annual fire evacuation
drill and safety talks organised by the property management of the
office premises. Fire installation system and equipment are checked
annually by the property management company. Through providing
these trainings to employees, they become adequately
knowledgeable of the office’s evacuation procedures. Moreover, the
employees are required to participate in the health talks in order to
enhance their awareness on the importance of occupational health.

During the office renovation, the Company took every possible safety
measure for its employees, e.g. use of renovation materials and
products that fulfil the safety standard without harmful effects on
humans. Access to the office is strictly controlled by access card and
staff card to protect the personal belongings of our employees. All
outsiders should be accompanied by our staff to access the office
area. Access control policy is reviewed regularly to enhance the
employees’ safety.

Development and Training

The Group recognises that the continuous development of its
employees is the key to its success. Each new employee will receive
a formal induction to prepare him/her for his/her role and job
responsibilities. Besides, employees are encouraged to participate in
appropriate in-house and external trainings for their skills
improvement or enhancement. Eligible employees will also be
offered financial assistance for qualified training programs to support
their personal growth and career advancement.

The Human Resources Department and Compliance Department
provide assistance in coordinating internal trainings organised by the
Group.
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The Group adopted a systematic performance-based appraisal
system, and the employees’ performance is assessed based on the
pre-set objectives and key performance indicators. Managers are
responsible for closely monitoring and coaching their subordinates
throughout their work, while the Human Resources Department
assists in identifying the proper job-related trainings that can provide
career enhancement or improvement to staff. This can ensure that
the performance of its employees can meet the job requirements.
Furthermore, appropriate and up-to-date trainings will be offered to
the employees to enhance their knowledge and skills for
performance upgrade. Sponsorship in post-graduate courses locally
and abroad is even offered for our laboratory staff. They are also
encouraged and sponsored to attend both local and overseas
scientific conferences and seminars.

The trainings provided by the Group cover a wide scope, from
general financial knowledge to leadership, management and
communication skills. For example, in-house training for CPT
fulfilment or rules updates are conducted by the Compliance
Department regularly and are available to all employees. Latest
market knowledge and updates will also be addressed to all
employees by means of seminars or internal circulation of
informational documents. In realising that the Group's strategy is to
serve the Asian and the Greater China region, the Mandarin language
is an inevitably important business language, therefore the Human
Resources Department has organised Mandarin training sessions for
the Group's senior executives.

For our mother-infant-children and healthcare business, wide range
of trainings on maternal and child care, and health products are
arranged to enhance employees’ knowledge. This can improve the
professionalism of our employees to offer better customer service.

Labour Standards

The Group not only strictly complies with labour legislations, but also
implements specific measures to ensure equal opportunities in
employment. We respect the rights and interest of every employee,
and strictly prohibit the employment of minors under the age of 18.
Organisations that are found to be engaging child labour or forced
labour will be reported to the management to terminate the
corresponding business dealings. There is a comprehensive internal
monitoring system to prevent the Group from forcing employees to
work by way of violence or illegal restriction of personal freedom.
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Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

As part of its commitment to environmental and corporate
responsibility, the Group attaches great importance to supplier
management and monitors by formulating internal procedures and
guidelines for managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain. It undertakes regular reviews on its supply chain to ensure
that its partners do not have significant impact on the environment
and society.

As a franchisor of mother-infant-children products, the Group relies
on a wide range of brands to supply its products. The Group
emphasises on the quality and safety of the products supplied, brand
image and the corporate social responsibilities of the suppliers.
When selecting suppliers, all potential suppliers must be reviewed on
environmental and corporate management.

Green purchasing is adopted in the office. For example, the Group
only purchases electrical equipment with energy-saving labels.
During office renovation, the Group used materials and products that
fulfil the safety standard without harmful effects on the environment
and staff by requesting the suppliers to provide materials details.
This not only can reduce the harmful environmental impact, but also
can safeguard the health and safety of employees.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing quality and customer-centred
medical and healthcare services, mother-infant-children products as
well as financial services. We continue to cultivate a corporate
culture which emphasises the provision of fair and just services for
its customers.

Quality control

For the medical and healthcare sector, we are the leading private
assisted reproductive service provider in Hong Kong. They have
sound management and quality monitoring in different stages of
processes with full statutory compliance, so as to ensure that all
products and services are strictly safe, without any hazards or risks
to human.
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For the financial sector, the Group strives to expand its product mix
to meet the needs of customers with high-quality services. The
Group has set up internal control procedures to protect the Group,
its customers and employees from financial loss arising from theft,
fraud, and other dishonest acts, professional misconduct or
omissions. All of its services are in strict accordance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, as well as customer
requirements.

For the franchisor of mother-infant-children products sector, the
Group attaches great importance on the quality and safety of the
products supplied by the suppliers. The Group carries out on-site
checks of products supplied by its OEM suppliers to ensure
reasonable quality standard is met. For other suppliers, only those
products with safety certifications are accepted by us. There is a
thorough recall procedure for the unqualified products to prevent
and control the sale of these products in the market.

Ccomplaint Handling

The Group's complaint handling policy is strictly in accordance with
regulatory standards to ensure that customers’ opinions are heard
and responded in a timely manner. Complaint officers are in place to
be a channel for customers to reach the Group with any issues they
may have encountered. All customers’ complaints will be
considered, with corresponding follow-up procedures being
conducted in accordance with internal procedures and guidelines.
Relevant investigation will be taken and settlement may be made if
appropriate, and improvement will be made whenever necessary.
The Group believes that complaints are a valuable opportunity for it
to obtain feedback from the community and customers, so as to
identify the need for service and policy improvement.

In financial sector, the Group should comply with the Financial
Dispute Resolution Scheme (“FDRS") for managing and resolving
disputes administered by the Financial Dispute Resolution Centre Ltd
in full and be bound by the dispute resolution processes provided for
under the FDRS.
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Customer Data Protection

For the franchisor of mother-infant-children products sector, the
Group has online stores for customers to purchase conveniently at
home. We respect the users’ personal privacy in online and we have
policy to protect their information. The Group strictly complies with
the applicable rules and regulations such as Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests.

For financial services sector and other businesses in Hong Kong, the
Group strictly complies with the applicable rules and regulations
such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486).

Anti-Corruption

The Group holds itself to the highest level of integrity and
emphasises ethical standards upon its businesses. The Group strictly
complies with Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong,
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China in the PRC and any
other applicable laws and regulations. Therefore, it formulates a set
of policy guidelines and codes of conduct for the employees, under
which any kinds of bribery and corruption practices are strictly
forbidden. There is also a comprehensive system for declaration of
interests, as well as a sound reporting mechanism for any suspicious
activity.

The current policy adopted by the Group regarding anti-corruption is
incorporated into the internal Code of Conduct for staff, including
general framework of anti-bribery laws, rules and regulations in Hong
Kong. The Group and each of its member companies strictly prohibit
staff to solicit and accept advantages without prior approval by the
Group, and actively encourage staff to avoid situations which may
constitute bribery, so as to prevent any kinds of corruption at the
very beginning.

The Group also constantly reminds all its employees of the
importance of complying with the Code of Conduct. Each employee
is required to sign an annual declaration form of his/her compliance
with the Code of Conduct. In addition to the declaration, written
records of all personal benefits received by employees and relevant
management approval are kept for compliance with the internal
policies.
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COMMUNITY

Community Investment

The Group's success comes from the society, and its philosophy is to
contribute back into the society through available resources and
efforts. Employees are encouraged to volunteer at different charity
organisations to express their concerns for specific issues and to
support for these organisations. For instance, the Group actively
participates in the Dress Casual Day 2017 organised by the Hong
Kong Community Chest. Our staff took part in the casual wear event
to support the charity event and deliver the positive corporate social
responsibility message.

At the Group, the focus is on the outcomes of each of its corporate
social responsibility programs. It has set up some metrics such as
“dollars contributed”, “employees engaged”, so that the
effectiveness of these programs can be measured as a reference for
future engagement or improvement, e.g. the number of employees
attended and the amount of donation funds are the measuring
metrics used for the Casual Wear Day organised by the Hong Kong
Community Chest.

As learning modestly means possible improvement ahead, the Group
constantly encourages its employees at all levels to continually learn
from each other. Every year, it delegates relevant employees to
attend various corporate social responsibility conferences in Hong
Kong, so as to promote knowledge and best practices of its
employees. Furthermore, the Company maintains an open channel
of communication with its stakeholders and communities to
understand their motivations, goals, and needs through continuous
conversation and social media polling, so that the Group’s
contributions in corporate social responsibility activities will truly
meet the needs. The Group also hires persons with disabilities to
show our efforts in supporting an inclusive and caring community.
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During the year, we participated in many charitable events and
obtained outstanding social awards which recognised our
contribution to the community. The details of charitable events and
outstanding social awards are listed as below:

We initiated HK$5 for each cup of coffee for World Vision.

o Mason Group Holdings Limited donated to The Chinese Gold
and Silver Exchange Society Charity Fund and 20 of our staff
participated in “Jump to the Future” — the Rope Skipping
Charity Challenge Day.

o “Caring Company (5 years +)" was awarded to Mason
Securities Limited.

o “Caring Company” was awarded to Mason Group Holdings
Limited.
o “Partner Employer Award” was awarded to Mason Group

Holdings Limited.

o "BEARFHIEFE" was awarded to Mason Group Holdings
Limited.

o "EBE F 2017 1k % 22" was awarded to Mason Group
Holdings Limited.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RiE - HERERRERS
REPORTING INDEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

FEEE B —REERBEREIIEEZ(KPIS) =211
A. Environmental

RIR

A1. Emissions

A1 BRI

General Disclosure “Environmental Aspects” 87

—MRHEE [R5 EH |

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective “Emissions — Air Pollutants Emission” 87
emissions data
Hem e e AR BEREE (e — REm &M

KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas Emission” 88
where appropriate, intensity
BERBRENER (NEE)8E [HEm — R = REEHERR

KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, “Emissions — Hazardous and Non- 89
where appropriate, intensity hazardous Wastes”
FEAMNEEREMEER (WNEE)RE [HER) — AEREERED

KPI' A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, “Emissions — Hazardous and Non- 89
where appropriate, intensity hazardous Wastes”
FIEANBERYESE R (NEE)RE (B — B EREEREY

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate “Emissions — Air Pollutants Emission” 87
emissions and results achieved “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas Emission” 88
8 UK PR N2 YR BE R PTG AR [HERR ) — KRS 298k

[HEmuy) — B =EREEBERR

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- “Emissions — Hazardous and Non- 89
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction  hazardous Wastes”
initiatives and results achieved (e — B EREEEY
HEREAEREEEDHN A  REE
EEREERTEKR
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

FTEEE EBEE - —REERBEREIIEZ(KPIS)
A2: Use of Resources

BERANA

General Disclosure

—REE
KPI A2.1

KPI'A2.2

KPI'A2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI A2.5

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and intensity
mEEESMERER HEEEREFER
ERRE

Water consumption in total and intensity
ke LoaE

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved
s R e A e s B R FT IS AR
Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved

o ASRKEUE A KR LR B EAEE - AR
R RKB TS R R

Total packaging material used for finished
products and, if applicable, with reference
to per unit produced

BN MFTAREMHEER(WEA) 2
EHEEEMNE

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
RERBARER
General Disclosure

—RKE
KPI A3.1

104

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them
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Section

B

“Use of Resources”
[&RMA ]

“Use of Resources — Energy”
[BRHMA — &R

“Use of Resources — Water”
[&RFMA — K]

“Use of Resources — Energy”

[BRFIA—seR]
“Use of Resources — Water”

[BRFA — K]

Not applicable to the Group’s business

TERARAREES

“The Environment and Natural Resources”
[(IRELBARER]
“The Environment and Natural Resources”

[(RERBRER]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section
TEEGE - EH- - —REEREBEEERISE(KPIS) =6

B. Social

B. #&

Employment and Labour Practices

BEREZIER

B1: Employment

EE

General Disclosure “Employment” 93

—MRHEE K=

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment - -
type, age group and geographical region
MR - EEEE - FRARRMEE D
HE B 481

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age = =
group and geographical region
IR - FheBRI RHEE D HES RS
i

B2: Health and safety

fepREaZ 5

General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 95

—RR IR R [ERR R %2 ]

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities - =
ETERBEMmLTHAZS R X

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury = =
ETEEIXTIIERH

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and “Health and Safety” 95

safety measures adopted, how they are

implemented and monitored
HAPTRANBEREEL2ERBUAR [EEEZZ]
BT RERTE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

THEGE - EH- - —REEREEERISE(KPIS) =8
B3: Development and Training

BR RIEI

General Disclosure “Development and Training” 96

—MRHEE [ 2 EaE )

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained and - -
employee category
XEIREM A L RIEE LR

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per - -
employee by gender and employee
category
ZURIREEEMNE SN ERES TK
B3935 51| R 21

B4: Labour Standards

L TR

General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 97

—MRHEE [45 T iz |

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review - -
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour
iR A ERAEEARRE T R
SRS T

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate - =
such practices when discovered
B EBRRERBEAFERET KA
2B TIE P ERE A 2P 5
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

THEE - BH - —REERBEEMISE(KPIS) =1
Operating Practices

reEFHl
B5: Supply Chain Management
HrEsEER

General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 98

—MRHEE [fHpE = e |

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical - -
region
RS o R HEREE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to - -

engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored

fHi A AR AR EE A EL - mERTE
BRI HENEE - ARBBIEHIRH
TRERRAE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

THEE EE - —RIEERBEEENIEE(KPIS) =68
Bé6. Product Responsibility

EmAf

General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 98

—MRHE [EmEE]

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or - -
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons
EEXDEXEMBHIELE RER
BEmMERRNBES L

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related “Product Responsibility — Complaint 99
complaints received and how they are Handling”
dealt with
BEEBMREDMBREHRFHEURE [ERET—EFERE]
A

KPI B6.3 Description and practices relating to - -
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights
HR 8 RARRE A ZE R AR R By Hi st ] 1B
1

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process “Product Responsibility — Quality 98
and recall procedures Control”
B SRTARENREORERF [ERET — G2

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection “Product Responsibility — Customer Data 100
and privacy policies, how they are Protection”
implemented and monitored
HUMEBEBERNRERBILBEEREALRE [EmEE — BEEEERE]
T RER T
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

TEEHE - BFH - —REERBREENIEE (KPIS)

Section

B

B7. Anti-corruption

= & R

General Disclosure

—REHEER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of
the case
R EHBHBETASEEESREWEELS
HESFARMGRIZE RFAGER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored
FHImTERT 1R b R R RAR T - A RABEETT R
EBERGE

Community

#HE

B8: Community Investment

HEERE

General Disclosure

— MR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport)
ETERER(UH%E REHE - BIH
koo 2R e REEE)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or

time) to the focus area
EEFHEMBAER (BN ERRE)

“Anti-corruption” 100

[REK

No concluded legal cases were observed -
during the reporting period

R R AT B E RS

“Community Investment” 101

[tREE ]

“Community Investment” 101

[tEREE ]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI S

|IBDO

TO THE MEMBERS OF MASON GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS MASON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mason
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Mason Financial Holdings
Limited) (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 120 to 274, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B A BIET R S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Significant business combinations

During the year, the Group acquired 75% equity interests in Blend
and Pack Pty Ltd (“Blend & Pack”) at total consideration of HK$478.6
million. The acquisition constituted business combinations for
accounting purpose.

The accounting for business combination is an area of focus due to
the significance of the transactions and the judgements involved,
including the identification and valuation of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. Any error made in the identification and/or
valuation of these assets and liabilities may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

Management appointed valuation specialists to estimate the
acquisition-date value of intangible assets and other assets and
liabilities acquired amounting to HK$227.7 million and credit balance
of HK$42.4 million respectively and recognised goodwill amounting
to HK$339.6 million at the date of acquisitions.
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BHRETEFERSREEENEZHE - FAHN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI S

Refer to Notes 4(b) and 35(a) to the consolidated financial
Statements.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the significant business
combinations included:

—  Obtaining and reviewing the terms of the share sale agreement
and other document in relation to the acquisition;

— Evaluating the valuation specialist's competence, capabilities
and objectivity;,

— Reviewing the appropriateness of the bases in the identification
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed;

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
used by the valuation specialist and management to estimate
the acquisition date value of identifiable assets (including
intangible assets) and liabilities,

— Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on
our knowledge and understanding of the businesses and
markets, and

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and evaluating the reasonableness of the
budgets.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group has recognised goodwill of HK$816.8 million and
intangible assets of HK$977.6 million arising from the acquisition of
Blend & Pack in this year and several acquisitions in last year.

Management has performed impairment tests with reference to the
reports issued by the valuation specialists and concluded that there
is no impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets during the
year. This conclusion was based on the estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash generating units (“CGUs") using the value-in-use
("VIU calculation”) model or the assets-based approach that required
significant judgements with respect to the inputs to the valuation
models.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B A BIET R S

Refer to Notes 4(c), 4(g), 4(n), 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
included:

— Evaluating the valuation specialists’ competence, capabilities
and objectivity;,

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies,
including the VIU calculations and the assets-based approach,
used by the valuation specialists and management to estimate
the recoverable amount of the CGUS;

— Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on
our knowledge and understanding of the businesses and
markets,

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and evaluating the reasonableness of the
budgets; and

—  Evaluating the sensitivity of the impairment tests to changes in
key assumptions.

Recoverability assessment of loans receivables
and trade and accounts receivables

The carrying amount of the Group’s loans receivables and trade and
accounts receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, amounted
to HK$1,491.0 million and HK$777.5 million at 31 December 2017
respectively.

Given that the recoverability assessment of these receivables
required significant judgements based on a number of factors
including the debtors’ current creditworthiness, past collection
history, subsequent settlement and ageing analysis and the value of
any collateral assets/guarantees obtained, it is an area of focus.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI S

Refer to Notes 4(h), 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment
included:

— Evaluating the Group’s credit risk policies and testing the
associated processes used by management to assess credit
exposures, assign internal credit ratings and report to the
appropriate level of governance to ensure they worked as
designed;

— Evaluating management’s recoverability assessment; and

— Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions made by
management in the recoverability assessment.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
The Group has a number of available-for-sale financial assets during
the year. The carrying amount of the Group's available-for-sale
financial assets amounted to HK$689.1 million at 31 December 2017,
which are stated at cost less impairment losses. Given that the
recoverability assessment of financial assets required significant
judgements based on a number of factors including macro-economic
and market environment and the investees’ financial status, it is an
area of focus.

Refer to Notes 4(h) and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
included:

—  Performing a review on the latest financial information of the
investee companies;

—  Evaluating management’s recoverability assessment; and

— Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions made by
management in the recoverability assessment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B A BIET R S

Valuation of contingent consideration payable for
business acquisition

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had contingent consideration
payables of HK$129.9 million, which are due to be payable in 2018
and 2019.

The Group recognised consideration for acquisition at fair value
(estimated at the date of acquisition) for each contingent
consideration arrangement. These fair value measurements require
management’s estimation and significant judgment on post-
acquisition performance of the acquired business and discount rate
used.

Contingent consideration payables are remeasured at fair value at
each reporting date, and may be affected by changes in the
estimation of post-acquisition performance of the acquired business.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account. For the year ended 31 December 2017, HK$129.9
million was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

We focused on this area as the assessment made by management
involved significant estimates and judgments in relation to the post-
acquisition performance of individual businesses and discount rates
applied, which may be affected by unexpected changes in future
market or economic conditions or significant events or
circumstances related to the acquired business.

REBRBEAIIAKENMGE

R-ZZE—+F+-_A=+—H  EBE£EEEN
s ARE 129,900,000/8 7T * BR-E—\FER =
T—NERIET AT o

AEEREBRINRELHRAFEREER
Hifh ) RMERE - RFAFEAEERE
BEEHMBBEBNORBRRELRANTRE
T RIEREXRHE -

B SARERERE A BRAFEENTE
WA e T U S S WS e RIS 2 B B AT
2 A EERNKERBERGEBRESR
BR-BE_FT—+F+A=+—HLFE"
129,900,000 % 7T B 4R & 2 E U R ER o

BEEFBINZAE 0 DREEEMERR G K&
BRAENEBHRBERRAIRANBREZE
RfGa R HE - 7] RES R KI5 SBT3
WEEBEBNEAEHREREINESAFE -

115

EREBZREIRATF / 2017 FERSE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI S

Refer to Notes 5(i) and 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation assessment
included:

— Checking the contingent consideration payable calculation
prepared by management against the formula stated in the
sale and purchase agreement;

— Evaluating performance forecasts used in the contingent
consideration payable calculation and tested the mathematical
accuracy of the underlying calculation of consideration payable
and agreed them to the financial projection prepared by
management for the specific financial period stipulated by the
sales and purchase agreement;

— Analysing the key assumptions adopted by management with
reference to their business plan and historical actual results to
assess the quality of management’s financial projection; and

— Comparing the discount rates used by management against
market information and internal data.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B A BIET R S

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI S

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B A BIET R S

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Lee Ka Leung, Daniel
Practising Certificate no. P01220

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEZHERER

Year ended 31 December 2017
o IS [ P A == B T

2017 2016
—E—+tF
HK$‘000 HK$'000
THT FHT
Turnover 2 6 3,721,726 454,032
Operating income ReEWA 7 2,900,438 66,501
Other income E A 8 23,588 4,314
Consumables used and merchandise sold  ## &5 & @ (2,275,275) (9,706)
Employee benefits expenses BER/MZH 10&11 (248,034) (65,837)
Amortisation of intangible assets B A A 17 (29,184) (14,850)
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - BE R
equipment BiEITE 16 (16,791) (3,955)
Gain on disposal/(write off) of property, HE (i) Mz
plant and equipment B E M & 1 2 e 16 1 (5,232)
Provision for allowance for doubtful debts, — REREEHIR/F5E
net 26(d) (4,297) (98,355)
Gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries & i B A 7liEzs 2 Wk 36 - 357,006
Gain arising from changes in shareholding B 4/ &% i &
in associates EAzWE = 3,233
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial BIEEEUBEEZ
assets held for trading RNEEWS(EE)
HEE 75,900 (689,657)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEMBEE
financial assets BE B 22(e) (5,538) (125,916)
Impairment loss on goodwill and EENELEEZ
intangible assets BIEEE 17& 18 - (68,695)
Other operating expenses EmgEsh (177,824) (103,904)
Finance costs BB R AR 10 (31,703) (13,838)
Share of results of associate FEMRERE DR EE 20 6,019 (23,945)
Profit/(loss) from operation R (EE) 217,300 (792,836)
Loss on measurement of contingent FERSHARERN
consideration payable AEERE 30 (129,899) -
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREADER(BE) 87,401 (792,836)
Income tax (expenses)/credit FTis® (X)) e 13 (60,931) 2,340
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF,(EE) 26,470 (790,496)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEEBER

Year ended 31 December 2017
) e e R el S E R [
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000

HK$'000
FTHET TAETT

Other comprehensive income: Hit2EUWA :
Items that will be reclassified subsequently —HE & AJSEEFH H4HZ

to profit or loss BwmoHE
Exchange differences on translation of RINGTB R RIIRER
foreign subsidiaries EHER 3,850 -

Derecognition of available-for-sale financial & i B A TR 42 | FFER

assets revaluation reserve upon disposal A EMFEE
of subsidiaries HihFE 36 = (9,587)
Derecognition of foreign currency translation € i B A T1R5 42 | FFE R
reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries NS B 55, A 36 - (2,788)
Derecognition of capital reserve upon HEMTB AR AR I T#ER
disposal of subsidiaries B 36 = (10,075)
Share of other comprehensive income FERE S AT 2 B
of associates ZHEUA 20 - 9,906
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEERA
for the year 3,850 (12,544)
Total comprehensive income FRAEEBALE
for the year 30,320 (803,040)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: FEARER(B518)
Equity holders of the Company RARE=RFFA (53,160) (472,022)
Non-controlling interests FEIRARE RS 19 79,630 (318,474)
Profit/(Loss) for the year ERER(BE) 26,470 (790,496)
Total comprehensive income BEhRE2EBRAELE :
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RARIERRFAE A (51,197) (490,756)
Non-controlling interests FEIERR 19 81,517 (312,284)
Total comprehensive income FRAEEBALE
for the year 30,320 (803,040)
(Restated)
(#E5)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted EAXRREE 15 HKO0.13 cents HK2.33 cents
0.13 &4l 2.33 7841
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

At 31 December 2017
RZZT—tF+=-A=+—8

2017 2016
—E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE M RE 16 60,414 36,241
Intangible assets mHEE 17 977,591 773,306
Goodwill GES 18 816,798 475,398
Interest in an associate P AN W - e 20 220,235 -
Available-for-sale financial assets A EMEEE 22 614,189 665,461
Loan receivables TEWE 25 642,362 S
Other non-current deposits paid and HuBPEIERHIEE R
prepayments JETERIE 11,031 7,051
Deferred tax assets B IEE E 31 1,409 306
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss BB ERE 24 199,342 =
3,543,371 1,957,763
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 23 292,546 220,101
Financial assets at fair value through BRFEABERZS
profit or loss W& E 24 164,930 499,093
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ENBEE 22 74,926 -
Loan receivables ERE R 25 848,606 910,510
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M EW IR 26 1,051,512 781,032
Tax recoverable A B Y i 18 81 -
Pledged bank deposits BRI TIT X 27 58,364 22,359
Bank balances and cash IRITHBRIRE 27 1,759,412 651,419
4,250,377 3,084,514
Current liabilities G =R
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFRIE 28 555,962 1,006,361
Interest-bearing borrowings sTEER 29 300,016 300,000
Amount due to an associate FEf — KBt & R BIRUIR 21 20,000 -
Finance lease liabilities REHEAE 32 399 -
Tax payables FERT B IE 42,330 5,632
Contingent consideration payable ERSARE 30 112,272 -
1,030,979 1,311,993
Net current assets FERBEE 3,219,398 1,772,521
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEE 6,762,769 3,730,284
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

At 31 December 2017
N e e H S =

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEMER 29 20,000 20,000
Deferred tax liabilities RERIERE 31 231,226 157,206
Contingent consideration payable FET S ARE 30 17,627 -
Finance lease liabilities MmEREaE 32 795 =
Long-term liabilities REAE 278 -
269,926 177,206
NET ASSETS REE 6,492,843 3,553,078
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital il 33 6,142,962 3,277,443
Reserves e (72,199) (21,002)
Equity attributable to equity holders RABERFEE AR
of the Company e 6,070,763 3,256,441
Non-controlling interests JEFERR i = 19 422,080 296,637
TOTAL EQUITY BRES 6,492,843 3,553,078

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 HEZER T —N\F=ZA =+ B & RRE

March 2018 and signed on its behalf by g - WA TIIREKES
Ko Po Ming Lui Choi Yiu, Angela
=EH B
Director Director
4 S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
hEEmSER

Year ended 31 December 2017
o IS [ P A == B T

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRTREREAR

EniBAE
Reserves
B
Available-
for-sale
financial Foreign
assets currency Accumulated Non-
Share Capital ~ revaluation  translation profits/ Total controlling
capial Teserve Teserve TeServe (losses) ~ reserves  Sub-otal interests
Ejﬂﬁug
e & E EiRE ) IGE o FEERER
Note HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
L T Thr Thr Tin Thr Thr ThL T
(Note 34(b))  (Note 34(c)
34()
At 1 January 2016 RZE-x5-fA-H 2,550,372 10075 14,266 (5600 45738 47609 3006464 1028760 4,055,224
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (202 @202 @202 (318474)  (79049)
Other comprehensive income EE2ERA
Items that will be reclassified REBTEEN B RR
subsequently to profit o loss ZEH
Derecognition of avallable-for-sale  HEMBAARL BT
financial assets revaluationreserve.  HERHEEE[EE
upon disposal of sUbsidiaries 3 - - (9587) - - (9.587) (9.587) - (9.587)
Derecognition of foreign currency HEMBATBA LRR
translation reserve upon disposal INETE K fel
of Subsidiaries 36 = = - (2,788) - (2788 (2789) = (2788)
Derecognition of capital reserve HENBATRA LD
upon disposal of subsidiaries ARG 3% - (10,075) - - - (10075 (10075) - (10,075)
Share of other comprehensive income (S AREHZE
of assoclates WA 2 - - (4,679 8,3% - 3716 3716 6,190 9906
Other comprehensive income EREH2EUA
for the year - (10,079) (14,260) 5,607 - (18734) (18734) 6,190 (12,544)
Total comprehensive income ERZERAEE
for the year - (10,079) (14,260) 5607 (472022 (490756) - (490,756) (312,284 (803,040)
Transactions with equity holders ~ ERZEREAZRS
Contributions and distributions EIRDE
IssLie of share capital kA kel 7201 - - - - - 10N -7
Changes in ownership interests fEERE
Deemed disposal of interests in RIENENBATRER
Subsiclaries without loss of control (REERHIE) % - - - - 995 995 995 14913 15,908
Partial disposal of interests in LENBLANAER
asubsidiarywithout loss of control -~ (k& =141 % - - - = 7333 03 033 073 200000
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries ~~ HEMBATER % - - - - - - - %90 (935950)
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ FERER T E
Interests = = = = = = = 11,400 11,400
Non-controling interests arising from e KB ATEEH
acquisition of subsidiaries snliEs 35(a)8(b) - - - - - - - M5 282465
Total transactions with HERREARSEE
equity holders 721011 - - - (6,338) (6338 720733 (419839  3008%
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RETZA=1-H 3277443 S S S (21,002) (21002 325640 296,637 3953078
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

Year ended 31 December 2017
) e e R el S E R [

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAREREEAEL
Reserves
1
Foreign
currency Non-
Share translation Accumulated Total controlling
capital reserve losses reserves Sub-total interests Total
Pk
R B e ZitEE REEE Nt FERER @zt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TiEn T TAR TAn TAR
te 34(c))
2 3(c)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t£-A-H 3,277,443 - (21,002) (21,002) 3,256,441 296,637 3,553,078
Profit for the year FWRT = = (53,160) (53,160) (53,160) 79,630 26,470
Other comprehensive income  E4s2EUWA
Items that will be reclessified  E##EF 7 EZER
subsequently to profit or loss ZEH
Bxchange differences arisingon oM EBIREEEH
translation of foreign operations B} Z8 - 1,963 - 1,963 1,963 1,887 3,850
Total comprehensive income  £R2EUAEE
for the year - 1,963 (53,160) (51,197) (51,197) 81,517 30,320
Transactions with equity BERREAZRS
holders
Isste of shares under rights REMRETRARES
issued and honus issue, BOORG - 1BRER
net of expenses RX] 2,865,519 - - - 2,865,519 = 2,865,519
Dividend to non-controlling PRRE FIERER
interests - - - - - (2,400) (2,400)
Non-controlling interests arising ~ RIEEMBARIEE 2
from acquisition of subsiclaries  FEERRIER 35(@) - - - - - 46,326 46,326
Total transactions with REREAAZRS
equity holders &g 2,865,519 - - - 2865519 43926 2,909,445
At 31 December 2017 RoB-tf&
+-A=1+-H 6,142,962 1,963 (74,162) (72,199) 6,070,763 422,080 6,492,843
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
17 g = iﬁif§ZlﬂbHE§;E%

Year ended 31 December 2017
o IS [ P A == B T

2017
e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRE RIS F(E51E) 87,401 (792,836)
Amortisation of intangible assets BB Y 17 29,184 14,850
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB R
equipment e 16 16,791 3,955
(Gain on disposal of)/write off of property, M - B R
plant and equipment (HEWES), M 16 (1) 5,232
Provision for allowance for doubtful debts, — REREHEETIRE%E
net 26(d) 4,297 98,355
Write off of intangible assets BB EM = 3
Gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries ~ HEWMBATER W2 36 - (357,006)
Gain arising from changes in shareholding B N RIREE B EE
in associates i 20 - (3,233)
Net fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets  FH{EEBEUKEE
held for trading AFE M), BE
HER (75,900) 689,657
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A HENBEE
financial assets ZIREEE 22(e) 5,538 125,916
Impairment loss on goodwill and HEREVEEZ 17
intangible assets FEEE & 18 - 68,695
Interest income, other than from loans FIEWA CHRBIERE
receivables EWERE) (15,881) (2,551)
Finance costs b AR 10 31,703 13,838
Share of results of associates FEIRESE R A EE 20 (6,019) 23,945
Contingent consideration payable JE S RAE 30 129,899 -
Changes in working capital: EEESED)
Inventories ﬁﬁ (47,831) (480)
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEGFABRZ
profit or loss A E 210,721 135,188
Loans receivables FEME K (580,458) (1,006,913)
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EH A FEUGRIR (227,237) (125,942)
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMER A (507,913) (9,438)
Cash used in operations KEFTRE S (945,706) (1,118,765)
Tax paid EAHIR (28,996) (817)
Interest received, other than from EFE (FBEEKRE
loans receivables R ERE) 15,881 2,551
Net cash used in operating activities REXBFMARS T (958,821) (1,117,037)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n _\éiﬁﬁﬁ%%

Year ended 31 December 2017
) e e R el S E R [

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt B
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFXK
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEEW% - BKE L&E 16 (24,063) (7,561)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEYE - BEK
plant and equipment RS RIA 805 -
Purchase of intangible asset BERVAE 17 (4,701) -
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHEENBEEE
financial assets (29,192) (577,988)
Acquisition of an associate W iE — KB A A (214,216) -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EHEMIRITFEROR LD (36,005) -
Net cash inflow from disposal HEH B A A
of subsidiaries RERNFEE 36 = 1,398,447
Net cash outflow from acquisition U B B B 2 A 35(@)
of subsidiaries RE R FE & (b) (478,861) (341,744)
Net cash (used in)/from investing REZW® (A,
activities FER&FHE (786,233) 471,154
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SRERERER

Year ended 31 December 2017
o IS [ P A == B T

2017
S
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Fitit
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REER 39(b)
Issue of share capital BTIRAR 33 - 727,071
Issue of convertible bonds, included in BT RRES
disposal of subsidiaries (GTALEWBAR) - 176,000
Issue of notes payables BTN RE = 300,000
Proceeds from rights issue WX FTISFRIE 33 2,865,519 -
New bank loans raised MEERITER 174,661 1,040,000
New other loans raised Hit &£ B8 312,869 350,000
Repayment of bank loans EEBITEK (53,834) (1,561,143)
Repayment of other loans EEEME R (133,680) -
Loan from an associate RE—REERAFIEK 20,000 -
Repayment of convertible bonds, BEARRES
included in disposal of subsidiaries GrtALEHRBAF) - (45,000)
Repayment of unsecured fixed coupon notes  {& & KW 5 =% (300,000) (350,000)
Proceeds from partial disposal of interests HEI KB AR
in a subsidiary without loss of control IS Fr{SIAE 36 - 200,000
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests SRR BT I AR M 2 (2,400) -
Capital injections from non-controlling IR R E
interests - 27,308
Interest paid BEfFE (31,703) (11,624)
Repayment of obligations under finance BEREHERT
leases (147) -
Net cash from financing activities RETHSRSTH 2,851,285 852,612
Net increase in cash and ReRkBELEEZ
cash equivalents #hNEEE 1,106,231 206,735
Cash and cash equivalents at the EHRPYzHER
beginning of the reporting period HeZ%E 39 651,419 444,684
Effect of exchange rate changes ERSE e 1,762 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ERMLEEAZRS
of the reporting period, represented RREEE
by bank balances and cash ERITESREAS 39 1,759,412 651,419
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017
) e e R el S E R [

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Mason Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Mason
Financial Holdings Limited”) (the “"Company”) is a public
company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"”). The address of the registered office and the
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of the annual report for year 2017. The
principal activities of the Group and its subsidiaries are
described in Notes 9 and 19 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSS —
effective 1 January 2017

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 12,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that
will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the notes to the cash
flow statement, Note 39(b).

—REHR

EREEZRERAR (FERESZEER
2R ([ARE)) BRREBEMKILZ AR
N EBRDEBTEEHARXSMERRAR
(TR P ) E77 o« KRB ZEMM =R R
TREXMHBNOBUAR —FT-—LFFER
EZRREMPRE AEBEREMER
A2 T BEBRH AN RS MBRRIE9
K19 e

RMERMBRELEAFERME
WEER )
(@) ERMHETRIETEBHBR

EEY — —F-—tF-A—

BAEX

BRGHENETR HEAE
ZIERTA

BEGMENE R BAEEBEES
ZEFIA EEHEEE

BRMBMEEL  BEUBHTEL
“T-PEE F12EZETE
“E-RFES REREMERLD
ZEEWE #i

ERETENET R ZBTER —
WEETE

ZIEFTSIAT —IREIMRER - KER
BHRREREERIHBRETDESE
MaEZL -

RZEET AR RBRME
39(b) 2FIERIMKEE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRMTE

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE - F-tF+-A=ft-BLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSS —

130

effective 1 January 2017 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred tax
assets related to debt instruments measured of fair
value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the clarified treatment is
consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously recognised deferred tax assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities, to clarify that the disclosure requirements
of HKFRS 12, other than the requirements to disclose
summarised financial information, also apply to an
entity’s interests in other entities classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations in accordance with
HKFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has no
impact on these financial statements as the latter
treatment is consistent with the manner in which the
Group has previously dealt with disclosures relating to its
interests in other entities classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations in accordance with HKFRS 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

Year ended 31 December 2017
w2
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSS, potentially relevant to
the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle in Associates and Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-Based Payment Transactions'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)"

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation?

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

& The amendments were originally intended to be effective

for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments of the amendments
continue to be permitted.

RMEREMBRELEAFEME
WEERA ) )
(b) EBREMERRERZHET K

BRI BRI | ELER

AT BRI B B AR S B 15 i R A B HY
ERMERRERZHEIEETE
BUBREER - EAREEILERA
RNERER - REEERTHNZSE

BRMBREER TSI ERE B2
“E-mEE CHESY SN
“ERE REETEZRE
BRIz EELE

ERMBHREENELE KON E20E
TR Kit&

BRMBREREAFEIR 2BIA
ERRBHRIENE DR FPANE

BEOIRE EPailE (5%
F5HZBAER HHBEES
FI5KZER)
BB RE RHEZEIEE
FIRBAR

ERMBREEAF 6% HE?

FR(ARMBRS SERGRENE
2EZE9)
—REELH

FR(ARMBRS FiEhEEz
2EZE9) THEMR
—REEBH

BB RE REZHEABEN]
FORRBEGHEY  ALELEZAY

FBRZETA REHETTE

T RZE-\F-A—BRZERR
2 FEERER

2 RIE-NF-A-BRZERES
ZFEHREER

3 ZEEIARER_FE—RE—A
— Az R ZBEER - BH
EMEHRBRE M - BER
SHERIEMBRET A ZERT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRMTE

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE - F-tF+-A=ft-BLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

132

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures, clarifying that a Venture Capital
organisation’s permissible election to measure its
associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification
and Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions with
a net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations;
and a modification to the terms and conditions of a
share-based payment that changes the classification of
the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE-S—tEt-A=t—HILEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRAEBUBBREERHFBBK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) wEER ) (#&)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CHEMGEBERERZHIT &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows (the business model test) and that have
contractual terms that give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if the
objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All
other debt and equity instruments are measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing
the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general
hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to better
reflect their risk management activities in financial
statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

BRI ERMBREED &)
ERMBREENEIR — &
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BEMBREENEORAPBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

Year ended 31 December 2017
S i s e = U5 = Se e [l
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group
plans to use the exemption from restating comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the
Group's financial statements are as follows:

(@)  Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) FVTPL and (3) FVTOCI:

. The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the asset. If a debt instrument is classified as
FVTOCI then interest revenue, impairment
and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017
HETT—FtF+-H=+—HILtEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

@

Classification and measurement (Continued)

For equity securities, the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’'s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the entity
irrevocably elects to designate that security
as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated
as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that
security will be recognised in profit or loss.
Gains, losses and impairments on that
security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

The Group has assessed that its financial
assets currently measured at amortised cost
and FVTPL will continue their respective
classification and measurements upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

Debt investment security that is classified as
available-for-sale under HKAS 39 will, under
HKFRS 9, be measured at FVTPL.

Equity investment securities that are
classified as available-for-sale under HKAS 39
may, under HKFRS 9, be measured as FVTOCI
with irrevocable designation or FVTPL,
depending on the particular circumstances.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

136

(@)

)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

° The classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities under
HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS
39.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the "incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the expected
credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for
a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is
recognised. Instead, an entity is required to
recognise and measure either a 12-month expected
credit loss or a lifetime expected credit loss,
depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The Group expects that the
application of the expected credit loss model will
result in earlier recognition of credit losses. The
Group is still in the assessment process, in
particular incorporating the forward looking
estimates of key macroeconomic factors. Based on
a preliminary assessment, if the Group were to
adopt the new impairment requirements at 31
December 2017, the expected credit loss impact
would not be material to the Group as compared
with that recognised under HKAS 39.

The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the
standards are initially applied in that financial report.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRAEBUBBREERHFBBK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) HEER| ) &)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) SHEMGEERERZHT &K

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach
to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard
is not likely to have a significant impact on how it
recognise revenue.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property;,
and transition requirements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

138

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met —
instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

As disclosed in note 4(p), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the
lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted,
lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases
and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will
recognise and measure a lease liability at the present
value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After
initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will
recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the
right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRAEBUBBREERHFBBK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) wEER ) (#&)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CHEMGEBERERZHIT &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases for office equipment and premises
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in profit
or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note
44, at 31 December 2017 the Group's future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to $108,508,000 for office equipment and
premises, the majority of which is payable between 1
and 5 years after the reporting date. Some of these
amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a
more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new
assets and liabilities arising from operating lease
commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into
account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated
between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different
transition options and practical expedients, including the
practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or
contain, leases. If this practical expedient is chosen, the
Group will apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16
only to contracts that are entered into on or after the
date of initial application. If the practical expedient is not
chosen, the Group will need to reassess all of its
decisions about which existing contracts are, or contain,
leases, using the new definition. Depending on whether
the Group elects to adopt the standard retrospectively or
follow a modified retrospective method of recognising a
cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at the date of initial application, the Group may or
may not need to restate comparative information for any
changes in accounting resulting from the reassessment.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(b) Newr/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

140

The Group has not yet decided whether it will choose to
take advantage of this practical expedient, and which
transition approach to be taken.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 addresses foreign currency transactions
or parts of transactions where:

(iii)

There is consideration that is denominated or
priced in a foreign currency,

The entity recognises a prepayment asset or a
deferred income liability in respect of that
consideration, in advance of the recognition of the
related asset, expense or income; and

The prepayment asset or deferred income liability
is non-monetary. The Interpretations Committee
came to the following conclusion: (i) The date of the
transaction, for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of
the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred
income liability; and

If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, a date of transaction is established for
each payment or receipt.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

RMEREMBRELEAFEME
WEERA ) )
(b) EBREMERRERZHET K

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12,
Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall
also assume the tax authority will examine amounts that
it has a right to examine and have full knowledge of all
related information when making those examinations. If
the entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then
the uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected
using either the “most likely amount” or the “expected
value" approach, whichever better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 —
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets
to its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business the gain or loss is recognised
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the joint venture or associate.

The Group expects to adopt the amendments on 1
January 2018 and does not expect these adoptions will
have significant impact on the Group's financial position
and performance.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS") and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements. In addition, the
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”).on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

142

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of its subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as that of the
Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
equity holders of the Company, in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and within equity in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event
of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or
at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. This choice of measurement basis
is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(@) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income
Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
the equity holders of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest determined at the date when control is lost and
(i) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint
venture or others as appropriate from the date when
control is lost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination

144

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or l0ss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively,

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,
when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination (continued)
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The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

148

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether
it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.

In the Company's statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
The carrying amount of the investments is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group's investment in associates are accounted for
under the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. Except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses when the Group's share of losses of the investee
equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in
the investee, which includes any long term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the investee.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates (continued)

(f)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates or
joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate is
measured as the excess of the cost of investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired associate. Such
goodwill is included in interest in associates. On the other
hand, any excess of the Group's share of its net fair value
of identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
investment is recognised immediately in profit or l0ss as
an income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives as set out
below from the date on which they are available for use
and after taking into account their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method. Where parts of an
item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

Over the lease
terms or 7 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 4-10 years
Computer and office equipment 3-5years
Medical equipment 3-7 years
Motor vehicles 2-5years
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(8)

150

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is fair value at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at costs less any
accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives as follows:

Brand names
Licenses and trading lights

10 years-indefinite
7 years—indefinite

Trademarks 10 years

Customer and franchisee 5-10 years
relationships

Computer software and systems 3-10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(8)

(h)

Intangible assets (continued)

Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset
is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the
date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set
out above. Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are
tested for impairment at least annually.

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when and only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade
date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from
the financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the
financial asset and either (a) the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, or (b) the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially
recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets or financial liabilities not carried at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
assets or financial liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

152

)

Financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss include financial assets held
for trading, financial assets or financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss, and financial assets or
financial liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are
carried at fair value, with any resulting gain and
loss recognised in profit or 10ss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in revenue in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are (i) acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the near future; (i) part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii)
derivatives that are not financial guarantee
contracts or not designated and effective hedging
instruments.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are
designated at initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss only if (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on a different basis; or (i) they are
part of a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities that are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or (iii)
they contain embedded derivatives that would
need to be separately recorded.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017

4,

FESHBER#E)
(hy €T A #)

)

BROATFEFABSEZHBE
EIMBRE
BAVESABGZIMBEE
XM BABEBRERIFEE M
BEE NRBERERREER
BAVESABGZIMBEE
P BABARBEREEYE
BERAEIFNEBAGHZ
IARELBAEENTBE
EXAMBRE - ZEWBHEE
KA FEEAFEIR  ARE
HPRERTEL 2 EMKE R
B8 - MBS R 2 WE B
BEFRTEEMEEEMRN
ZERMBREHRAME - BARKRER
BEERERZBA

Tl BA 7% B EE S 15 B ()
BT EBHANAAREH
S RAEEEHRERZA
BRI AEEGZ 7
W ERTMERERENZE
BRS¢ (i) LI BERA
HWHEERBRE H TR ZDT
ETA: AIDBEARKIEES -

BEFEATIREE - MBEE
EXMBEET TR ERER
B8 E R A FERFARR : ()
ZIEERELKBREDIEZTR
AEEABEERARIERNR
BHEBEMEEZ T —BUERE
R () BRI EE KR
BRER—HRBEAXFILZ
R\l B REE EIE - WIRAF
BEEFBRAZVBEE
RSB ERAE 2 — &
o (i) ZFMEEERME
BEERSAEBAKRZIBRAN
fTHETA -

RSN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017
) e e R el S E R [

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

4.

)

(ii)

Financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including trade and other
receivables, loans receivable and bank balances
and cash are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market and are not held for trading.
They are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, except where
receivables are interest-free loans and without any
fixed repayment term or the effect of discounting
would be insignificant. In such case, the receivables
are stated at cost less impairment loss. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition over the period
to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are either
designated at this category or not classified in any
of the other categories of financial assets. They are
measured at fair value with changes in value
recognised as a separate component of equity until
the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed
of, or until the assets are determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification

adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are

stated at cost less impairment |0ss.

(iv) Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, interest-bearing borrowings and
amount due to an associate. All financial liabilities,
except for financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using effective interest method, unless the
effect of discounting would be insignificant, in

which case they are stated at cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(v) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period
respectively. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability respectively, or where

appropriate, a shorter period.

(vi) Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer of the contract to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder of the
contract for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
measured at fair value through profit or loss, are
carried at the higher of (i) the amount of the
obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,

cumulative amortisation recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

156

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried
at amortised cost is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flow discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate. Such impairment
loss is reversed in subsequent periods through profit or
loss when an increase in the assets’ recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between its acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any previously recognised
impairment loss in profit or loss, is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair
value of available-for-sale equity instrument after
recognition of impairment loss is recognised in equity.
Reversal of impairment loss of available-for-sale debt
instruments is reversed through profit or loss, if the
increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at
cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss shall not
be reversed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(i)

()

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value at the date derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently measured at their fair value at the
end of reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition in
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship. Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices in active market or are determined using valuation
technigues, including discounted cash flow model and
options pricing model as appropriate.

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivative when their characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Revenue recognition

158

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably and on the following bases:

Net income from trading of securities and options and
commodities contracts are recognised on the transaction
date when the relevant sale and purchase contract is
entered into.

Underwriting commission is recognised upon allotment
and when the obligation under the underwriting or sub-
underwriting agreement has expired. Placing commission
is recognised on the contractual completion of trades.

Income from franchisor and retail of mother-infant-
children product for sale of goods and manufacture and
sales of infant formula and nutritional products are
recognised upon transfer of the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the customers. This is usually
taken as the time when the goods are delivered and the
customers have accepted the goods.

Advisory fee income is recognised when the relevant
services are provided to the customers.

Margin facility fee income is recognised as interest
income using the effective interest method.

Medical consultation and laboratory services income is
recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Net income from the sale of investments at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised on the transaction
date when the relevant sale and purchase contract is
entered into.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M

Foreign currencies translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the Company’s
functional currency, and rounded to the nearest
thousands unless otherwise stated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at period-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are recognised in profit or loss except
for those arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or losses are
also recognised directly in equity.

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented and, where applicable, goodwill
and fair value adjustments on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on an acquisition of
a foreign operation which are to be treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation, are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period.

o Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies translation (continued)

U]

160

All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the
Group's net investment in a foreign operation are
recognised as a separate component of equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, which
includes a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, a disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest is
no longer equity-accounted for, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to the
foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
separate component of equity is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on
disposal is recognised.

On the partial disposal of the Group's interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in that
foreign operation and is not reclassified to profit or
loss.

On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control, the proportionate share of the
cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Ccontinued)
(m) Inventories

4.

(n)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, and investments in
subsidiaries and associate may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In addition, the Group tests its intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives and intangible assets that
are not yet available for use for impairment by estimating
their recoverable amount on an annual basis and
whenever there is an indication that those assets may be
impaired. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group
of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(0)

(p)

162

Impairment of other assets (continued)
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is
recognised as income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of the
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting
policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings,
that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or 10ss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the
term of the lease.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017

4,

FESHBER#E)

(n)

(0)

(p)

Hit & ERE (&)
AEFEEEZ SR SRAREE
WIRE B £ BN BT FE W R
RAEEETES 2 EEE < REB
1B B BB RS RRARA -

R RO R AR A B
AN R XS R B R
R -

BERA
BERARELERNGREE - #R%
TERBEREE(ARIEE —REE
HETATHREREREREENE
E)2ERRBENEEREZERK
BHEMRERAR  BIFZFEE
RA—ED - BEREEERRAHIE
BREMRBRIHER  FILBZSEE
RABAE - FiA HAb & ERARNE
4 R R o

ik
FUBHGR S A B AR D B &
Cl#H#E TABEAZBNOSERRE
& - A EMBN N EAKEHE
#) o

AEBEER/HBEA
rEMENHES WANEREERER
RARBEREER - ERRTHHTE
HERZEENTRERERFTAEE
BEMKREE  YRBERRRERE
R AR o

REBEREBEA
KEHEBRTENESAENER
HARZENBEHEANER - TR EE
EEREMEZ AR EENE
BEB oy
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
period in which the associated services are rendered by
employees.

Defined contribution scheme

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independent administered fund.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the employees of
the Group's entities established in the PRC are required
to participate in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by local governments. Contributions to those
plans are expensed as incurred and other than these
monthly contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement benefits to its
employees.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amounts of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and prior
periods. The obligation is calculated using the projected
unit credit method and discounted to its present value
and after deducting the fair value of any related assets,
including those retirement scheme benefit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Taxation

164

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, any deferred tax arising from initial
recognition of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or 10ss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates and the tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax
losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Related parties

@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the holding
company of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third-party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Related parties (continued)

(t)

166

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a holding company of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the
holding company of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(@ that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided to
the Group's chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of services, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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Year ended 31 December 2017
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis and
are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The management determines the estimated useful lives
of the Group's property, plant and equipment based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of the
relevant assets of similar nature and functions. The
estimated useful lives could be different as a result of
technical innovations which could affect the related
depreciation charges included in profit or loss.

5.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

168

Intangible assets and amortisation

The management determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group's intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite, based on the expected
usage and technical obsolescence from the changes in
the market demands or services output from the assets.
Intangible assets are not amortised when their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that
the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment. The Group may need to amortise
intangible assets in future periods or recognise
impairment losses on intangible assets if events and
circumstances indicate that the useful life is not
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised over the expected useful economic lives and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible assets may be impaired.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

5.

()

(d)

Impairment of non-current assets, excluding
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and goodwill

Non-current assets excluding intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and goodwill are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation/amortisation, where
appropriate, and impairment losses. These carrying
amounts are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the non-current
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
estimating the recoverable amounts of the non-current
assets, various assumptions, including future cash flows
to be associated with the non-current assets and
discount rates, are made. If future events do not
correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable
amounts will need to be revised, and this may have an
impact on the Group's results of operations or financial
position.

Impairment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

Determining whether intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives of the Group are impaired requires an
estimation of recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units to which intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives have been allocated, which is the higher of the
related fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
The calculations require the management to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the recoverable amounts.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

(8

170

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected cash
flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates used
to calculate the recoverable amount are given in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

Allowance for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the condition of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and
makes allowance for inventories that are identified as
obsolete, slow-moving or no longer recoverable or
suitable for use in production. The Group carries out the
inventory review on a product-by-product basis and
makes allowances by reference to the latest market
prices and current market conditions.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation by management of the
collectability of loan receivables, trade and other
receivables. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including assessing the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. If the financial conditions of these debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowance will be required.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

5.

(h)

Impairment of investments and receivables
The Group assesses annually if investments in
subsidiaries, associate and joint venture have suffered
any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 and follows
the guidance of HKAS 39 in determining whether
amounts due from these entities and available-for-sale
financial assets measured at cost less impairment are
impaired. Details of the approach are stated in the
respective accounting policies.

The assessment requires an estimation of future cash
flows, including expected dividends from the assets and
the selection of appropriate discount rates. Future
changes in financial performance and position of these
entities would affect the estimation of impairment loss
and cause the adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Contingent consideration in acquisition of
subsidiary

Certain business acquisition of the Group has involved
post-acquisition performance-based contingent
considerations. HKFRS 3 (Revised) is effective
prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
The Group follows the requirement of HKFRS 3 (Revised)
to recognise the fair value of those contingent
considerations for acquisition, as of the respective
acquisition date as part of the consideration transferred
in exchange for the acquired subsidiary. These fair value
measurements require, among other things, significant
estimation of post-acquisition performance of the
acquired subsidiary and significant judgment on time
value of money. Contingent considerations shall be
remeasured at their fair value resulting from events or
factors emerging after the acquisition date, with any
resulting gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income in accordance with
HKFRS 3 (Revised).

5.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. XEGFEFTRHME#)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty st THBEZENETERIR (&)

(Continued)

(i) cContingent consideration in acquisition of (i) WEHBARWRAREE)
subsidiary (Continued)
The contingent consideration reflects a specified multiple HAREREBARUEMME QBRI
of the post-acquisition financial profitability of the BrRUBABEMNZETES Bt &
acquired subsidiary. Consequently, the actual additional BRERESNE S R E S S IR IR W U EE I
consideration payable may vary according to the future BARZARRKRRME L - A EE
performance of the acquired subsidiary, and the liabilities B R E R RERBREF -

provided reflect estimates of such future performances.

6. TURNOVER 6. B
Turnover from operation represents the aggregative of gross KELXEBELEEERE  RHBER
sales proceeds from disposal of trading of investments, % REeRCLRBERE - RitEE
provision of financing services, provision of financial brokerage REBRERE HOAEERTESLRERE
and related services, provision of medical and laboratory mARBERNRR NN MEBEMAA
services, franchisor and retail of mother-infant-children 1SIHE RRIELRTE o
products, and manufacture of infant formula and nutritional
products.

172

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017
) e e R el S E R [

7. OPERATING INCOME 7. RBEWA
Operating income recognised from the principal activities of REBREAEERARLL Y FBEK(DIEE
the Group during the year including trading of investments, ELE EMBERE  EHAREAR

provision of financing services, provision of financial brokerage
and related services, provision of medical and laboratory

HBRERY  REBELRERERS

services, franchisor and retail of mother-infant-children BABELTEFREER  RERHR
products, manufacture of infant formula and nutritional EC T3 90 B & B B m DA SR B HE IR PR,
products, and investment holding is as follows: ZIEEWANT
2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
T
Brokerage commission income from: KRS ARE :
— securities dealing —BHFEE 21,281 18,485
— underwriting and placing commission — — &84 &R EREMS KA
income 3,784 7,608
Commission income and supporting BFrHENEEERN
service income from concessionaire & WA R ZIEREUWA
sales of mother-infant-child products 90,978 -
Financial advisory fee income EA TS RAR B U A 4,187 100
Margin facility and loan facility handling HFRBERERHHE
fee income FHEBRA 1,884 4,760
Medical consultation and laboratory BEEDARERERERA
services income 143,227 23,651
Franchisor and retail sales of BFrEakTEEEER
mother-infant-child products 2,419,885 -
Rental income from sub-lease of premises #1% 5 &I £ U A 914 -
Gain/(loss) from the sale of financial assets H&#R AT E AEE 2
at fair value through profit or loss, net* BB EWES (Ei8) 58 * 14,424 (74,535)
Dividend income from financial assets WAFEFABZZYBEE
at fair value through profit or loss S ON 17 31,874
Interest income from: FRWARE :
— margin financing —HFEME 49,181 33,014
— financial assets at fair value through —RAVEABERZ
profit or loss M EE = 982
— loan receivables from third parties —ERE=FEX 107,111 20,562
— loan receivables from a non-controlling — fEY—ZKHIE A 7]
shareholder of a subsidiary FEIERR AR R 2 B 10,611 -
Manufacture and sale of infant formula Bl R E B BTN
and nutritional products REBER 32,954 -
2,900,438 66,501
e Represented the proceeds from the sale of financial assets at * BHERATFEFABRZMBEENS
fair value through profit or loss of HK$835,712,000 (2016: X 18 835,712,000 (= F — N F -
HK$312,996,000) less relevant costs and carrying value of the 312,996,000 7T ) BARRA AKX 28 )R B & BF
financial assets sold of HK$821,288,000 (2016. HK$387,531,000). 7% & B ® IR M {8.821,288,0008 7T ( = F

— N 1 387,531,000/ 7T) °
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8. OTHER INCOME Hiblr A
2017 2016
—E—+tF —TE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FATT
Interest income from financial institutions 5 g 4 Bt A 2 U A 15,881 1,569
Management and handling fee income EELFEBIA 6,734 2,727
Others HAt 973 18
23,588 4,314
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION PEHER
The management has been identified as the chief operating EHERIELERKE ERFEERE
decision makers to evaluate the performance of operating E¥BHENRNTRRETE  GEEBHH T
segments and to allocate resources to those segments based RERPEEBHHBHER - ERERE
on the Group's internal reporting in respect of these segments. EERE RHEBREBERE  RHEemEL
The management considers trading of investments, provision MR - REBERERERS -
of financing services, provision of financial brokerage and TEERTENLEER  RELRES
related services, provision of medical and laboratory services, P REBEMARKREER I AERE
franchisor and retail of mother-infant-children products, BEBHE - DEERIEESEH D B
manufacture of infant formula and nutritional products and B0 S E A R ETE o
investment holding are the Group’s major operating segments.
Segment results represent the profit earned or loss incurred by
each segment.
174
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9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Operating segments of the Group comprise the following:

Trading of investments

Provision of financing
services

Provision of financial
brokerage and
related services

Provision of medical
and laboratory
services

Franchisor and retail
of mother-infant-
children products

Manufacture of infant

formula and
nutritional products

Investment holding

Purchase and sale of securities

Provision of loan financing
services

Dealing in securities, provision
of securities, commodities
and bullion brokerage
services and financial
advisory services

Provision of medical
consultation and laboratory
services relating to assisted
reproductive technology

Managing franchise and
operating retail stores of
mother-infant-children
products

Development and manufacture
and sale of infant milk
formula products, and
supplement and organic
nutrition products

Holding investments for
dividend and investment
income and capital
appreciation
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DHFERE)
(@) Segment turnover (@) DEEERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover by REBZEEDHEI D 2 EEBHN
operating segments: NN

Franchisor
Provision  Provision  and retail Manufacture
of financial  of medical  of mother-  of infant
Provision  brokerage and infant-  formula and
Trading of of financing ~ and related laboratory children  nutritional  Investment

investments services services services  products  products holding  Unallocated
RteR  RUBR  GTEER  RERYS
BeR  RERZ ZEREE REAER
EERE RUMERE  HERE it Em  SEER  REER AR Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TER TER Tn TEn T#r TEn TEn T#n TEn

Year ended 31 December 2017~ BE-F-+tE+-B=t-R
LEE
Segment turnover AREER 835,729 119,076 78,963 143221 2511777 32,954 - - 311726

Franchisor
Provision Provision ~ and retall
offinancial  of medical  of mother-
Provision  brokerage and infant-
Tradingof  offinancing ~ andrelated  laboratory children— Investment
investments Services Services Services products holding ~ Unallocated

. 3 AR
HS000  HKS000  HKS'000 HS000  HKS'000
BT BT THT ) BT

Yearended 31 December 2016 HE=5-AE
tZAZT-ALEE
Segment turnover PHERE 315,703 232 41,167 23,651 - 119 - 154032
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEERE)
(b) Segment income and results (b) DEBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s income and REEZREEDFE D 2 WA KREE
results by operating segments: SITEINNT

Franchisor
Provision  Provision  and retail Manufacture
of financial  of medical  of mother-  of infant
Provision  brokerage and infant-  formula and
Trading of of financing ~ and related  lahoratory children  nutritional  Investment

investments services  services  sevices  products  products  holding  Unallocated
RfteR WiEER R4S
REME ASERAE REBER SERRE  EANHR
ERRE % B%  RRZRH Em  EEER  REER RAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
T T Thn Thn Thn Thn Tin Thn

Year ended 31 December 2017~ BE=F-tE+-B=t-R

LEE

Segment income 2HBA 14,441 119,076 78,963 143221 2511777 32,954 - - 2900438
Profit/oss) for the year before RUTEEAZ R

following tems BHl/(B8) : 15,051 10473 (16791) 42755 185792 n 7624 3206 248521
Gain/loss) ondisposal of property, &N BEREEL

plant and equipment b3/ (B8 - - 64 302 (365) - - - 1
Impairment loss on available-forsale  AIEHEEKEE L

financial assets HEEE = = = = = = (5,538) = (5,538)
Finance costs RERA - (4,438) (2,359) - (15,579) (28) (9,299) - (31,703)
Share of results of associate EiEBEAREE - - - 6,019 - - - - 6,019
Profit/oss) from operation BEER/ (5R) 15,051 6,035 (19,086) 49,076 169,848 343 (71213) 3246 217,300
Loss on measurement of contingent RS AR BRI EEE

consideration payable - - - - (129,899 - - - (129,899)
Profit/oss) before taxation BT/ (BB) 15,051 6,035 (19,086) 49,076 39,949 343 (7,213) 3,246 87,401
Income tax expense RS (11,000) (500) 2,694 (6,712) (45,303) (110) - - (60,931)
Segment results PHEE 4,051 5535 (16,392) 42,364 (5,354) 233 1,213 3,246 26,470
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment income and results (continued)

178

Trading of
investments

Provision
of financing
Services

HK$'000
AL

Provision
of financial
(GIE
and related
Services

HK$ 000
ThL

DEER (#)
(b)

Franchisor

Provison ~ and retall
ofmedical  of mother-
and infant-
[aboratory children
Services products

[

HK§000
Tin

HK$000
TR

Investment
holding

HK$'000
THL

7 B R 34 (4

Unallocated

AR
HK$'000
AT

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE=F-A%
TZR=t-ALEE

Segment income AHUA (41,828) 23362 61,167 23651 - 149 - 66,501
(Loss)/profit for the year before BRUTEERZER

following items: (BR)/%7: (731,834) 11938 (145,285) 6,513 = (53376) (3405) (115,409
Write off of property, plant and WsEng  BERARE

equipment - - (5230 S = = = (3232
(Gain on disposal of interests in HENBRAER Ka

subsidaries - S = = - 3700 - S0
Gain arising from changes in SERARERRELY

shareholding n associates i - S = = - 3233 - 3233
Impairment |oss on availeble- ARLEREEEL

for-sae financial assets HEER e = = = - (59 - (B35
mpaimentlossongoodwiland ~ HEREFEEZRESE

Intangible assets S S (68,695) = = = S (68,695)
Finance costs BERK - 2.210) (2,426) - S (9,199) = (13838)
Share of resuls of associates EltBEATLE s . = . - (B - B
(Loss)profit before taxation B (BR) /%7 731834 97 (2168 6513 A G5 (928%)
Income tax credit/fexpense) FEkEe/(Bx) - 0 2758 () - - = 2310
Segment results AREE (731,834 9734 (218,880) 6,085 - 147,804 (3405 (790498)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment income and results (continuead)

Segment income reported above represents income
generated from external customers. There was no inter-
segment income in both years.

Income and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to income generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation/
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
Note 4(t) to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment results represent the results achieved by each
segment without allocation of central administration
costs including directors’ emoluments. This is the
measurement method reported to the chief operating
decision makers for the purpose of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance.
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DHFERE)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (c) »HBEERAE
An analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by TEEMEERBEREED IO
operating segments is set out below. (U

Franchisor
Provision  Provision and retail Manufacture
of financial ~ of medical  of mother- of infant
Provision  brokerage and infant-  formula and
Trading of offinancing andrelated  laboratory ~ children  nutritional  Investment

investments  services  services  sewices  products  products  holding
Rited BHEEL  BEEHR
RiRE gy REEER SEREE  EAMRR
BERE % GERE  ERERE ER  EEER  REBR &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THR TET TET T#R THT TET TET

At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+-A=1-H

Assets before following items: iU FEECEE - 791,547 1,383,369 807,418 268,548 1,257,673 224,628 1,132,002 5,365,185
Interest n an associate R-FHELA ER - - - 202%5 - - - 2023%
Goodwill BE - - 26,587 183,296 267,276 339,639 - 816,798
Segment assets PHEE 791547 1,383,369 834,005 672,079 1,524,949 564,267 1,132,002 6,902,218
Unallocated assets AAREE 891,530
Total assets aEE 7,793,748
Liabilities 8&

Segment liabilities Rl (11,119) (50,638)  (118,250) (46,576)  (906,956)  (105,785) (30,127)  (1,269,451)
Unallocated liabilties FoReR (31,454)
Total liabilities gtk (1,300,905)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017
) e e R el S E R [

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. TWERE)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (c) PHEEREEH)

Franchisor
and retail
of mother-
infant-
children

Provision  Provision
of financial  of medical
brokerage and
and related  laboratory
services services

Provision
Trading of ~ of financing
investments  services

Investment
holding

RARR

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TAT AL TAT
At 31 December 2016 RIE-XAE

+=A=t+-R

Assets before following items: K LA T&EZ&EE 482,205 900861 664813 235506 1026875 959828 4,270,148
Goodwil S - - 26587 18329 265515 - 4753%
Segment assets PEEE 482205 900861 691400 418842 1292390 959,828 4745546
Unallocated assets RAMAE 296,731
Total assets BEE 5,042,277
Liabilities 8
Segment liabilities HHEE - B023M) (412000 (@4277) (1,067646)  (28192) (1,483,649
Unallocated liabilities =N (5,550)
Total liabilities BaE (1,489,199)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and REREBHBRERTHEBLSE
allocating resources between segments: Mz ERDHE
. Segment assets include mainly all property, plant . NHEEETSRIEFMBYE -

and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, interest
in an associate, available-for-sale financial assets,

BEIE&E BVEE B
B REBERR 2R A

deferred tax assets, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, inventories, loans
receivables, other non-current deposits paid and
prepayments, trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash. All assets
are allocated to operating segments other than
unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables, amount due to an associate, interest-

HEMBEE BEREE
ZE BRVEFABSEZHH
BE HFE BRUER ERN
H A IR BT SR S FRAN SRR
B 5 REMEWHIE - ©HEH
RITFER - ROTERERE -
BizEBAEETEM A2 BN
BEBREEEEN MBEE
BDBEERBDE

DHBERREE S MEMEN
OB~ A — R QAR

bearing borrowings, finance lease liabilities, tax B irEER BMEHEER
payables, deferred tax liabilities and contingent £ ERBER EEHEEE

consideration payable. All liabilities are allocated to
operating segments other than unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

REMHRNKE - RIREBE
EEEMADENBIREE
BB MERBEHIRER

B ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRMTE

Year ended 31 December 2017
o IS [ P A == B T

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEERE)
(d) Other segment information (d) HihpHBER

Franchisor
Provision  Provision  and retail Manufacture
offinancial ~ of medical  of mother- of infant
Provision  brokerage and infant-  formula and
Tradingof of financing and related  laboratory children  nutritional  Investment

investments Services services services  products  products holding  Unallocated
RiteR KHBER  HERHR
RitHE B8R RHEER SESBE  EAHER
RERE BE  ABRE ERERE Em  9EEm  REER AR &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TEn Thn Thn Thn Thn Tén Tén TEn

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE=F-tE+=B=t-§
5B

Additions of specified non-current ETEnRBEEEN

assets* = = 17,903 83 10,217 582,903 = 3,165 614,271
Amortisation of intanglole assets BYEERS = - (16,886) = (5,436) (6,862) = = (29,184)
Depreciation of property, % BRERERIE

plant and equipment - - (4,662) (807) (9,241 (755) - (1,326) (16,791)
Interest income included in SABERARERIALD

operating income and other income  F|SUMA 3 - 1,105 1 - 3 4,256 999 15,362
Provision for allowance for REREHRTE

doubtful debts, net - - (4,169) (128) = S = = (4,297)
Net fair value gain on financial assets & {EBEEKEE 2

feld for trading NTEIETE 75,900 = = = = = = = 75,900
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017
) e e R el S E R [

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEERE)
(d) Other segment information (continued) (d) HitpEER (&)

Franchisor
Provision ~ Provision  andretail Manufacture
offinancial ~ of medical  ofmother- of infant
Provision  brokerage and infant-  formula and
Tradingof offinancing  andrelated  laboratory ~ children  nutritional ~ Investment
investments ~ Services  Services  Services  products  products holding - Unallocated
R4S #345

RENE i Em mo R AR
HKF000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'O00  HKS'000
TERL TERL BT TERL Th TEx A AT

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ-5-~F
TZA=+-ALEE

Addtions of specified non-curent £ RBAEL M

assets* = = 211,660 388,573 774,710 = = 868 1,375,811
Amortisation of intanglble assets &R AR S - (1480 = S S S - (1480)
Depreciation of property, 0% BELRENE

plant and equipment - - (2,79) (512) - - - (647) (3955)
Interest income included in STAEEWARE AR

operating incorne and FIEHA

other income 83 20,562 34478 - - = 251 1 5,127
Provision for allowance for RERBHRIE

doubtful debts, net - - (98,354) (N - - - - (98,359)
Net fair value loss on financial 5 EEEHKEE L

assets held for trading LTEEESE (689,657) - - - - - - - (689657)
L Including additions of property, plant and equipment, * PEEENFEBRENBARIRE

intangible assets and goodwill directly or through M BELERE BREENRSE
acquisition of subsidiaries. &o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRMTE

Year ended 31 December 2017
o IS [ P A == B T

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DHFERE)
(e) Geographical information (e) HWEER
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's TR AEEREBAEEH KA
operating income from external customers by locations INBRP 2 EIRARIREENE 2
of operations and non-current assets (excluding financial DZIERBEE(TEESRIAR
instruments and deferred tax assets) by locations of BEFIBEE) ([FBEFRBEE])
assets (“Specified non-current assets”): 2T

Operating income from

external customers Specified non-current assets
REIBEF 2 KEWA EEFRBEE

2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF —E—t5F S ANCS

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FABT TH T FATT

Hong Kong BB 355,707 66,501 1,219,163 516,969

PRC F 2,511,777 S 326,463 775,027

Australia SEM 32,954 - 540,443 -

2,900,438 66,501 2,086,069 1,291,996

(f) Information about major customers H FEEFEFZEHR
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no HEZT—tFRZF—XRF+A
operating income from a single customer of the Group =ET+—HIEFE  SiEKEAEEE
accounted for over 10% of total revenue of the Group. —EP AR AR E B AR
10% A | o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017
) e e R el S E R [

10. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRBIADEF,(&E)
This is stated after charging: LB TAIIER -
2017 2016
—E —Z— N5
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T F&TT
Finance costs il BR A
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMERZFE 31,703 13,838
Other items Hig g
Staff costs BIKA(TBREESEHH)
(excluding directors” emoluments)
Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind  #& 2R REYWRZE 198,443 53,908
Contributions to defined contribution TEBRE FURIRET B 3K
retirement schemes 2,254 1,485
200,697 55,393
Auditor’s remuneration (including other ZEMN e (BIEEMEAER
audit fee, primarily in respect of audits (FEHRNBRRFBHIHRE
of financial statements of subsidiaries) EirE#E)) 4,300 2,910
Write off of intangible assets EEEMHE - 3
Operating lease payments on equipment 38 > &8 &7 4 & 147 19
Operating lease payments on premises BF2EL2HEHNER 63,427 20,489
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRMTE

Year ended 31 December 2017
o IS [ P A == B T
11. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS 11.

The emoluments received or receivable by the Company’s
directors are as follows:

ESME
ARBEECWHER ZBENT -

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE_Z-—tHF+-A=+t-HLEFE

Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’  and benefits retirement
fees in kind schemes Total
15 4294 EHMR
Esne ENRE  BRAGTEHEN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TR
Executive directors BTEZ
Chang Tat Joel L pe i - 7,286 18 7,304
Ko Po Ming 2EH - 34,320 18 34,338
Lui Choi Yiu, Angela EPuS 240 2,320 18 2,578
Man Wai Chuen XEFRIE—tF
(resigned on 24 May 2017) AAZTMHET) 115 - - 115
Fu Yau Ching Shirley RXBRZFE—LF
(appointed on 24 May 2017) AAZTHNBEZRT) 145 1,544 12 1,701
Non-executive directors FBTES
Hui Mei Mei, Carol TR 260 - - 260
Tong Tang Joseph BE 260 - - 260
Independent non-executive BIYFHTES
directors
Lam Yiu Kin Kenneth (resigned on ~ #MIBER (RZZE—+4F
24 May 2017) AAZTMHET) 115 - - 115
Tian Ren Can B{g 260 - - 260
Yuen Kwok On (resigned on REAZ(R-FT—+4F
3luly 2017) +A=REHE) 142 - - 142
Kan Lai Kuen Alice EERB(R-_2—tF
(appointed on 24 May 2017) AAZTHNBEZRT) 145 - - 145
Chen Wai Chung Edmund BEE(R-S—+tF
(appointed on 3 July 2017) +A=ZBEZT) 119 - - 119
1,801 45,470 66 47,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE

I+ F+ZA=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2016

11.

Directors’
fees

Eshe
HK$'000
TRR

£ AC))
BE-F-AF+-A=+-ALFE

Contributions

to defined

contribution

and benefits retirement
in kind schemes Total

& E2RK EREMHER
BEWAE  BAGEHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT TART TERT

Salaries,
allowances

Executive directors HTES
Chang Tat Joel (appointed on BEE(R=T—1F

8 September 2016) NANBEZRE) = 1,884 6 1,890
Cheung Ka Yee (resigned on FRE(RIZ—REF

26 April 2016) A=+ BEE) - - - -
Cheung Wing Ping REF(RZE—RF

(resigned on 8 September 2016) NANBEHE) 165 = = 165
Ko Po Ming (appointed on BERRZT—~F

8 September 2016) NANBEZR) - 5,876 6 5,882
Lui Choi Yiu, Angela EUk(R-T—R%F

(appointed on 26 April 2016) MAZ+ BEZE) 163 898 13 1,074
Man Wai Chuen NEF 240 - - 240
Zhang Yongdong FXR(RZB—AF

(resigned on 26 April 2016) MA =+ BE) 77 = 4 81
Non-executive directors 3F$MT§$
Hui Mei Mei, Carol FHBm(N=E—AE

(appointed on 5 October 2016) +ARREZMT) 57 - = 57
Tong Tang Joseph EE 163 - - 163
Xia Xiaoning (resigned on EBEE(RZZ—RF

19 September 2016) NATHBEHME) 172 - - 172
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Antonio Maria Santos HEE(RZE—RF

(resigned on 26 April 2016) MA =+ HE) 77 S S 77
Lam YiuKin PR 240 - - 240
Tian Ren Can ACE(RZE—RF

(appointed on 26 April 2016) MA=-+ BEZT) 163 = - 163
Yuen Kwok On REZ 240 - - 240

1,757 8,658 29 10,444

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration. In addition, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to any directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

BHE-_Z—tFR-_ZE—X~"F+=A
E+—H¢¢§-ﬁﬁ%$m%&ﬁ R
EAMMMEOLEE N BHE_T—+
FR-Z—RNF+_A=+— Eiif
AEBRERATRNEE TS AR K
SEMAREBSAEAMARE B LEE) K
BERGAHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRMTE

Year ended 31 December 2017
o IS [ P A == B T

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. EEEREHAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year FRN - AEBRERETATBEERSA(Z
included two (2016: three) directors, details of whose E-—NF=ZH)EE  BREZHFMNFEH
remunerations are in Note 11 to the consolidated financial RERE M BMEWEN - FR - 2 =F
statements. Details of the remunerations of the remaining (ZF—RNF &) EaF AT (GERAT
three (2016: two) highest paid individuals, who are not a BEER)Z2HMOT

director of the Company, for the year are as follows:

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind %% ~ ZEEREWH = 10,970 2,534
Contributions to defined contribution TE BB FURRET IR
retirement schemes 53 26
11,023 2,560
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BE 2 FHMN T IATEE :
2017 2016
—E—REF
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
A A&
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 7T £ 1,500,000 7% 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2= 3,000,000 7% 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £ 3,500,000,8 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T £ 4,000,000 7% 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 78 7T 2 4,500,000 7% 75 1 -
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Ra B RARM

Year ended 31 December 2017
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13. TAXATION 13. BiE
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% FA - BENEHREAEEREETE ZGE
(2016: 16.5%) on the Group’s estimated assessable profit St E AR BRI A165%( = F — N F
arising from Hong Kong during the year. 16.5%) 2 T e L st o
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax rate of the Company’s REAR RRABIRFREENRB RGN
subsidiaries operating in the PRC during the year was 25% PR A DERSHREAEERBEF
(2016: 25%) on its taxable profits. #)25% (= F —N4F 1 25%) °
Australian Income Tax rate of the Company’s subsidiary RER RABIRBMNEENKBARHN
operating in Australia during the year was 30% on its taxable SEOMFT SRR R A H PR ER B )& 7 89 30% o
profits.
The major components of the income tax expense for the year FEMESHAIHFTEEANIHOT

are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER T
Current tax BN HASL 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH
Current year provision RFEHEAE 7,404 610
Over provision in prior year BT EREERE = (30)
7,404 580
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax B2 TS E
Current year provision REFEE 45,851 -
Australian Income Tax SN ET SRR
Current year provision REE R 1,939 -
55,194 580
Deferred taxation ERERIE
Reversal of deductible/(taxable) ATHIR, (FERH ) ERS b =58
temporary differences, net (Note 37) FE 2B (A 31) 5,737 (2,920)
Tax expense/(credit) for the year FABREBEASZ(ER) 60,931 (2,340)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE-ZT—+F+-A=1+—BIFE
13.

14.

TAXATION (Continued)

13.

Reconciliation of income tax expense/(credit)

BIR (#)

FrgBipas (%) Hik

2016
AN S

HK$'000
THETT

Profit/(loss) before taxation BREERE A (E518) 87,401 (792,836)
Income tax at applicable tax rate #16.5% (=ZF—NF : 16.5%)

of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) ZEABERGFE 2 EH 14,422 (130,818)
Difference of domestic tax rate Wi EZR 17,767 -
Non-deductible expenses AATHOBR X 21,434 164,191
Tax exempt revenue TRIER R (5,962) (66,945)
Unrecognised tax losses RNERIBEE 14,305 27,728
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BABARERZ

tax losses FIAEE = (87)
Effect of share of results of associates JE(EEt S N R EE & (993) 3,951
Over provision of previous year BEFEBRERE = (30)
Others Eh (42) (330)
Tax expense/(credit) for the year FARBHYT,(ER) 60,931 (2,340)

DIVIDEND

14.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment

of dividend for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

Year ended 31 December 2017

w2

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15.
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company and the weighted
average number ordinary shares in issue during the year as
follows:

Loss B8
Loss for the purpose of basic loss MEREAREENS 258
per share

BREE
FREABBIVIETFARNAREREEGA
FEMRESIE R B BT LR 2 &Gt
Hinw

2017 2016

—E —E—REFE

HK$°000
FTERT

HK$'000
THETT

(53,160)

(472,022)

Number of shares iidvip: gE|
Weighted average number of ordinary — Ei@AR 2~ iNiE 58
shares for the purpose of basic loss (MBRERBEmMS)

per share

2017
—E—tfF
No. of shares
RHEE

'000
FK

2016

= —RF

No. of shares
eenEEeE]
‘000

T

(Restated)
(#&E2l|)

42,385,091 20,243,791

The number of ordinary shares for the purposes of calculating
basic loss per share has been retrospectively adjusted for the
rights issue and bonus issue as disclosed in Note 33 as if the
shares had been in issue throughout both years.

The diluted loss per share are the same as basic 10ss per share
as there are no dilutive potential shares for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016. The denominator used are the same
for both basic and diluted loss per share.

AEEBRERNEEMANTBERBEEH
AR M AT B 3 1T R BRI RE33) fEH 3B
SR BRI E R MIEFEANETT o

ER#EEEFERESRELNESEBRER  RE
RHEZZ—tERZFE—X"FT+ZA
=St+—HAIEFETEEEEERG - T E
BREAREEEEBMANS AR -
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Year ended 31 December 2017
o IS [ P A == B T

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - BERRE

Leasehold
improvements

BENEEE

HK$'000
57

Furniture
and fixtures

BRREE
HK$'000

I S
27T

Computer
and office
equipment
BER
BAERE
HK$'000

I S
27T

Medical
equipment

BRRE
HKS'000
TAL

Motor
vehicles

HE
HK$'000
TAT

Total

Ax

=]
HK$'000
FHT

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017

Reconciliation of carrying FHEHE —

amount — year ended Hz-Z-—%&

31 December 2016 TZA=+—BLEE
At the beginning of the REHBHY

reporting period 494 535 840 - - 1,869
Additions NE 4,808 914 1,689 150 - 7,561
Additions — acquisition of NE — WERB AR

subsidiaries (Note 35(@)&(b)) (15 35(3) % b)) 18,707 5,657 6,853 2,430 2,351 35,998
Write off ks (4,381) (189) (662) S S (6.232)
Depreciation e (1,061) (463) (2,186) (245) - (3,955)
Atthe end of the reporting period R 2REILER 18,567 6,454 6,534 2,335 2,351 36,241
Reconciliation of carrying FEEHE —

amount — year ended HEZ-E2-t%

31 December 2017 +ZA=+-ALEE
At the beginning of the REHBH

reporting period 18,567 6,454 6,534 2,335 2,351 36,241
Additions NE 9,562 2,476 10,428 63 1,534 24,063
Additions — acquisition of NE — WEHRB AR

subsidiaries (Note 35(a) (it 35@) - 1,070 12,671 - 2,627 16,368
Disposals HE (218) (163) (33) (330) (60) (804)
Depreciation e (7,125) (3,868) (4,310) (598) (890) (16,791)
Exchange relignment EHAE 674 590 (72) - 145 1,337
Atthe end of the reporting ~ REHHLER

period 21,460 6,559 25,218 1,470 5,707 60,414
At January 2017 RZE—+%-A—-H
Cost A 19,707 6,965 8,593 2,580 2,351 40,196
Accumulated depreciation 2:HE (1,140) (511) (2,059) (245) - (3,955)
Net carrying amount FRETSE 18,567 6,454 6,534 2,335 2,351 36,241
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+f

+=A=+-H
Cost A 29,051 10,348 31,659 2,313 6,452 79,823
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (7,591) (3,789) (6,441) (843) (745) (19,409)
Net carrying amount FEETE 21,460 6,559 25,218 1,470 5,707 60,414
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Year ended 31 December 2017
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BEREE

Customer
Licenses and Computer
and trading franchisee software
Brand names rights  Trademarks relationships and systems Total

REERH kG
mEEE BRREEE BE  SEEEE &S af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT TR TR TR

Reconciliation of carrying FREHE—

amount — year ended HEz-_Z—&

31 December 2016 +ZA=+-RL%EE
At the beginning of the REFH

reporting period = - - - - -
Additions — acquisition of NE — KEHB AR

subsidiaries (Note 35()&(b)) (B 358 & b)) 640,811 21,774 145 94,042 32,59 789,368
Write off HisH S = = S Q) Q)
Amortisation B - - - (13,846) (1,004) (14,850)
Impairment loss BEEE = S = (1,209) - (1,209)
Atthe end of the reporting period - REREEER 640,811 21,774 145 78,987 31,589 773,306
Reconciliation of carrying REEzHER—

amount — year ended BE-E-t5+

31 December 2017 “A=t-HLFE
At the beginning of the REFBY

reporting period 640,811 21,774 145 78,987 31,589 773,306
Additions RE = = = - 4,701 4,701
Additions — acquisition of NE —WERBAR

subsidiaries (Note 35()) (Bi7#35) 92,076 117,088 - 18,575 - 227,739
Amortisation ik (2,273) (4,130) (15) (18,977) (3,789) (29,184)
Exchange relignment R A (475) (614) 9 (95) 2,204 1,029
At the end of the reporting REHRBLER

period 730,139 134,118 139 78,490 34,705 977,591
At 1 January 2017 RZT—t&—f—H
Cost A 640,811 21,774 145 94,042 32,593 789,365
Accumulated amortisation and REEHIAEER

impairment losses - - - (15,055) (1,004) (16,059)
Net carrying amount REETH 640,811 21,774 145 78,987 31,589 773,306
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tf

+=A=+-8

Cost A 732,429 138,279 155 112,525 39,619 1,023,007
Accumulated amortisation and REEHAERR

impairment losses (2,290) (4,161) (16) (34,035) (4,914) (45,416)
Net carrying amount BREEFE 730,139 134,118 139 78,490 34,705 977,591
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Year ended 31 December 2017
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18. GOODWILL 18. &
The amounts of goodwill capitalised by the Group and AAEEE AW RERA TR R #E
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position ROEE(BRENBARES) 2&EN

-

arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries are as follows:

2016
—ZE—RF

HK$'000
TAT

Cost R
At 1 January R—H—H 542,884 -
Acquired through business combinations %8 ¥ 554 G U B (A5 35(a))

(Note 35(a)) 341,400 542,884
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 884,284 542,884
Accumulated impairment losses Z5HREEE
At 1 January ®—A—AH (67,486) =
Impairment losses recognised in the year FAF RIEZ AR (EE1E - (67,486)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H (67,486) (67,486)
Net carrying amount BREFE
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 816,798 475,398
Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the BEEL THRBEBEAREC XN ZRE
acquisitions effectively included amounts in relation to the BEEERFEERN REMHERR
benefit of revenue growth, future market development and the HEBBHNHFIE -  ZENRTAREHE
assembled workforce. These benefits are not recognised EBEER BARSUARFA UMM ER
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the BEZERZE  CEREEEITEE
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. None of PTG L HIR o

the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. BE#H)
The carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets was BEREBEEEZ RHEREEFLEES
allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to the REEAEECHAAIRCEEEMETT
nature of business as follows for impairment test: BRI

2017
—E—t&
Intangible Intangible
assets with assets with
indefinite finite

Goodwill useful life useful life
EREAFEH BREAEH
NELEE HWEREE

HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
Financial brokerage and © R4 AR AR TS
related services
— Securities — FE5 26,587 18,257 52,062
— Commodities — B - 3,517 -
Medical and laboratory services B2j& & & 5 = R 75 183,296 201,900 =
Franchisor and retail of mother- FFEL R EEREE
infant-children products Efh 267,276 438,911 43,252
Manufacture of infant formula #4582 47 B2 5 9540 &2
and nutritional products EEEM 339,639 - 219,692
816,798 662,585 315,006
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18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. BHE(#H)

2016
—E—RF
Intangible
assets with
indefinite

useful life
R A H
BWEEEE
HK$'000
FHIT

Intangible
assets with
finite

useful life
AR A
R & E
HK$'000
FATT

Financial brokerage and © R4 R ARRE AR 7S

related services

— Securities — FE5 26,587 18,257 68,875
— Commodities — M - 3,517 9
— Bullion —B5B - - 64
Medical and laboratory services 22#% & B B = IR 75 183,296 201,900 -

Franchisor and retail of mother- 53 HE N ZTELNEE
infant-children products B 265,515 438,911 41,773
475,398 662,585 110,721

Goodwill associated with the above businesses arose when the
business combinations were completed, details of which are
set out in Note 35(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs of securities brokerage
and related services, medical and laboratory services,
franchisor and retail of mother-infant-children products, and
manufacture of infant formula and nutritional products has
been determined by the value-in-use calculation. Cash flow
projections are based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the
5-year period have been extrapolated using a 3% long-term
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry.
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18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. BHE (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of the CGUs, and determined that the
goodwill associated with the CGUs of securities, commodities
and bullion brokerage and related services were impaired by
approximately HK$50,692,000, HK$16,554,000 and HK$240,000
respectively and the customer relationship included in
intangible assets associated with the CGU of commodities
brokerage and related services was impaired by HK$1,209,000
in light of keen competition in the market of the provision of
the financial brokerage and related services in Hong Kong and
the continuous reduction in the customer portfolio maintained
by the CGUs. The Group assessed the recoverable amount of
the CGUSs of securities, commodities and bullion brokerage and
related services exceeded their carrying amount as at 31
December 2017, accordingly, the related goodwill and
intangible assets were not impaired for the year.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs of medical and laboratory
business, the franchisor and retail of mother-infant-children
products, and manufacture of infant formula and nutritional
products based on value-in-use calculations exceeded their
carrying amount. Accordingly, the related goodwill and
intangible assets were not impaired for the year (2076 Nil).

HE-_Z—XE+-A=+—HILtEFE"
NEBEFHRESELEEMHATIRE S
TETES BakEBEERBUR
HERGSESELEUEBAIES
AR (B 49 50,692,000 7T + 16,554,000 7% 7T
K.240,00078 7T + BIETEE A 42 RABRA AR
BREELABVIEHENEENNEFH
BB 1,209,0005 T - TR EEBRES
A4 RRBRIS TS FHR A R &
ELBEUBARFPAABEYNR R-F
—+tF+=ZA=+—0  ~EEFHEES
BAomURkEeBEL RBERBRRECE
AEBEMAREeREEREREE - Bt
HEBEREREENFALERE -

RECHREEAENBERERETEXRR
THEERTEREEEMUNRERY
RESTPMEERERCASELEMY
A B SRR B R AR (E o H It - 187
HENEREERNFALRRE(CE A
FAE)
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BmE %)
FRHEEFEMAZEERR N

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18.
Key assumptions used for value-in-use

calculations are as follows:

T :

Franchisor
and retail Manufacture
Securities Medical of mother- of infant
brokerage and infant-  formula and
and related laboratory children nutritional
services services products products
HEBYR
RERLR BERERE BEER B % R
HHE AR k% ZERBREER EEEM
For the year ended BE-Z—tF
31 December 2017 +=A=+-—H
LHEE
Gross profit margin e B N/A FER 40%-92% 15.94% 54.30%
Average growth rate FHig R R 23.60% 10.20% 15.50% 44.90%
Long-term growth rate RHER X 2.60% 3% 3% 2.50%
Discount rate BRI &K 18.24% 13.50% 15.60% 15.20%
For the year ended BE-E—RFE
31 December 2016 +=ZH=+—-8
LEE
Gross profit margin EF = N/A TR 39.70%-91.70% 16.57% N/A 38 A
Average growth rate 44 R 30% 9.08% 14% N/A i A
Long-term growth rate REPER R 2.80% 3% 3% N/A A
Discount rate BRIR & 16.99% 13.40% 15.50% N/A T8 A

EEERBEBERAREBHNMSERE
EREENEK - fERZBRREXSHAR
REWRREEREELBM 2 ERR -

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin
based on past performance and its expectation of market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant CGUS.
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19. SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company
In the opinion of the management, a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and ZHBBEBRIE  MTREZINNRE
therefore the table below lists the principal subsidiaries at the RS EHEHASEXEESEENEESR
end of the reporting period which materially affect the results BARNEZFTEMBLAT -
or assets or liabilities of the Group.

19. MEBLA
KRR 2EENBARFE

ERERE BRTE2IIMEMEAR

Particulars of issued
and paid up ordinary
share capital
BEETRER
EERAZHE

Place of incorporation
and operation/type
of legal entity

SRR REE
EERRER

Name of subsidiaries Ownership interests Principal activities

FrEERR TEER
Group’s

effective
interest*

HEAR#R

Held by

the Held by
Company a subsidiary
HARE  HNEAR  AEEER
58 t=2o) ik

,
% % %

Blend and Pack Pty Ltd Australia/Limited 145,100 ordinary shares of - 75 75 Development, manufacture
("Blend & Pack”) liability company Australian dollar ("AUS") and sale of infant formula
B/ BRAR 345,661 fully paid and and nutritional products
with no par value % BEREERNT
145,100 % 345,661 27T ErimkeEEER
(TR &M
BEERR
Glorious Supreme Investments British Virgin 1 share of United States - 100 70 Provision of financing services
Management Limited Islands/Limited dollar ("US$") 1 each RERERS
liability company 1RER1ZET(EL)

RBRLES/ERRE WER

Mason Investment Management Hong Kong/Limited 1,000,000 shares of - 100 100 Provision of securities
Limited (formerly known liability company HK$1,000,000 advisory and asset
as Enerchine Investment B/ BRAT with no par value management services
Management Limited) 1,000,000 % REFFBRREAEEERY
("Enerchine”) 1,000,000 7T
KRBREERERAA EEEHRH
(IBREREERBRAR)
(TBZ])
Jubilant Link Limited British Virgin Islands/ 20,000 shares of - 55.02 55.02  Investment holding
("Jubilant Link") Limited liability company ~ US$1 each REER

rEERAR(RE)) EBRABE/BRAT  20000BER1ETHRS
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. B AR (&)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the ERATZEEMBLARFE @)
Company (Continued)

Place of incorporation  Particulars of issued
and operation/type and paid up ordinary
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity share capital Ownership interests Principal activities
AR REE L ERITRMRZ
WEA = &8 EEBRER EBRAZFE iir 4 35 TEXH
Held by Group’s
the Heldby effective
Company a subsidiary interest
HAAE  HKEAR g

BR ]

/ /.
% %

Hong Kong Mortgage Hong Kong/Limited 500 shares of HK$75,000,100 - 47 32.90 Investment holding
Solutions Limited ("HKMS") liability company with no par value (Note) REER
EREBeRRBEERAR BB/ ARAH 500 75,000,100 7T (W)
(I&#%E]) BEEENHKR
Leader Enterprise Limited Hong Kong/Limited 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 = 60 3301 Provision of medical
("Leader”) liability company no par value consultation services
EBLEERLAA(EE]) BB/ ARAH 10,000 10,000 % 7T R ERERRE
BEEENHRR
Mason Administrative Hong Kong/Limited 1 share of HK$1 = 100 100  Provision of administrative
Services Limited liability company with no par value services
KRBBEERAA B/ BRAR 1R ATERESRR RIS
(AIBRERBERAR)
Mason Bullion Limited Hong Kong/Limited 1,000,000 shares of - 100 100 Provision of bullion trading
("Mason Bullion”) liability company HK$1,000,000 with services
EReF¥ERAA(KREEE] B/ BRAF no par value RUESBEERE
(ABRELXARAT) 1,000,000 1,000,000 7T
EEEHRH
Mason Capital Investments British Virgin 1 share of US$1 and = 70 70 Investment holding
Limited ("MCIL") Islands/Limited 37,999,999 shares REZR
RIEEFREBRLA liability company of HK$37,999,999 with
(TEREX]) RBREAEE/ARAA no par value
1R ETERENHRH R
37,999,999k 37,999,999
BTREEENRS
Mason Capital Strategic British Virgin 1 share of US$1 - 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands/Limited with no par value REER
("Mason Capital Strategic”) liability company 1R 1 ETERBRNRN
AREARBERERAR RBREAEHE/ARAA
(IRREAREKR])
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Ccompany (Continued)

19. MR (a)
KRRz ETEMBARFE )

Place of incorporation Particulars of issued

Name of subsidiaries

MEAR &R

and operation/type
of legal entity
AR REE
EEERER

and paid up ordinary
share capital
ERITRMRZ
EBRAZFE

Ownership interests

il 4 3
Held by

the Held by

Company a subsidiary
HARAR HHREAR
B8 B

% %

Principal activities

Group’s
effective
interest*

FRERE

ik
%

Mason Financial Services Cayman Islands/ 130,000 shares of 100 - - Investment holding
Group Limited Limited liability US$1 each REER
KREREEERAF company 130,000 BB 1 E TR
HEHE,/ BRAR
Mason Futures Limited Hong Kong/Limited 100,000 shares of - 100 100 Provision of commodities
("Mason Futures") liability company HK$10,000,000 brokerage services
KRBEERARA(KRSHE]) BB/ ARAH with no par value REERSLRE
100,000 10,000,000 7
EEENHRR
Mason Resources Finance Hong Kong/Limited 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 = 100 100  Provision of financing service
Limited liability company with no par value REBERE
KEERMBERAA B/ BRAA 10,0001 10,0007 7T
EEENHRR
Mason Securities Limited Hong Kong/Limited 5,120,000 shares of - 100 100 Dealing in securities, provision
("Mason Securities”) liability company HK$512,000,000 of securities margin
KREHRBRAA B/ ARAH Wwith no par value financing and provision of
((RREH] 5,120,000 % investment corporate
512,000,000 finance aavisory services
EEENRR BEEEy RUESFAERE
IARRRREPERE
BRERY%
Mason Strategic Investments British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 S 100 100 Trading of investments
(Asia) Limited RERUES with no par value BERE
KRFBRE (TN ERAA 1R1ZETEREHRD
Nice Hill International Limited British Virgin 35,256,411 shares of = 100 100 Trading of investments
Islands/Limited US$1 each BERE
liability company 35,256,411 R BR1ETH
RBEIHE/ARAA Rfn
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. B AR (&)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the ERATZEEMBLARFE @)
Company (Continued)

Place of incorporation  Particulars of issued
and operation/type and paid up ordinary
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity share capital Ownership interests Principal activities
AR REE L ERITRMRZ
WEA = &8 EEBRER EBRAZFE iir 4 35 TEXH
Held by Group’s
the Heldby effective
Company a subsidiary interest
HAAE  HKEAR g

BR ]

/ /.
% %

Pioneer Leap Investments Samoa/Limited 1 share of US$1 - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited ("Pioneer Leap") liability company 0% 1 € TR REER
BRRABRNA([3#E]) EED/ARAR
Reproductive HealthCare Hong Kong/Limited 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 - 100 55.02  Provision of medical
Limited ("RHL") liability company with no par value consultation services
B/ BRAA 10,000 10,00037% REBEBERMRE
EEEHRR
Thomas Global Financial Hong Kong/Limited 27,500,000 shares of - 100 100 Provision of brokerage
Services Limited (formerly liability company HK$27,500,000 services
known as “Thomas Securities A%/ BRAF with no par value RS R
Company Limited”, 27,500,000 % 27,500,000 7T
“Thomas Global") BEEENHRR
RAEFRERERLR
(FIBARENZFBRAR -
[REER]))
Shining Time Holdings Limited British Virgin 10,000 shares of - 55 55 Investment holding
("Shining Time") Islands/Limited US$1 each REZR
REERERAT ([5H]) liability company 10,000 R F M 1 E MRS
RERZES/EBRAR
Victory “Art" Laboratory Hong Kong/Limited 10,000 shares of - 100 55.02 Provision of laboratory testing
Limited (“Victory") liability company HK$10,000 services relating to assisted
BREHLERERAG(BH]) BB/ BRAF with no par value reproductive technologies
10,000 10,000 % 7T B A RATIRE
EEENHKH BRERS
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. MIBAR (&)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the ERATRZEENMBLARFE &)
Company (Continued)

Place of incorporation  Particulars of issued
and operation/type and paid up ordinary
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity share capital Ownership interests Principal activities
AR REE ERITRMRZ
WEA = &8 EEBRER EBRAZFE il 4 3 TEEH
Held by Group’s

the Heldby effective
Company a subsidiary interest*
BARE  HNEAR  AREER
58 58 ik

A A A
% % %

Zhuhai Alyingdao Business PRC/Limited Paid-up capital of Renminbi - 100 55 Franchisor and retail of
Chain Limited* liability company ("RMB") 6,650,000 mother-infant-children
HATELEHEERERAR  HE/BRAT EHRBRAARE products
(TAR¥])6,650,0007C BHEERTENEEER
Alyingdao Wuhan Supply Chain PRC/Limited Paid-up capital of - 100 55 Franchisor and retail of
Management Limited* liability company RMB1,000,000 mother-infant-children
RETREMEREEERAR  HE/BRAF BHRRA products
AR#1,000,000 7 R EERTENEEER

e English translation for identification purpose only

& Excluding the interests that are attributable to non-controlling E T B R IR B o
interests

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end BENB AR E2MPLEE A LF AR TR

of the reporting period, or at any time during the year. BHEAMEREEEBHES -

Note: Miat

Although MCIL's equity interests in HKMS is 47%, in the opinion of the BARGEERANEBIZBZRERTI%  EEE

management, the Group has 51% voting power of HKMS at the RE AEERBREAS LHEEEBIRBHS%

meetings of shareholders and therefore has obtained control over RERE E&Zﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬂ%%ﬁ% HlHE - B

HKMS, details of which are set out in Note 35(b) to the consolidated 4R S B 7% R M 5T 35(D)

financial statements.
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. MEBATR (&)
Financial information of subsidiaries with BEREEERFIERERZZHE A
individually material NCI = % & K

The following table shows the information relating to the non-
wholly owned subsidiaries, MCIL and its subsidiaries (“MCIL
Group”), Jubilant Link and its subsidiaries (“Jubilant Link
Group”), Shining Time and its subsidiaries (“Shining Time
Group”) and Blend & Pack, that have material non-controlling
interests (“NCI") during the year. Set out below is the
summarised financial information of each of the subsidiaries
with material NCI. The results for the respective subsidiaries
are for the period from the later of the beginning of the
reporting period and the date of acquisition to the earlier of the
date of disposal and the end of the reporting period. The
amounts are before inter-company eliminations and excluding

the related goodwill.

TRINRFEARERERIERE R ([FFE
iz 22 EMBARREEARE
MEAR(GEREEAKE]  RER
HfERm (hE [ERE ) - R RE
MEAE(FE [ =REE]) A K&Blend &
Pack 2 BRIE#t - EHAEAFIEBE R
ZHBARMBEMBEENTX - B
MEBAREEET B 2K EWER
MR RREEEHEZAEEIRBLEE
MEFEEIL - @RI RAR AR -
TEEEREEE -

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017

Blend Jubilant Shining
&Pack  MCIL Group Link Group  Time Group
REELREH REEE SHEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHET
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tF
+=B=+-8

Proportion of NCI's R iE s

ownership interests P A #EZ Le Bl 25% 30% 44.98% 45%
Non-current assets FERBEE 234,818 184,119 206,089 520,196
Current assets mENBE 54,937 96,919 66,074 747,115
Current liabilities mEaE (38,450) (207,614) (14,962) (665,145)
Non-current liabilities FERENBE (67,337) - (22,466) (111,808)
Total equity B 183,968 73,424 234,735 490,358
NCI of subsidiaries within HEEEANNB AR Z

the respective groups IRt S = 39,944 5,863 =
Carrying amount of NC| IR R BREE 45,992 49,843 105,584 220,661
At 31 December 2016 R-BE—RE

+=ZA=+—H

Proportion of NCI's R

ownership interests Ptz N/AZRiE A 30% 44.98% 45%
Non-current assets FERBEE N/A 73 F 74,926 205,073 509,512
Current assets MEEE N/ATNEF 3,347 30,473 517,363
Current liabilities mEAE N/ATNEF 631) (12,200) (563,881)
Non-current liabilities ERFaRE N/A i B - (33,314) (112,469)
Total equity BrEn N/AT3E A 77,642 190,032 350,525
NCI of subsidiaries within HEAEEANNB AR Z

the respective groups FEE RS N/AZiE 39,709 4,244 -
Carrying amount of NCI IR R 2 BREE N/ATRE R 51,089 87,812 157,736
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Financial information of subsidiaries with
individually material NCI (continuea)

19. MR (a)
BERIEBERFEREZ ZHMEA
RAIMBESR ()

Blend Jubilant Shining
& Pack  MCIL Group Link Group  Time Group
REEEREE RESE =REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FTHET FHET
Year ended 31 December #HE-ZE—+&F
2017 +=ZA=+—H
LHEE

Proportion of NCI's

RS AEL

ownership interests [5gt]l 25% 30% 44.98% 45%
Operating income mEWA 32,954 12,843 143,227 2,511,777
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(B1])/&5F 233 (3,976) 36,345 134,989
(Loss)/profit and total (F18),/ AR

comprehensive income ZHEWRABTE (1,324) (3,976) 36,043 139,824
(Loss)/profit attributable to NCI FE¥ES 2 FE (L

(B518) /5 (42) (1,246) 20,173 60,745
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from T & BIR &R,

() 8
Operating activities REE 1,637 898 38,564 (98,530)
Investing activities REED - = - (13,041)
Financing activities AL (147) = (2,400) 189,016
Total cash inflows RemABE 1,490 898 36,164 77,445
Dividend paid to NCI TR TIEERER

(LSS - - 2,400 -
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. MEBATR (&)
Financial information of subsidiaries with BREEEXRFERESZZHE L
individually material NCI (continued) AMBER (#)

Jubilant Shining Co-Lead
MCIL Group Link Group Time Group Group*

REEAEE REEE SEEE  Colead £ *
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT

Year ended 31 December HZE—Z—XE

2016 +=A=+—8

LEE

Proportion of NCI's IS *46.93%—

ownership interests FA R L fl 30% 44.98% 45% 47.31%
Operating income HEALPN - 23,651 - (598,883)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR)/ &5 (100) 5,487 - (681,180)
(Loss)/profit and total (F518),/ % K
comprehensive income PHEBALRE (100) 5,487 = (481,180)

(Loss)/profit attributable to NCI- FE¥E 5 fE o5 FE 1
(&518),/ &7 (53) 2,825 - (321,501)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Tt ZIBRERA
() F8

Operating activities EEE 25 7,147 = 5,642
Investing activities BEEH = (151) = =
Financing activities BEEE) = = S (5,573)
Total cash inflows BEmALE 25 6,996 - 69
Dividend paid to NCI IR TIEERER S
B - - - -
= Upon completion of the share subscription of Co-Lead Holdings * W= —7XF— A5 Co-Lead Holdings
Limited (“Co-Lead”) in January 2016, the equity interests in Co- Limited ([Co-Lead ) & 1 R EE 1% - A&
Lead held by the Group changed from 53.07% to 52.69%. The FiT #5Co-LeadfX # H153.07%% ¥ &
equity interest of Co-Lead and its subsidiaries (“Co-Lead Group”) 52.69% ° XX AT Co-Lead R EMI B R
held by the Group were disposed in March 2016. Details are set Al (478 [Co-lead & E ) RER =T — X
out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. FZAHE - BAFBHNGEMB®RE
B 5E36 ©
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

0. BELNTIER

2017 2016
—2—tF  —T-X

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Cost of investment in associate, unlisted AR A TR ERKA - IE LT 214,216 =

Share of post-acquisition gains and
other comprehensive income

eI W B 18 Wt R E b 2 EULA

6,019 =

220,235 =

As at 31 December 2017, interest in an associate of
HK$220,235,000 represented 42.87% equity interest in
Pangenia Holdings Limited (formerly known as DiagCor
Technology Limited, “Pangenia”), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liabilities.

In March 2017, Pangenia and its subsidiaries (together
“Pangenia Group”) were acquired by the Group. The Pangenia
Group is principally engaged in the trading of laboratory
consumables and equipment and laboratory testing related
business.

Included in the cost of investments in associates was goodwill
of HK$71,439,000 (2016: Nil) arising from acquisition of the
Pangenia Group.

In November 2016, 21.33% equity interests in Freewill Holdings
Limited (“Freewill”), a company incorporated in the Republic of
the Marshall Islands with limited liability, was disposed of upon
the disposal of the Group’s subsidiary, Willie Link, as mentioned
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. The
principal activity of Freewill and its subsidiaries (together
“Freewill Group”) is investment holding.

MZZT—+F+=A=1+—8  RELRA
2 #5220,235,000/8 T IE R F = IR A IR
2~ 7 (A7 [ DiagCor Technology Limited ] -
[FE] —RREBRZBEEFMKTZ
BRATR]) 2 42.87% B #E o

R-FE—tF=F HEREHMBRF (5
WIATEEDERAEERE - T E
BXENETERTHADLIRBEIAL
ERERAEEEL -

ST ARBE & A B8 & BN B 4R R Uk B FT e
EFHEANEET1,439,000/8 7T (=ZF—~
F o fE) o

MR AV REMF36HM - R=F
—NE+—HF R Freewill Holdings Limited
([Freewill] - "R BHRBHS LMBE T
MRS 2 BRAE) Z22133% BN HE
AN £ E B 2 B Wilie Link B # i B -
Freewill & E Mt &8 2 7] (418 Freewil 52 & 1)
ZEEEBRIREER -
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 20. BENTIER (8)
Summarised financial information of AR E KEE QR 2B ERBE
individually material associate
Pangenia Group FEEKE

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—~H

Current assets MENEE 160,515
Non-current assets FRBE E 110,358
Current liabilities mBAE (59,601)
Non-current liabilities EmEBBE (1,459)
Intangible assets mpEE 164,400
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFTSTRAE (27,126)
Net assets FAE 347,087
Group’s ownership interest REBZHARE 42.87%
Group’s share of the net assets of the associate AEBEEHEARFEE 148,796
Goodwill SRS 71,439

220,235

From date of
acquisition to
31 December

2017
KB HZE
—E—tHF
t=HA=+-—-~H
HK$'000
FET

Period ended 31 December HE+-_A=1+—HI1-5/H
Revenue Wz 200,972
Profit for the period HAfE & A 14,040
Other comprehensive income Haz2ElmA =
Total comprehensive income ZHERABEE 14,040
Dividend received from the associate B R AEZ RE =
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HETT—FtF+-H=+—HILtEE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
summarised financial information of
individually material associates (continued)
Freewill Group

20. BpE QTR (&)
BRI EXRBENTA 2B KEERBE
(%)
Freewill £

From 1 January
2016 to date
of disposal

EHEBRH
HK$'000
THETT

Gross amounts AEEE
Revenue Uz 151,555
Loss i (111,694)
Other comprehensive income Haz2mElpA 49,365
Total comprehensive l0ss FHBEEBE (62,329)
Group’s ownership interests REBE AR 20.01%~
21.33%
Group's share of loss of associates REE G E QR ER (23,945)
Group's share of other comprehensive income ANEF RS AR EME2EmiA
of associates 9,906
Dividend received from associates B B A R R B =

21. AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

In August 2017, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a loan
agreement with Pangenia Holdings Limited (the “Lender”),
pursuant to which the Lender granted an unsecured loan of
HK$20,000,000 to the Group, for a period of 6 months from
date of drawdown with interest rate of 3.5% per annum. The
loan was drawdown in September 2017. The loan was
subsequently settled in March 2018.

21. B —EBE QARRIE
RZTE—tFN\A AEEN—HNEA
AR EERARAB(EH]FTYER
#E - Bt BErRAASERE#—E8K
#E 720,000,000 7T+ B {REA B F
BHAMEA  FREEIS% - ERR =T

—tFNARR HERZT—N\F=A

B

i
i
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22. THHEENBEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ftaE TR TAT

Unlisted investments, at cost 3 FHiRE - LR AET

Equity securities AT H @) 630,525 630,525
Debt instrument BEIA (b) 74,926 74,926
Private funds LEER © 40,127 10,935
(d) 745,578 716,386
Impairment losses REBE (e) (56,463) (50,925)
689,115 665,461
Less: Balances in current portion S RBIER D R (b) (74,926) -
Non-current portion ERBNE S 614,189 665,461
Notes: Hiat -
(@  Asat 31 December 2017 and 2016, the unlisted investment of (@ NI+t FRZZE—R"F+ZA=+—
HK$630,525,000 represented 15% equity interests in A+ 3k £ & 630,525,000 ;L5 A
BB EFI D AR A A (Shengang Securities Company Limited*, BEFROGERAR (BB —BRF
“Shengang”), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited B 2 BR AR 2 15% AR # o &
liability. Shengang is principally engaged in securities related BRESHERSEEEEZE AR
business with full licences approved by the China Securities HHEBEREIENEESB@EY -
Regulatory Commission in the PRC. Due to the adverse change HE_Z—AR"FTA=T—BILFEH
of foreign currency in which the investment is denominated, an - ARIREEINE 2 TR BR
impairment loss of HK$50,925,000 had been recognised in profit 1B N HERR R (B /&5 18 50,925,000 8 7T ©

or loss during the year ended 31 December 2016.

* English name for identification purpose only
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In October 2016, the Group acquired a subsidiary, HKMS, which
has available-for-sale financial assets with carrying amount of
HK$74,926,000 (see Note 35(b)). In April 2016, HKMS entered into
a junior facility agreement with a third-party, pursuant to which
HKMS agreed to grant a loan with the principal amount of
HK$75,000,000. The borrower applies all money borrowed under
the facility towards origination and funding of mortgage loans,
purchase of mortgage insurance and payment of related fees
and expenses. The borrower intends to securitise (subject to the
prior written consent of the Group) or the private sales of the
asset-back collateral pool, in each case repay all loans under the
agreement. The loan facility was drawdown in October 2016,
which is unsecured and repayable 18 months from the first day
of the loan being made. The aggregate interest on the loan
should be an amount equal to any amounts held by the
borrower after paying off the senior loan lenders and any
expenses less US$1,500 (equivalent to HK$12,000). The
drawdown loan were subsequently repaid in January 2018.

Included in the private funds was fund contribution to Agate-JT
Healthcare Fund L.P. ("Agate Fund”). In December 2016, Mason
Capital Strategic, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a subscription agreement with Agate Fund to
subscribe limited partnership interest at a total contribution
commitment of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$156,000,000),
which represented 32% of total capital of Agate Fund. As at 31
December 2017, Mason Capital Strategic has paid US$5,136,452
(equivalent to HK$40,082,000 (2016: US$1,400,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,897,000)) as the paid-up capital of Agate Fund, which
represented 26% and 32% of total contribution commitment and
contributed capital respectively. The fund is established for
achieving capital appreciation through making equity
investments in and dispositions of, mainly Israeli and Israeli-
related healthcare technologies companies. During the year, an
impairment loss of HK$5,538,000 (20176. Nil) was recognised.

The management is of the opinion that as the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates for the unlisted
investments is significant and the probability of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, these investments are stated at
cost less any impairment loss.

22, JHEENKEE®)

izt : ()
b)) RZZB—RFET+A AEEKBEHE

RNAIBERBEE  ZAREEREAE
74,926,000 T 2 AJ R B E S EE
(RKIFE35(D) c R=ZZE—XRFWMA -
BERBRBEE=ZFRI VR BE D
OB ABRBRERLEAESEE
75,000,000 T E 3K © 1B R ARIEZ I IR
RIBPEHIZBER - BEERBRER I8
FAEARBELELAE - B AERY
2 EPFRIE - AR (AREE R
EERE)ILAHEEETHNEAR
A RMEIER TAERE R EEEESE
e BRMER-_T— R FETARN &
Y AERERE BR18EANEE -
BT EREA—SHENERAEES
WERE R AR FTEHT RIE R X
71,500 7T (FHE 7 12,0004 7T ) 2 5K
B BIEREREEN_ZE—\E—AE
=

L5 H & B 1E 4 T Agate-JT Healthcare
Fund L.P.([Agate Fund]) B9 E & R - %
ZE—REFTZR AEEZ2ENBAR
REBAREMEEAgate Fund 5T 28 #as
LA R85 1 & 48 %820,000,000 % 7T (M E 1
156,000,0007% 7T ) (14 Agate Fund & 7 2
HHRK RBEREBEREZ - R =F
—t&E+-A=1+—0 REEAEKD
2 -9 5,136,452 3 7T (48 & 74 40,082,000 7
JL) (ZZF—7N4F © 1,400,000 7T (16 R
10,897,000,% 7T )) {E /& Agate Fund 2 & &1
ER  DRERBLERERRBEARN
26% }32% ° B HEE I ABRAEER
A5 XA ER B AR E R A R
TREREREEGRAREREANE
B F A BRI EEIES5538000%
TC(ZZF—NF - fE) »

EEERR ANFELMEREZMGFEE
RFEBERDEKN - AZBEANFIAMG
ER R AA A A EARTH AT
B WZERE AR R EERS
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22, JHEENKEE®)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Miet - (48)
(e) Movements in the provision for impairment loss are as follows: (C) RERERFEBMT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At the beginning of the reporting period REREAY] 50,925 -
Impairment loss recognised BERBEEE 5,538 125,916
Derecognition upon disposal of subsidiaries 7 H & [} B A 5B 4% | F TR = (74,991)
At the end of the reporting period RERPEER 56,463 50,925
23. INVENTORIES 23. B8

2016
—E—REF

HK$'000
TAET

Merchandise for resale BEEN R 285,507 214,051
Raw materials R 6,664 =
Consumables SHAE M@ 375 6,050
292,546 220,101
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24. A FEFABRZMKEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

Analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: BRATVEFABRZVBEEZ WA
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T
Investments held for trading BIEEERE
Equity securities — listed in Hong Kong IR ZAN#E %5 — AEB L 361,633 499,093
Equity securities — listed overseas BAFSH — g LET 2,639 -
364,272 499,093
Less: Balances in current portion B OmENER D AR (164,930) (499,093)
Non-current portion EmENEB 199,342 -
The fair values of listed equity securities are based on quoted FRRAEE Y AR ERNERTIERSR
market prices in active markets. TETE -
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HEZ—+t&+-A=+—HItEE

25. LOANS RECEIVABLES 25. EWER
Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to BTERAZERIZERFRRAREE -
repayment schedules.

2017 2016
—g—tfF E— x4

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Loans receivables from third EBWE=A2EH

parties
— Term loans — EHEX (@) 1,119,704 910,510
— Instalment loans — DHIEX (b) 202,956 -
1,322,660 910,510
Loan to a non-controlling B ARFIERBRRER
shareholder of a subsidiary (©) 168,308 -
(@) 1,490,968 910,510
Less: Balances due within one year g : st AiRBVEE < —F K
included in current assets EIEA&E 54 (848,606) (910,510)
Non-current portion IR EEL 642,362 =
Notes: Biat
(@ As at 31 December 2017, term loans receivables (i) (@ RZE—LF+=A= + EI FHER
HK$761,270,000 (2016: HK$838,084,000) are collateralised by ()761,270,000/%35 T = F — X &F:
securities of companies listed on the Stock Exchange and 838,084, OOOJ%ﬁ)EEEEAHﬁIFﬁLﬁ A
secured by corporate/personal guarantee provided by equity BB ERRBERT 2 EREEARE
holders of the borrowers, HK$137,973,000 (2016: Nil) and B MEAERERIF - 137,973,000
HK$8,286,000 (2016. Nil) are collateralized by securities of (= F — N ) 8,286,000/ T
companies listed on the Stock Exchange and the borrower’s (ZF—RF : £) DRI EMAR
asset respectively, Nil (2016: HK$64,098,000) are secured by WEBEARBRAZCEEFEER TET
personal guarantee and HK$212,175,000 (2016: HK$8,328,000) (ZZF— N : 64,098,000&7T) Th LAEA
are unsecured; (i) carry fixed interest rates and have effective &R 1 5 212,175,000 T ( = F — X
interest rates ranging from around 5% to 12% per annum (2016: £F £ 8,328,000% 7T ) T A (N REE
8.5% to 22% per annum); and (iii) HK$1,119,704,000 (2016: FERFE BEERFMENTLHSEE2
HK$910,510,000) are within the respective maturity dates. B(ZF—XF: FH*E /A/¥85F§22
[B)  R(ii))1,119,704,0005% T ( = F —
4 1 910,510,000 7T ) A & B B B 5| A1 E
|3q °
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HET

Tt R=H=n HIEER

25. LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Included in instalment loans receivables as at 31 December 2017
of HK$93,764,000 which (i) is collaterised by a property situated
in Hong Kong; (i) carries interest rate of 4.13% above the Hong
Kong Dollar prime rate quoted by a credit trustworthy bank in
Hong Kong per annum; and (jii) is within the respective maturity
dates.

The remaining instalment loans receivables as at 31 December
2017 were property mortgage loans (i) are all collaterised by
properties situated in Hong Kong; (i) carries variable interest
rate ranged from 6.5% to 8.5% per annum; and (iii) is within the
respective maturity dates.

In December 2016, the Group entered into an investment
agreement with two third parties to acquire 55% equity interests
of Shining Time and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Shining Time Group”) at an aggregate consideration of
RMB409,200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$458,304,000).
The acquisition of Shining Time Group was completed in
December 2016. Pursuant to the investment agreement, the
Group granted a loan of RMB140,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$157,696,000) to one of the vendors, a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, upon the completion of
the acquisition in December 2016, which has a maturity period
of 36 months and carries interest at a rate of 8% per annum. The
loan facility has been drawdown by the non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary in February 2017. As at 31 December
2017, the loan receivable and related interest receivable
amounted to HK$157,696,000 and HK$10,612,000 respectively.

The management assessed the collectability of loans receivables
at the end of the reporting period individually with reference to
borrowers’ past settlement history and current creditworthiness.
Loans receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to several borrowers for whom there was no history of
default. Loans receivables that were past due but not impaired
as management is of the opinion that there has not been a
significant change in credit quality of the borrower or the party
who provided guarantees and fair value of the collaterals
obtained in respect of these loans.

In the opinion of the management, there was no indication of
deterioration in the collectability of the loans receivables of
HK$1,490,968,000 (2016: HK$910,510,000) and thus no allowance
for doubtful debts was considered necessary.

25. BWER

X ()

Hiat - (&)

(b)

R-ZE—+tF+=-A=+—8 " B
§§A93,764,000/§7E@% AR BB
LR ¢ () IRB BRI T
SEBFEFEMNA3%TE + K (i) EHHE
BEHAR -

RZZE—+F+-A=+—0 " 8 TEK
DHBERRYERIBER  (VBUREE
BRI (NIRF B FERR6SESE
8.5EFTE ¢ R (i) ENAEREIHA A

EA T—RNE+ZA AEEHEBREE=

FiIUREWE LWERBARK
409,200,000 (188 P #)458,304,0007 7T.)
WEZRREMNBAR (SGBAI=RHE
B )55 Wi EEER =T
—ANETZAREK - BIBRERZE - A%
ER - —RE+ = AR RERREF
—ZEH (B REWNBREZIEERAE)
& H B A R ¥ 140,800,000 7T (FAE R4
157,696,000/ 7T ) - HARR 436 & A I 1= F
PR E - ZERBMER =T —+tF
ZRABZWB AR Z IR o 1
—E—+H+=-A=1+—H8" BREXEK
#8 8 FE UL FI B 9 Bl B 157,696,000 7T K&
10,612,000/ 7T °

EEENERPEEA2ZERAZEE
BRARE kB AEE - BRI EEKRER
Z AR EAR S o BE AR 280 B TR R (B 2 FE LR
BFOS R BB R ZBEHRA - BRER
EEBERAE BREEERBERA
HEREHANEAERAREZEFER
ESNERRN R HELEEEEREE -

EEERA  EIWEF1,490,968,0007% T
(ZZF—/V4F £ 910,510,000 7T ) 2 A] 4k @
MW EBCR - ELEEE EREEE -
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. ESREHMEWFIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER F&TT
Trade receivables 2 5 W RIE (@) 160,231 56,336
Accounts receivables from third TR A M i AR A0 RS
parties arising from provision EEZEWE=TRER
of securities and commaodities
brokerage services:
— custodian clients —HERFRE () 19,520 14,977
— margin clients —HEEP (b) 520,718 569,255
— clearing houses and brokers — BEEFT RS (b) 181,801 2,462
882,270 643,030
Allowance for doubtful debts R (@) (104,814) (100,517)
©) 777,456 542,513
Deposits and prepayments "e RIENEIE 148,050 31,293
Other receivables Hib e skig (e) 110,086 196,029
Due from related companies/parties feUgiges: A=, A+ 318 i} 15,920 11,197
274,056 238,519
1,051,512 781,032
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

Settlement terms of trade receivables

The Group’s sales are on cash basis except for the sales of
merchandise to certain customers and the franchisees. The
credit terms offered to these customers are generally in credit
limit and open credit period, accordingly the trade receivables
that are not individually nor collectively impaired are considered
not overdue.

Settlement terms of accounts receivables

Accounts receivables arising from the ordinary course of
business of brokering in securities and commodities in respect
of cash clients and margin clients are two or three trading days
after the transaction dates.

Accounts receivables arising from the ordinary course of
business of brokering in index, commodity and currency futures
contracts represent the margin deposits maintained with futures
clearing house, options clearing house or brokers to meet the
margin requirements of open contracts. Margin calls from
clearing house and brokers are settled on a daily basis. The
excess amounts over the required margin deposits stipulated
are repayable on demand.

The credit facility limits to margin clients are determined by the
discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by
the Group.

The majority of the loans to margin clients which are secured by
the underlying pledged securities are interest bearing. The
Group maintains a list of approved stocks for margin lending at a
specified loan to collateral ratio.

Any excess in the lending ratio will trigger a margin call which
the customers have to make up the shortfall.

Loans to margin clients as at the end of the reporting period
were secured by the customers’ securities to the Group as
collateral with undiscounted market value of approximately
HK$1,363,452,000 (2016: HK$1,679,677,000).

The Group determines the allowance for impaired debts based
on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts receivables and on management’s judgement
including the assessment of change in credit quality, collateral
and the past collection history of each client. The concentration
of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts receivables
in order to minimise the credit risk. Overdue balances are
regularly monitored by management.

26. BEFREMERRIEE)
Hidt -

(a)

(b)

B2 ERRREERRK
AEENHEUNRER S - EMETEP
REFFHEEEEENERRI - AZRER
FREMNEEGFBEEEARERAK
ANEEH - Bt - WARER R ERBERD
B MR RAG R R B -

PR A B R

RASBEPRAREFPME @ EBHFLE
MBLEHZ A RERBRRFEEZEK
FHRANZZARMEL =[RS A RS

s
(— Y
Ea

HEH ARREBREANZBLEB
ERBEGBREPELEZRUSRK - i
FHREEHEEN SRS EMSELEZ
RES ENAFEARNZRESER -
REMRBRERRESTIFARW -
BBMREREE 2 RANRESRE -

HREFEEREREIIIRA EE FTE
EVIEIRE S TR T EEE -

RED BB THREPHER (RABCE
WESEERGE - AEERE MK
RARMBE  RFEERERRLE
RTHRER -

BERERLEERBT RS BB TP
TRBLER

RERBLEE AR THREFZETHER
HTFAEBEEEFRRNTETELNA
1,363,452, 00078 TT(=F—7N4F - 1,679,677,000
JBIL) OB HHEIR ©

AN G BRI W R AT [ W 1 I R ik 2
i AREREZHE(BREYEEER
B2 FHE -~ EIRR R SRR 2 W)
fREBERES 2 B - AEBNERSE
TRBEAR  AAEFPERREAYAEE

BEFHUREZPRE - AEEHREERRE
WBR SRR ER R R BL R i - A IR R A
WERE - BEFERER BTN

217

EREBZREIRATF / 2017 FERSE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRMTE

Year ended 31 December 2017
BET—tHF+-A=1+—RHLEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. ESREHMEWFIE#)
Notes: (Continued) BtaE - (&)

(c) Ageing analysis (c) HRERDMW

218

The ageing analysis of the trade and accounts receivables by
overdue date that are neither individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired is as follows:

j’UHI)”: RARBARERENE SRR
FEERR A RO

2017 2016

—=—+tfF T—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired R 480 B TR AR R (B 775,908 540,761
Less than 1 month past due ?jﬁ)@d R—{EA 1,274 766
1 month to 3 months past due BH—==@A 170 140
3 months to 6 months past due @Eﬂ_i/dlﬁ 104 846
1,548 1,752

777,456 542,513

Trade and accounts receivables as at 31 December 2017 related
to a number of customers and clients that have a good track
record with the Group and were not impaired. Based on past
experience, the management is of the opinion that no provision
for allowance for doubtful debts was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable as at 31 December 2017.

No ageing analysis by trade/invoice date has been disclosed in
respect of accounts receivables arising from the ordinary course
of brokerage business as, in the opinion of the management, it
does not give additional value in view of the business’s nature.
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Ageing analysis (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, by invoice date is as follows:

26.

B5 RHtEWRE (&)
HisE - (&)

BRER 2 AT (#5)
REFRPHER  BRERAHZEHEK
FIRMBRER DT

2017 2016
—E—+iH —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T TFET
Less than 1 month PR —1EA 49,575 28,632
1 month to 3 months —=={@A 102,488 13,918
3 months to 6 months =Z~EA 1,064 1,776
6 months to 12 months AETZEA 7,104 12,010
160,231 56,336
Allowance for doubtful debts RAEH R
Movements in the provision for allowances are as follows: FHEEEESHIMT

At the beginning of the reporting period A 2 RHA 100,517 -
Addition — acquisition of subsidiaries RE — WEWEB AR - 2,162
Increase in allowance BB 4,897 98,355
Reversal of allowance BB R[] (600) =
At the end of the reporting period RERBLEER 104,814 100,517

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are specific
accounts receivables from several margin clients with a balance
of HK$104,538,000 (2076: HK$98,355,000). The individually
impaired accounts receivables relating to margin clients that
were default in payments.

REBERERRBMNTRES ZH TR
T8 - 4582/5104,538,000/8 70 ( —FE— N4 ¢
98,355,000 7T) + {8516 (B FE W BR 51 B2 e
REFZHERRFBR -
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

27.

(e)

(f)

Included in other receivables were input value-added tax of
HK$15,075,000 (2016: HK$38,036,000), dividend receivables of
HK$NIl (2016: HK$21,039,000) from former subsidiaries of non-
controlling interests of the Group’s subsidiary and other
receivables from a number of franchisees related to the setup
cost of respective franchise stores of HK$67,555,000 (2016:
HK$105,931,000) as at the end of the reporting period.

The amounts due from companies owned by non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary of HK$733,000 (2076: HK$655,000) and a
beneficial owner of non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of
HK$15,187,000 (2016: HK$10,542,000) are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed repayment term. The carrying value of
the amounts due approximate their fair value.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES

26. BZRHEAMBYRIE )

HreE - (&)

(e)

(f)

REFRPLEER - HibBUKRERBIEEE
TR TE R 28 15,075,0008 70 ( —FE— N F -
38,036,000/87T) « FEWAEBE AT
ERER B ARBRESTET(=F
—7NIF 1 21,039,000/87T) K SRS FRAC TR
RPN AN BRI RIS TR AR A & P B0E
67,555,000 7L( = F—/N4F 105,931,000
HIL) °

FEUSEIE AR ISP B A BB 2 A AR
T8 733,00058 7T ( = & — /N 4F © 655,000
L) REERERWB AR Z BXEA A
15,187,000/ 7T ( = F — /N4 : 10,542,000
L) BEER - 28 BEETERSR -
FIHR SRR ESEE A FEES -

27. BERBRTER BITEHRES

AND CASH
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT F&T
Pledged bank deposits (Note) EERBIRITER (W) 58,364 22,359
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS 1,759,412 651,419
1,817,776 673,778

Note:

At 31 December 2017, the bank deposits of RMB13,679,000 (equivalent
to HK$16,364,000) and HK$42,000,000 were pledged to a bank for bills
payables and bank loans respectively.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. EGRHMENKIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RX
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Trade and bills payables to JERE=HEBZER
third parties N EN T (b) 339,360 110,319
Accounts payables to third parties — gtiR{t 5% K& & 40 RS
arising from provision of EECZENE=ZFTERER

securities and commodities
brokerage services:

— custodian clients —H®ERFP (a) 357,417 488,556
— margin clients —HFEEP @) 101,947 359,976
— clearing houses and brokers — RER &R (@) = 4,941
798,724 963,792

Less: cash held on behalf of clients ¥ : RREFFHER S (@] (443,395) (835,266)
355,329 128,526

Other payables H e FRIE (@) 126,896 466,767

Deposits received and receipts BiiE e RIBEIKIE

in advance 73,729 53,166
Due to related companies FEHRER A R KB G) 8 357,902
200,633 877,835
555,962 1,006,361
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

222

Settlement terms of accounts payables

Accounts payables arising from the ordinary course of business
of brokering in securities in respect of cash clients and margin
clients are two or three trading days after the transaction dates.

Accounts payables arising from the ordinary course of business
brokering in index, commodity and currency futures contracts
represent the margin deposits received from clients for their
trading in futures contracts. The excess over the required
margin deposits stipulated are repayable to clients on demand.

No ageing analysis has been disclosed in respect of accounts
payables arising from the ordinary course of brokerage business,
as in the opinion of the management, it does not give additional
value in view of the business’s nature.

Ageing analysis of trade payables
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills payables by date of issue of invoice/bills is as follows:

28. BZRHMEBARE )

e -

(a)

(b)

FEAS RR AR AE B AR R
HREEFEPRAFREPME @ REHEL
EB 2 AREBREPELEZBMNKRKA
W25 BEMER =5 B NEE

PIEE MR EBHEENZREER
EREEBBREPEE ZEBMNERR - ThiE
HREPHHEENR S B REWMH TR
Ze o BRREFREZSNIDARER
REHREP -

BEREARCLABTERPELNEN
RRZRERAMN REREEERR &
REREBHEBMLE WAL EE
LEIMEE ©

B 5 RENFORRR DT
REFMEHER - BHERMNFRBARENERE
BIRMARE "REANREDITIT -

2016
—~F

- =

—=

HK$'000
TET

Less than 1 month LR —1{E A 3,657 2,989
1 month to 3 months —@A==@A 24,118 22,368
3 months to 6 months =@A=@EA 289,565 62,604
6 months to 12 months NEAZE+=EA 22,020 22,358

339,360 110,319

The Group maintains segregated accounts with banks and
authorised institutions to hold cash held on behalf of clients
arising from its normal course of business in provision for
brokerage services.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, included in other
payables was part of the cash consideration of HK$391,296,000
payable for the acquisition of Shining Time Group, details of
which are set out in Note 35(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. For the year ended 31 December 2017, included in
other payables was current accounts maintained with
franchisees, salaries and bonus payables and professional
advisory fee payables.

The amounts due to companies owned by non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed repayment term. The carrying value of the amounts due
approximate their fair value.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

REBRRITRERERBFR LB LR
P URBERELERBATHEERRE
FRAENRE -

BE-_Z—XAE+-_A=+—RItEE -
HiEMEREERERREEZ BHE
384 1 8391,296,00058 7T » HEFEBH
WA EIREAM 5@ - BE-T—t
F+ZA=1+—RALLFE  HtEMAFE
PREFTICERTEZRDKRE - BEH
SRAFURENSEBERE -

P FEIE 2R P B R R R 2 R A1 Z 3K
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing borrowings FTEER

2017
—E-tF

2016
—ZE—RF
HK$'000
F&7T

HK$'000
FHET

— Unsecured bonds — EEAES (@ 20,000 20,000
— Bank loans —RITERK (b) 120,827 -
— Other loans — HhE® (©) 179,189 -
— Unsecured fixed coupon notes  — X+ 8 2% (d) - 300,000
320,016 320,000
Less: Balance repayable within W AR —ERSIRENR
one year or on demand BB (300,016) (300,000)
Non-current portion EREEL S 20,000 20,000
Notes: HiEE -
(@ At the end of the reporting period, there are two outstanding (8 HERBLEEZEA AQNFEEREBR-Z
unsecured bonds with the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 —NEEDRAMEE = HIRE BTN
each issued in 2014 to two third-party investors separately. The 7K 4> %8 510,000,000 3 7T 2 7 (& 12 4K 1
bonds are interest-bearing at 5% per annum payable annually in B o FELEREFRSEE - £
arrears and repayable in 2021. FHRIfA WER-—ZE - —FEE-
(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank loans of by RNERBLER AEEHRTERIAR

RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to HK$71,779,000) are secured by a
pledged deposit of HK$42,000,000 and guaranteed by a director
of a subsidiary of the Company and corporate guarantee by the
Company. The remaining bank loans of RMB41,000,000
(equivalent to HK$49,048,000) are secured by certain inventories
and accounts receivables of the Group. The bank loans carry
interest ranged from 5% to 7% per annum payable annually and
repayable in 2018.

# 60,000,000 7T (48 & #71,779,0007% 7T )
LA—%5 42,000,000 7T 2 B i 17 5Kk {E 1K Hf
LERBAAR—HBHBARZEERAR
RAlZ ARERIEER - HBREBRITERAR
# 41,000,000 7t (48 & 72 49,048,0007% 7T )
HASENE TFE &EREERIERA
BITERREFRSERTENE  &F
EXN - WERZTE—)\EHEE -
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

©

Included in other loans as at 31 December 2017 was a loan of
HK$81,000,000, which is unsecured, interest-bearing at 1% per
annum payable annually in arrears and repayable in April 2018.

A loan of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$59,815,000) as at 31
December 2017 was interest-free, unsecured and repayable in
August 2018

In August 2017, the Group entered into a loan agreement with a
former subsidiary of Pangenia Holdings Limited for obtaining a
loan of HK$30,000,000. The loan is unsecured, interest bearing
at 3.5% per annum and repayable in 6 months from date of
drawdown. The loan was partially repaid with amount of
HK$10,000,000 in February 2018 and the remaining balance of
HK$20,000,000 was extended and to be repaid in August 2018.

The remaining balance of other loans of RMB7,000,000
(equivalent to HK$8,374,000) is unsecured, carries interest
ranged from 10% to 18% per annum and repayable in June 2018.

In November 2016, the Group issued two unsecured fixed
coupon notes of HK$100,000,000 and HK$200,000,000
respectively. The notes carry fixed interest rate of 8% per annum
payable annually in arrears and matured and redeemed during
2017. No fixed coupon notes were issued during this year.

30. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

29.

BE=SEENE)
HzE : ()

©

MR-ZE—tE+-F=+—0 HiEX
BFE—%81,000,000 8 TR E R » BEIK
e RENRI1EFE  EFBRFHERY
0 WERZZE—N\EMPEE -

R-ZBE—tE+-_F=+—0 EFZAR
& 50,000,000 7T ( 18 & 72 59,815,000 7T )
AR EEBRBR_Z—N\FN\AE
5‘§ °

RZZT—tFN\A AEESEFRIERE
RARZATM B AR R M E R ARG
30,000,000 T Z ER > ZER A EIK
W ZERERISER S - WERIRERA
e s /<@ B A{EE © 10,000,000/8 T2
HAOEFRER T /\F_AEE Mt
T &5 #:20,000,0008 T E LRI EN —F
—N\FNAEE -

HMERHT s AR 7,000,000 7T (48
E 148,374,000/ T) AEIKIE - AT 10
EZE18EMFEFEFE  WARZT—N
FRNAEE -

R-ZZE—XE+—F  NEEHRIBITHR
TH % 3K 8 F B #100,000,0007%8 7T &
200,000,000 7T ° :Z RIELEE FF XS
Eite - BESEFHRIMN  WER=
T—FRHRER - AFEEWEBEITES
=i o

30. EAZARE

2016
VAL

HK$'000
THAT

Contingent consideration payable JETSARIE 129,899 -

Less: Balances in current portion B REER D AR (112,272) =

Non-current portion EMBIEL S 17,627 -
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30. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

(Continued)

In December 2016, the Group entered into an investment
agreement with two third parties to acquire 55% equity
interests of Shining Time and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Shining Time Group”) at an aggregate
consideration of RMB409,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$458,304,000), the details of the acquisition is set out in
Note 35(a).

According to the investment agreement, if the results
attributable to the equity holders of Shining Time Group for the
years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 have been less
or more than RMB62,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$69,440,000), RMB85,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$95,200,000) and RMB120,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$134,400,000) by 5% (“Target Results”)
respectively, the number of the Consideration Shares is
required to be adjusted. In any event, if the transfer of the
Consideration Shares to the vendors leads to the shareholding
percentage of the Group in Shining Time falls below 50%, the
Group has the option to pay cash in lieu of the Consideration
Shares.

Profit guarantee is a contingent consideration that will be
realised if the acquired businesses achieve their respective
base year profit target, calculated on certain predetermined
basis, during the designated period of time.

The Group recognises the fair value of those contingent
consideration for acquisitions, as of their respective acquisition
dates as part of the consideration transferred in exchange for
the acquired business. The fair value measurement require,
among other things, significant estimation of post-acquisition
performance of the acquired businesses and significant
judgement on time value of money.

The management has estimated that contingent consideration
of HK$112,272,000 will be payable in 2018 and HK$17,627,000
will be payable in 2019.

30. BNURAKE @)

Bé:7 ANETZA AEEEMEE=

FEIuREBEWHm=zZ NERBARKE
409,200,000 7t (45 & 72 49 458,304,000 % 7T )
Wi R EWNB AR (GBA mREE])
55% Mk - BRANEEIE 2 S I E N M G
35(a) ©

BIBRER®  WeREEERSE AR
EEE-ET—A"F ZET—tFR=ZT
—N\FT-_A=ZT—BLFENELED D
BIME 72 sk B 38 A R # 62,000,000 7T (# & 7
#769,440,0007% 7T ) + A R # 85,000,000 7T
(#8 & R #995,200,0005 7T ) &k A R #
120,000,000 7T (#87& 74 #J 134,400,000 7% 7T.)
B5%([BIZEED - MIRERNMEEE
THRE - mRmOE - MREROCEETE
FEPAEERZEBZERE D LER
50% - BIASBARENRSRERER
DTN -

AN RAR U BB TS AR TE B R R AE BRI
—EEEEEFENSAEELEFREHNE
1% RIEMIRE QAT SRS ARE

AEBERARKEREIZFWEER
SRR EBH R FERRIBEWE R T
ERREN 8D - AFEFEFTE (AP
B HRBBEBNBBRRIVETEKR
bt - WHEEEREEMRL BRI

BERRE G S ANRE 112,272,000 7T
BRZE—N\FEXH - MM17,627,0008 7T
BRZE—hFTfo
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EZEBIE
Movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax AFEREBRELERBEFHEKFE ZEEHM
position are as follows: I
2017 2016
—E—tF T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT T
Recognised net deferred tax CRRIBLEIE
liabilities/(assets) &8 (EE)BE
At the beginning of the reporting period R 2R34T 156,900 -
Addition — acquisition of subsidiaries ANE — WHEH B QA
(Note 35(a)) (HtaE35() 67,180 159,820
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss E(GEA)1ER
(Note 13) (Ktat13) 5,737 (2,920)
At the end of the reporting period RHE2{RMEER 229,817 156,900
Recognised net deferred tax liabilities at the end of the REFRMEEAZERREEREEEF
reporting period represent the following: AT -
Assets Liabilities
BE 8f&
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ZZT—FRF ZZE—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T F#& T T
Depreciation allowances {&HEITE 1,409 306 - -
Intangible assets B EE - - (231,226) (157,2006)
Deferred tax assets/ EERIBEEE,
(liabilities) (8l 1,409 306 (231,226) (157,206)
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

31. EERE )

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RX

HK$°000 HK$'000
TF#ExT FATT

Unrecognised deferred tax assets REREEFEEENRE

arising from

Deductible temporary differences AR E R = 5,780 5,822
Tax losses TRIEEE 291,385 277,080
At the end of the reporting period REHRBEER 297,165 282,902

Neither the tax losses nor the deductible temporary differences
expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group disposed of
several subsidiaries, which had tax losses of HK$712,404,000
and acquired several subsidiaries, which had tax losses of
HK$160,331,000, both of which have not been recognised in
previous years and current year respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the Group’s PRC subsidiaries” and
Australia subsidiary’s undistributed retained earnings,
amounting to approximately RMB123,156,000 and AUD851,000
respectively. No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in
respect of these differences because the Group is in a position
to control the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

RBRITHOE - RABE R MR
ERHTEHE - HRAEETKATRER
PR ER T E M S AT B a2
R e 3h % E IR B REEHIREE -

BHE-_Z—XE+-_A=+—HItEE"
AEBLEETHWBAR(REER
712,404,000 7% 7T ) KU FEE T B Q7 (B
THE18160,331,0008 ) - RBAFE R
RFFHRER

RZZE—+F+ZA=+—0  BXEEH
AR BB A B KSR T B A Rl 2 R B iR
BENEGENERZHEEEIINAAR
#5 123,156,000 7T % 851,000/ 7T ° F A A&
EEERNEHZERBRRMRBEEER
BZSZBAENERARRRAETSHE
B I ERZEEERAREHEAE -
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32. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

32. MEBERE

(@) Total minimum lease payments are as () BREHEEMSREEDT :
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&xT T
Due within one year —FREH 445 -
Due in the second to fifth years FE_EEFRFIH 830 -
1,275 S
Future finance charges on MEHENARKRIIEE R
finance leases (81) =
Present value of finance lease MEHEBENEE
liabilities 1,194 -

(b) The present value of finance lease
liabilities is as follows:

(b) RMEHERBEZRENT :

2017 2016
—E—+fF —ZE-—REF
HK$‘000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Due within one year, included under —&EREIE - AR
current liabilities AFEET 399 -
Due in the second to fifth years, FEFERFIH A
included under non-current EREAEET
liabilities 795 =
1,194 =
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BA&

Number of
ordinary
shares

in issue Share capital
ERTEERYE &
HK$'000

FHET

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: ERTREEZER :
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XR"F—H—H 15,364,452,875 2,550,372
Issue of share capital BITRE AR 3,072,880,000 727,071
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 20177~ R-E—XRE+-HA=
kZE—tF—A— 18,437,332,875 3,277,443
Issue of shares under rights issue, BB TR - NRER (A1)
net of expenses (Note) 22,124,799,450 2,865,519
Issue of shares under bonus issue (Note) WIBARREITIRG (ff3F) 4,056,213,232 -
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tE+=-A=+—H 44,618,345,557 6,142,962

Note:

In October 2016, the Group proposed to (i) issue 22,124,799,450 shares
(“Rights Shares") of the Company to the qualifying shareholders, on the
basis of six Rights Shares for every five shares held by qualifying
shareholders at the date for determining their entitlements to
participate, at subscription price of HK$0.13 per share (the "Rights
Issue”); and (ii) issue 4,056,213,232 new shares (“Bonus Shares"”) of the
Company to qualifying shareholders, on the basis of one Bonus Share
for every ten shares held by the qualifying shareholders at the date for
determining their entitlements (the “Bonus Issue”). Upon completion of
the Rights Issue and the Bonus Issue in February 2017, the number of
issued shares of the Company increased from 18,437,332,875 shares
t0 44,618,345,557 shares.

All new shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares.

Mt :

RIZZE—RFE+A AEEEZ()HEBERRE
BATARRT22,124,799,4508% 8515 ([ HEAZAZAR 1) -
BEELBAERBENECHELEENE BEH
B AR MHEEITRRERED - RBEATR
0.138 7 ([#HAREETT]) ¢ R () ME BIERE T
ANAF]4,056,213,232 B FT AR5 ([4TBRAR (5 ]) - &
EAEERREARETRSHANEBSHF TR
ARADIEEEIT — BRATAR AR ([ATAREEAT ) - RELAR
BORARBTR-_T—LF-_A%K%E AR
Al 2 B BT 2B R 18,437,332,875 % 1 =
44,618,345,557 % °

FRBTZAERBOEME T RERERNZE
BREMAL -
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34. RESERVES

@

The capital reserve was arisen from acquisition of
interest in subsidiaries in prior years.

The available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
is arisen from changes in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets of the Group and/or its associate.

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
exchange differences relating to the translation of the
financial statements of the foreign operations of the
Group and/or its associates from their functional
currency to the Group’s presentation currency which are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no
reserves were available for distribution to the equity
holders of the Company.

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(@) Business combinations

230

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Acquisition of Blend & Pack

In July 2017, GL Food Holdings Pte. Ltd (“Mason Food”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a
share sales agreement with third parties, pursuant to
which Mason Food agreed to acquire 75% of the issued
capital of Blend & Pack at an aggregate cash
consideration of AU$76,778,000 (equivalent to
HK$478,617,000) based on the pricing mechanism in the
agreement. The consideration is subject to further
adjustment due to disputed items in the completion
accounts and has not been confirmed at the date of
approving the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

The principal activities of Blend & Pack is set out in Note
19 to the consolidated financial statements. The
acquisition of Blend & Pack was completed in September
2017.
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34. #E

35.

(@)

BREEHBEEEWRERBAR
R MELX -

AHHEMBEEEMRBRASE
R/SAEHBERR A HEENBEE
RNEEEPMESE -

SINEERFRBERERKAKE
R/ S EEE RN RIRINEB R R 2 B
BRERCEDEEBHERAEEZ
JIERZESEZR(EREREMEE
WA HERBIARAEINEE L EES R
i) e

RZE—+tF+—A=+—HE=ZE
—NF+ZA=+—H  #BEIHS
K TARR RIS E AR

BB B E
(@) EBZEH

BE-—FT-—tF+=-HA=+—H
IEFE

I B% Blend & Pack
RZZT—+Ft A AEEZ2EN
B ‘7 7IGL Food Holdings Pte. Ltd
(TMason Food]) #2586 = 73] 7 & R
¥ 0 ¥tk - Mason Food R & LA 1%
ER R EERFGTENARSRE
76,778,00038 7T ( 48 & 1 478,617,000
770 ) W g Blend & Pack 75% B 21T
BRA - REETKERTHEFHE

B BfFfEHE—SHE  BERiE
RNEBGRE MIEIRE B M RIERE -

Blend & Pack 2 = B Z K H N R A BT
TEREJMFE 19 o JiEBlend & Pack 2
R-Z—+FENATK -
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(@) Business combinations (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Continued)

Acquisition of Blend & Pack (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$2,125,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in profit or l0ss
under other operating expenses.

In respect of the acquisition of Blend & Pack, the fair
value of trade and other receivables acquired is
amounted to AU$6,930,000 (equivalent to
HK$42,480,000). The gross contractual amount of the
receivables is AU$6,935,000 (equivalent to
HK$42,444,000), of which AU$5,000 (equivalent to
HK$36,000) is expected to be uncollectible.

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer,
Avista Valuation Advisory Limited (“Avista”), to perform
valuations at the date of acquisition for the purpose of
accounting for the acquisition of Blend & Pack according
to HKFRS 3 (Revised). The fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed has been
determined based on the valuation approach as
determined by Avista. The fair value of the brand name
of AU$15,020,000 (equivalent to HK$92,076,000),
customer relationship of AU$3,030,000 (equivalent to
HK$18,575,000) and license of AU$19,100,000 (equivalent
to HK$117,088,000) are determined by income-based
approach using the discount rate of 15.60% per annum.

The Group has selected to measure the non-controlling
interests at their proportionate interests in the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Blend & Pack.

Since acquisition, Blend & Pack has contributed revenue
of HK$32,954,000 and a net profit of HK$233,000 to the
Group. If the acquisition of Blend & Pack effected during
the year had been taken place at the beginning of the
year, the revenue and net profit of the Group would have
been increased by HK$29,166,000 and HK$4,499,000
respectively.

35. WEIBKIB AR (&)
(@) EXKS6t@
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(@) Business combinations (continued)

232

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Continued)

Acquisition of ER it &3 by Shinning Time

In January 2017, Shinning Time Holdings Limited
(“Shinning Time"), one of the Group's partially-owned
subsidiaries, acquired 100% of the equity interest of &=
HEEEEBER AT ("FMRAEE" at an aggregate
cash consideration of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,982,000). Such acquisition was part of the
restructuring plan of Shinning Time according to
Appendix 5 Clause 4 “Steps of Restructuring” of the
investment agreement entered into between Pioneer
Leap and two third parties in December 2016 for the
acquisition of 55% of equity interest of Shinning Time and
its subsidiaries. The shares transfer of = & { & §# was
subsequently completed on 1 January 2017.

The principal activity of M R £ fE# is the operation and
management of retails and franchise stores. The
acquisition was made with the aims to expand the scale
of operation and enlarge market presence of Shinning
Time. The acquisition of = = 4 f& # was completed in
January 2017.

No acquisition-related cost has been incurred from this
acquisition.

The fair value of trade and other receivables amounted
to approximately of RMB7,593,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,040,000). In the opinion of the management, no
receivables is expected to be uncollectable.

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer,
EXRPAHEREENGH T EHE K E
AR X A" ¥ IE "), to perform valuations at the
date of acquisition for the purpose of accounting for the
acquisition of F R fE$# according to HKFRS 3 (Revised).
The fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed has been determined based on the
valuation approach as determined by # 47 1E 3.

Since acquisition, 7 R #LfE## has contributed revenue of
HK$867,592,000 and net profit of HK$44,300,000 to the
Group.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. IWEEKMIEB AR (&)
(@) Business combinations (continued) (a) EK&6t®)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-—FT-—tF+=-HA=+—H
(Continued) IEFE(E)
The following summarises the consideration paid, the AT A BRI AR E R
assets acquired and liabilities assumed and non- B BUBEERFAESEIURE
controlling interest recognised at the date of the RV 2 -

respective acquisitions:

Total
R RESE Blend & Pack Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT THET
Consideration RE
Cash consideration BeRE 5,982 478,617 484,599

Recognised amounts of FUBTHAIEER
identifiable assets acquired frREEEMN

and liabilities assumed BRSE
Property, plant and WE - BB REE
equipment 843 15,525 16,368
Intangible assets (Note 17) BREE(Wit17) - 227,739 227,739
Deferred tax assets ERFEHEE = 1,142 1,142
Inventories 75 10,682 13,932 24,614
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b WA 9,040 42,480 51,520
Tax recoverable EEE:SE] 949 - 949
Bank balances and cash RITHEHB LIRS 2,467 3,271 5,738
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIE (19,760) (37,754) (57,514)
Finance leases liabilities mEHESR = (1,341) (1,341)
Tax payables eI R IR - (11,368) (11,368)
Deferred tax liabilities ERFAEHAR - (68,322) (68,322)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEERT 4,221 185,304 189,525
Non-controlling interests FEE RS = (46,326) (46,326)
Provisional goodwill/goodwill HREEWBEER
arising on acquisitions EE(WF18 KM @)
(Note 18 and Note (a)) 1,761 339,639 341,400
5,982 478,617 484,599
Net cash flow on acquisition WEKEATRS
of subsidiaries EFEE
Cash acquired from subsidiaries  {tMiBATEEZRE 2,467 3,271 5,738
Cash consideration ReERE (5,982) (478,617) (484,599)
Net outflow of cash and RekREEHE
cash equivalents mFR (3,515) (475,346) (478,861)
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(@) Business combinations (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Continued)
Note:

(@  As at the date of this report, the Group has not finalised
the consideration for the acquisition of Blend & Pack due
to the disputes with the seller on: (i) the amount of
estimated net debt and (ii) the treatment of excluding
shareholder loan in the calculation of the consideration.
The relevant consideration and goodwill stated above is
on a provisional basis and may be subject to significant
changes in future period when the disputes have been
settled.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Acquisition of Mason Financial Group

In November 2015, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third-party to acquire 100%
equity interests of Mason Securities, Mason Futures and
Mason Bullion (collectively referred to as “Mason
Financial Group”) at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$415,069,000.

The principal activities of Mason Financial Group are set
out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
The acquisition of Mason Financial Group was completed
in February 2016.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$8,409,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in profit or loss
under other operating expenses.

In respect of the acquisition of Mason Financial Group,
the fair value of trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$428,945,000. The gross contractual
amount of the receivables is HK$430,361,000,
HK$1,416,000 of which is expected to be uncollectible.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) Business combinations (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Continued)

Acquisition of Mason Financial Group
(Continued)

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer,
Roma Appraisals Limited (“Roma”), to perform valuations
at the date of acquisition for the purposes of accounting
for the acquisition of Mason Financial Group according to
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combination. The fair value
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
has been determined based on the valuation approach
as determined by Roma. The fair value of the customer
relationship of HK$83,075,000 is determined by income-
based approach using the discount rate of 20.96% per
annum. The fair value of the trading licenses and rights of
HK$14,067,000 is determined by direct comparison. The
fair value of computer software and system
approximates its carrying amount of HK$1,935,000.

Since acquisition, Mason Financial Group has contributed
revenue of HK$61,023,000 and a loss of HK$136,922,000
to the Group. If the acquisition of Mason Financial Group
effected during the year had been taken place at the
beginning of the year, the revenue and loss of the Group
would have been HK$72,480,000 and HK$791,856,000
respectively.

35. WEBHEBLQR (@)

(a)

¥¥attem
BE-—E-AFE+=-H=+—-A
ILEFE(E)
KEERESHMESE)

AEBMZEE L SEMEMESBHR
AR AR([ES DRKEBEST
B8 - IRBE BB REELE
IMUEER) EBEHBBERES
BEMMARR - DB AT BIE ERFT
EEBBEATFEDNENRESETM
BEFRNETEE - ®FPBEEATE
83,075,000 7T Jh iR IR a5 A IR
PrIRE2096%E T - B 5 R KK
EHE N F1{E 14,067,000/ T BB E
BEUHRET - EHEGRERATE
H2H AR TAI{E 1,935,000 8 THEE ©

BUER  XREBREECRASE
B Bt U 261,023,000 T & & 18
136,922,000 7T © it 70 F RHEITH
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(@) Business combinations (continued)

236

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Continued)

Acquisition of Jubilant Link Group

In September 2016, Jubilant Link entered into two sale
and purchase agreements with certain third parties to
acquire 100% equity interests of RHL, 100% equity
interests of Victory and 60% equity interests of Leader
(collectively referred to as “Jubilant Link Group”). The
purchase consideration comprised of (i) cash
consideration of HK$282,776,000 and (ii) allotment of
8,996 issued shares of Jubilant Link at HK$25,696 per
share which represented 44.98% of total issued share
capital of Jubilant Link. The Group has 55.02% of effective
shareholdings in Jubilant Link Group upon the completion
of the acquisition in November 2016.

The principal activities of Jubilant Link Group are set out
in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,322,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in profit or l0ss
under “other operating expenses”.

In respect of the acquisition of Jubilant Link Group, the
fair value of trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$4,272,000. The gross contractual
amount of the receivables is HK$4,418,000, HK$146,000
of which is expected to be uncollectible.

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer,
Avista, to perform valuations at the date of acquisition for
the purpose of accounting for the acquisition of Jubilant
Link Group according to HKFRS 3 (Revised). The fair value
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
has been determined based on the valuation approach
as determined by Avista. The fair value of the brand
name called "Reproductive HealthCare” of
HK$201,900,000 is determined by income-based
approach using the discount rate of 13.40% per annum.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) Business combinations (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Continued)

Acquisition of Jubilant Link Group (Continued)
The Group has selected to measure the non-controlling
interests at their proportionate interests in the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Jubilant Link Group.

Since acquisition, Jubilant Link Group has contributed
revenue of HK$23,651,000 and a profit of HK$5,487,000
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016. If the
acquisition of Jubilant Link Group effected during the year
had been taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue and loss of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 would have been HK$179,867,000 and
HK$762,792,000 respectively.

Acquisition of Shining Time Group

In December 2016, Pioneer Leap entered into an
investment agreement with two third parties to acquire
55% equity interests of Shining Time and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Shining Time Group”) at an
aggregate consideration of RMB409,200,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$458,304,000) as a loan to the
vendors. The burden of the loan was simultaneously
novated to Shining Time and settled by the allotment and
issuance of 5,500 ordinary shares of Shining Time (the
“Consideration Shares”) to Pioneer Leap, representing
55% of equity interests of Shining Time upon completion
of the acquisition, at the issue price of RMB74,400
(equivalent to approximately HK$83,328) per share.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(@) Business combinations (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Continued)

Acquisition of Shining Time Group (Continued)

If the results attributable to the equity holders of Shining
Time Group for the years ended/ending 31 December
2016, 2017 and 2018 have been/would have been less or
more than RMB62,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$69,440,000), RMB85,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$95,200,000) and RMB120,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$134,400,000) by 5%
("Target Results”) respectively, the number of the
Consideration Shares is required to be adjusted. In any
event, if the transfer of the Consideration Shares to/from
the vendors leads to the shareholding percentage of
Pioneer Leap in Shining Time falls below 50%, Pioneer
Leap has the option to pay cash in lieu of the
Consideration Shares. Given that Shining Time Group did
not achieve the lower limit of Target Result for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the number of Consideration
Shares is not adjusted. In the opinion of the
management, the probability of achieving the upper limit
of Target Results by Shining Time Group for the years
ending 31 December 2017 and 2018 is remote.

At the end of the reporting period, the consideration of
RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$67,008,000) has been paid and the balance of
consideration of RMB349,200,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$391,296,000) has been recognised in
“trade and other payables” in the consolidated financial
statements and Pioneer Leap has received 5,500 ordinary
shares of Shining Time.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) Business combinations (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Continued)

Acquisition of Shining Time Group (Continued)
Pursuant to the investment agreement, Pioneer Leap
also granted a loan of RMB140,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$157,696,000) to one of the vendors,
which has a maturity period of 36 months and carries
interest at a rate of 8% per annum. At the end of the
reporting period, none of the loan facility has been
drawdown by the vendor. Upon completion of the
acquisition, the vendor becomes a connected entity of
the Group, details of which are set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The principal activities of Shining Time Group are
franchising of mother-infant-children products through a
regional network of corporate and franchise retail stores
in the PRC. The acquisition of Shining Time Group was
completed in December 2016.

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer,
Avista, to perform valuations at the date of acquisition for
the purpose of accounting for the acquisition of Shining
Time Group according to HKFRS 3 (Revised). The fair
value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed has been determined based on the valuation
approach as determined by Avista. The fair value of
brand name called "Z£.5" of HK$438,911,000 and
franchisee relationship of HK$10,967,000 are determined
by income-based approach using the discount rates of
16% and 14.50% per annum respectively. The fair value
of computer software and system approximates its
carrying amount of HK$30,661,000.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(@) Business combinations (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Continued)

Acquisition of Shining Time Group (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$2,481,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in profit or l0ss
under “other operating expenses”.

In respect of the acquisition of Shining Time Group, the
fair value of trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$273,170,000. The gross contractual
amount of the receivables is HK$273,170,000, none of
which is expected to be uncollectible.

The Group has selected to measure the non-controlling
interests at their proportionate interests in identifiable
assets and liabilities of Shining Time Group.

Since acquisition, Shining Time Group has no contribution
to the revenue and results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016. If the acquisition of Shining
Time Group effected during the year had been taken
place at the beginning of the year, the revenue and loss
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
would have been HK$192,678,000 and HK$775,726,000
respectively.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. WEEHEB AR (&)
(@) Business combinations (continued) (@) EXKS6t@)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—_F-A"NF+=-HA=+—H
(Continued) IEFE ()
The following summarises the consideration paid, the AT A B R IS R R E TR
assets acquired and liabilities assumed and non- B BUREEERMAESGEURE
controlling interest recognised at the date of the MERIEE AR R =5

respective acquisitions:

Mason
Financial Jubilant Shining
Group Link Group  Time Group Total

RReMEE  MEKE  REEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET  FEL FET FET

Consideration KE
Cash consideration RERE 415,069 282,776 458,304 1,156,149

Recognised amounts of BB R EE R

identifiable assets FREEEN

acquired and BRSHE

liabilities assumed
Property, plant and equipment #1% - = & & 4,259 3,228 28,510 35,997
Intangible assets BVEE 99,077 201,900 480,684 781,661
Deferred tax assets ERERBEE = 165 = 165
Other non-current deposits paid B E IR BN RS 7,023 - 318 7,341
Inventories FE - 2,167 217,454 219,621
Trade and other receivables 8 5 I 4 & W3k 18 428,945 4,272 273,170 706,387
Tax recoverable AU ORI - 329 - 329
Pledged bank deposits BHEIRRITER = = 22,359 22,359
Bank balances and RITHEHRBAS

cash — general accounts ——REKP 221,597 17,020 4,379 242,996
Bank balances and RITEBREA S

cash — Trust and — B RBAER

segregate accounts 639,673 - - 639,673
Trade and other payables B o5 hEMENTIE (690,376) (9,626) (560,046) (1,260,048)
Interest-bearing borrowings st E & (375,000) - - (375,000
Tax payables FEHIIE - (1,674) (3,834) (5,508)
Deferred tax liabilities ERETIEAR (14,202) (33,314) (112,469) (159,985)
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. WEMBAR#)
(@) Business combinations (continued) (@) ¥(BE6t#E)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—F-A"NF+=-HA=+—H
(Continued) IEFE(E)

\ER
Financial Jubilant Shining
Group Link Group  Time Group Total

EREREE MERE RREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET THAT TAT

Total identifiable net assets AHRFEERRE 320,996 184,467 350,525 855,988
Non-controlling interests EiRii gy - (84,987) (157,736) (242,723)

Goodwill arising on WHEESE 2
acquisitions (Note 18) B (M7 18) 94,073 183,296 265,515 542,884
415,069 282,776 458,304 1,156,149

Net cash flow on acquisition W Bt E A =]

of subsidiaries BeRETE
Cash acquired from subsidiaries B}t B AR REZE & 221,597 17,020 4,379 242,996
Cash consideration HAeRE (415,069) (282,776) (458,304)  (1,156,149)
Add: Deposits for acquisition /0 : BIE EE UL

of subsidiaries paid in MEBRRZEMNERE

previous year 219,556 - - 219,556
Add: Consideration payable 10 : EFRR(E

(Note 28(d) (K13 28(c) - - 391,296 391,296

Net inflow/(outflow) of cash ~ BRE RIESZE

and cash equivalents RA (i) 8 26,084 (265,756) (62,629) (302,301)
Goodwill arising from the above acquisitions is iR E A 2 R R AR TR B E
attributable to the expected revenue growth, future BN RARMHFREAREEE M
market development and assembled workforce that FEBBAZKELE ) - BHER
cannot be separately recognised due to their nature. B TEHAN RS FTS R AE L FOR o

None of goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Acquisition of assets

In October 2016, the Group entered into a subscription
and capitalisation agreement with two third parties and a
sale and purchase agreement with one of these two third
parties, who is the original shareholder of HKMS (“HKMS
Founder"), to acquire 47% equity interests of HKMS at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$35,250,000. The
principal activity of HKMS is investment holding. The
acquisition of HKMS was completed in October 2016.
Pursuant to the subscription and capitalisation
agreement, the voting power of 4% equity interests in
HKMS held by the HKMS Founder is given to the Group
and the HKMS Founder for this purpose entering into any
documents including proxy forms as required by the
Group from time to time. In the opinion of the
management, the Group has 51% voting power of HKMS
and has obtained control over HKMS upon completion of
the acquisition.

In August 2015, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with two third parties to acquire the
entire equity interests of Thomas Global at an aggregate
cash consideration of HK$7,085,000. The principal activity
of Thomas Global is provision of brokerage services. The
acquisition of Thomas Global was completed in February
2016.

In June 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with two third parties to acquire the entire
equity interests of Enerchine at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$10,000,000. The principal activity of
Enerchine is provision of securities advisory and asset
management services. The acquisition of Enerchine was
completed in June 2016.

The above acquisitions have been accounted for as
acquisitions of assets and liabilities during the year as
they are not business combination.

35. WEBHEBLQR (@)

(b)

WEEE

RZFB—RF+H FEEERESH
=AY REREAMBE - REZ
EMBE=T 22— (BRRBZRA
BR(EBRBEBATLEER
ek - AW B BIZIE 47% K i
# IR K{E /35,250,000 7T « B
BB/ EBXBER/REZR - WBEE
BRBR_ZT—REFtTATK - RIE
RBREAN R BERBEIBA
P BB IRIB A% A B IR RRETRIR
FTAELE - BEBRIBAIG AR
AT SRR EAR E AT XA (B
KREERR) - BEEERR &%
BHEABRBRIBSI%OERERE - AR
TR B & B BB IR IB A 1R AHE -

RZE—RFNA  AEEEMEE
=ZHANEE R UKEARRK
K2 E0RRE - 43R SR {E R 7,085,000
BT o ARRKNEEER BRRMHK
LIRS - W ARIRIKN ZT—RF
Z AT e

RZT—RFNA AEEEMEE
=HRINEE R AREBRENE
BB 4E - 4837 {8 /810,000,000
TC e BREM T R X RIRMHEFEN
REEEERY - WERER_-F
—RERATK e

MR RELEET A LRKER
FAXLRARINERBEERARE -
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35.
(b) Acquisition of assets (continued)
The following summarises the consideration paid and the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisitions:

W A B B 2 B (42)

(b) WBEE W
ATHEE N B R HIENRE - B
WEBEERPIEERE -

Thomas
Global HKMS Total
BRRE Hst
HK$'000 HK$'000

THT TR

Enerchine

BERR BE

HK$'000
Fis T

HK$'000
TAT

244

Consideration RE
Cash consideration HERE 7,085 10,000 35,250 52,335
Recognised amounts of B TRIIEER

identifiable assets FREaEN

acquired and BREE

liabilities assumed
Property, plant and E Y

equipment 1 - S 1
Intangible assets BYEE 3,110 4,597 - 7,107
Available-for-sale financial At HEMEEE

assets = = 74,926 74,926
Other non-current BENEMIERB RS

deposits paid 200 - - 200
Accounts and other FEUSBR S R E A R UK

receivables B 232 750 550 1,532
Bank balances and RITHEH LR

cash — general accounts — —RERF 3,837 4,999 56 8,892
Accounts payables JENBRFX (147) - - (147)
Other payables H b EfEIA (148) (174) (540) (862)
Tax payables FERIFIE - (172) - (172)
Total identifiable net assets Ak pIiH & FE A58 7,085 10,000 74,992 92,077
Non-controlling interests IR fE 2 - - (39,742) (39,742)

7,085 10,000 35,250 52,335
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Acquisition of assets (continued)

35. WIBMEB QT (&)
(b) WBEE @

Thomas
Global Enerchine HKMS Total

RERR
HK$'000
FBT

B BRRB #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TR

Net cash flow on WEHRBARRS

acquisition of RERE

subsidiaries
Cash acquired from BBRRMEAE

subsidiaries 3,837 4,999 56 8,892
Cash consideration HeERE (7,085) (10,000) (35,250) (52,335)
Add: Deposits for acquisition i : @A FEWENE

of subsidiaries paid in NS PARE &

previous year 1,000 3,000 = 4,000
Net outflow of cash and RekRe%sE

cash equivalents T FEE (2,248) (2,001) (35,194) (39,443)

In respect of acquisitions of above subsidiaries, the fair
value of account and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$1,532,000. The gross contractual
amount of the receivables is HK$2,132,000, HK$600,000
of which is expected to be uncollectible.

Since acquisition, the above subsidiaries have
contributed revenue of HK$144,000 and a loss of
HK$1,586,000 to the Group. If the acquisition of the above
subsidiaries effected during the year had been taken
place at the beginning of the year, the revenue and loss
for the Group would have been HK$66,657,000 and
HK$791,230,000 respectively.

s CMBARME - BERER
REEMERREZAFTER
1,532,000 7L - BB EHNEER
2,132,000 7T - E 1 600,000 7% 7T 78
NI

BUlEER - CHMBARAAEEE
Rk U %5 144,000 7 7T, % JE5 8 1,586,000
BT o MR FENEE LB ARE
REVTER - ANEE 2 W REED
Al 66,657,000 7T & 791,230,000
BT e
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEMEBLQF

Disposal of Mind Stone & Co-Lead Group

In January 2016, Co-Lead, a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
issued 41 ordinary shares to a third-party investor at a cash
consideration of HK$15,908,000. Upon completion of the share
subscription, the Group’s equity interests in Co-Lead were
reduced from 53.07% to 52.69%, resulting in an increase in
non-controlling interests of HK$14,913,000 and an increase in
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$995,000.

In March 2016, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with a third-party, to dispose of i) its 100% equity
interests in Mind Stone Investments Limited, which in turn held
9.54% equity interests in Co-Lead; ii) 43.15% equity interests in
Co-Lead (collectively referred to as the “Mind Stone & Co-Lead
Group”), representing a total of 52.69% equity interests in Co-
Lead, at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$1,200,000,000.
The principal activities of the Mind Stone & Co-Lead Group are
trading of investments, provision of financing services and
investment holding. The disposal transaction was completed in
July 2016.

Disposal of Willie Link

In March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third-party to dispose of 45 ordinary shares
of Willie Link (representing 45% of issued share capital) at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$200,000,000. Upon
completion of the disposal, the Group’s equity interests in
Willie Link were reduced from 100% to 55%, resulting in an
increase in non-controlling interests of HK$207,333,000 and a
decrease in equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$7,333,000.

In November 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third-party to dispose of the remaining 55
ordinary shares of Willie Link (representing 55% of issued share
capital) at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$200,000,000.
The disposal was completed in December 2016.
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€& Mind Stone ¥ Co-Lead £ &
RZE—RFE—R  #F2EMBR7ACo
leadBl — B E = H B EEEHTIRER
B 384 KB A15,908,000%8 7T © B 17 7R
BB %E AEBMNColeadz IR A
53.07% 8V & 52.69% + EEIEIE JR i ek 1
AM14,913,0007%8 70 - AR BTG AR
1RSI HN 995,000 7T °

RZZE—RF=ZR AKEE-FE=FH
IR E R E B ED)E RMind
Stone Investments Limited (#54 Co-Lead &9
9.54% F% #E ) #J100% A% 4 : ii) Co-Lead &Y
43.15% A% #( &% T8 % [Mind Stone & Co-
lead% & 1)+ 48 & R & HCo-LeadH)
52.69% % ¥ + 4237 & X {& /& 1,200,000,000
7T ° Mind Stone & Co-lead EEREE %
BREBRE « RHBERERIZETR -
LERXHFRZE—NFLAZK -

i €& Willie Link

RZB—ARF=A AEEHERFE=FHF]
B & 2 LA H & Willie Link 45 A% & 38 3% (48
ERCBETRAMISS)  BESREL
200,000,000/ 7T » L ETTHE - AEER
Willie Link =z A% # 1 100% 5 4> &= 55% + 5
JE47 B 4 25 38 911 207,333,000 75 KA 7
Pz P AFEI R 2 7,333,000 7T ©

RZZE—A"E+—A AEEBRFE=7HF]
37 B B 15 A & Willie Link 55 A% 3 3 A%
(HEHERBEBITIRAAS%) RIS RE
£200,0000008 L HER T —RF
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Disposal of Willie Link (continued)
The following summarises the consideration received and the

36. HEMBAR &)
H £ Willie Link (%)
AT ERHZEWRBUAREE R

carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the date of BEZEKREE :
disposal:
Mind Stone &
Co-Lead Other
Group Willie Link  subsidiaries Total
Mind Stone & Hit
Co-Lead £ Willie Link WEAR -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL AL BT THL
Net assets disposed of REEZREE - 475,066 - 475,066
Interests in an associate —REENRZER
Available-for-sale financial assets ML ENBEE 15,009 = = 15,009
Financial assets at fair value through BATEH  \BR BEE
profit or oss 1,574,469 - - 1,574,469
Loans receivables ERER 252,371 - - 252,371
Other receivables Eit YR - - 2 2
Bank balances and cash RITEBERS 1515 - 88 1,603
Other payables E bR FUE (35,746) - 67) (35,813)
Convertible bonds MaRRES (131,000) = - (131,000)
Interest-bearing borrowings STRER (150,000) - - (150,000)
Tax payables JERTE (263) - - (263)
1,526,355 475,066 23 2,001,444
Non-controlling interests at date of disposal ~ AHE B &2 3H2RiES (722,170) (213,780) - (935,950)
Derecognition of available-for-sale financial ~ EEMBA TE & FRERA
assets revaluation reserve upon disposal HERBEE
of subsidiaries (9,587) - - (9,587)
Derecognition of foreign currency translation £ E B A RES & FRERIME
reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries [i8=1 = (2.788) = (2789)
Derecognition of capital reserve HEMRBARRRIERER
upon disposal of subsidiaries BAREE - (10,075) - (10,075)
Gain/(oss) on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZIE/ (BB) 405,402 (48.423) 27 357,006
1,200,000 200,000 50 1,400,050
Consideration received EhRE
Cash consideration HeRE 1,200,000 200,000 50 1,400,050
Net cash flow on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARAZREERERE
Cash consideration HERE 1,200,000 200,000 50 1,400,050
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of wHEVHLRESER (1,515) - (88) (1,603
Net inflow/(outflow) of cash and BERBSEERA/ (i) 38
cash equivalents 1,198,485 200,000 (38) 1,398,447
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 37. Bi#EsE

On 22 May 2012, with approval by the shareholders, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for a
period of ten years to replace the share option scheme
approved on 20 November 2002 that would otherwise expire
on 20 November 2012. Under the Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries and any other persons including consultants,
advisors, agents, customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The purpose of the Scheme is to
provide participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interest in the Company and to encourage the participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and the shareholders as
awhole.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
other share option scheme of the Company is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue from time to time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders, which was 1,843,733,288 shares. The
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme to any individual in
any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their respective associates
in excess of 0.1% of the Company's shares in issue and having
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be subject
to prior approval by the Company'’s shareholders.

Under the Scheme, an amount of HK$1 is payable on the grant
of an option. Options may be exercised no later than ten years
from the date of grant of the share option. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of the closing price of the Company'’s
shares on the date of grant and the average closing price of
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant.

No share options under the Scheme were granted/exercised
for both years nor outstanding as at 31 December 2017 and
2016.
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Year ended 31 December 2017

S
38.

39.

I+ F+ZA=+—HIFE

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has provided for its eligible employees a defined
contribution retirement scheme under Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund managed by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and each of the
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation, which are subject to a
cap of HK$1,500.

During the year, the amount of employer’s contributions made
by the Group to the defined contribution retirement scheme
was approximately HK$2,190,000 (2016. HK$1,514,000).

NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

BRERTARE
RekBReFH

Cash available on demand
Cash and cash equivalents

38.

39.

BIRETE
AEEBLAGHRESRESRBHMEA
Be B ((BESHE ) NRTHEERK
HElo BESHBMEERAEBEEH
B FHABSHEABYEEMES -
BRRESHE ARERSEASAR
BHES BB NIESEERA Y 5%
FISKEH IR - HEIA 150078 TEAE LR -

RAFER - NEE MR T HIENRTE
Ffr E 1R = 4 3R ELEE 49 52,190,000 7% 7T ( —
FE—VE 1 1,514,00087T)

() RERBEFEEE:

2017
—E—t&

2016
—E—REF
HK$'000
FH&TT

HK$°000
TR

1,759,412 651,419
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39. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT  39.

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

250

financing activities:

Interest
bearing
borrowings

TR
(Note 29)
(Hf£29)
HK$'000
T

RERERMWE @)

(b) RMEEFBELENAEGEZHIER:

Amount
due to an
associate

Ef—%

il NGE |
(Note 21)
(Fizt21)
HK$'000

T

Finance
lease
liabilities

MEHEaR
(Note 32)
(£ 32)
HK$'000
THAL

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+%5—A—H 320,000 - - 320,000
Changes from cash flows: Rengd:
New bank loans raised MEEHRTER 174,661 = = 174,661
New other loans raised ESEMER 312,869 - - 312,864
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (53,834) = = (53,834)
Repayment of other loans BEEMER (133,680) - - (133,680)
Loan from an associate REBEDRZER - 20,000 - 20,000
Repayment of unsecured fixed — EEREERATE

coupon notes B (300,000) = = (300,000)
Interest paid BERHE (31,481) (222) = (31,703)
Repayment of obligation under ~ (EBRARE

finance leases af - - (147) (147)
Total changes from financing REREREE

cash flows: 8% (31,465) 19,778 (147) (11,834)
Other changes: Hig 1t
Interest expenses FEBH 31,481 222 = 31,703
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEERB LA - - 1,341 1,341
Total other changes Hib & a@st 31,481 222 1,341 33,044
At 31 December RZE—+F

2017 +-B=+—-H 320,016 20,000 1,194 341,210
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40. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED 40. BEXFRBABHI RS

PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
connected and related parties during the year:

Continuing connected transactions

Loan granted to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

The Group granted a loan of RMB140,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$157,696,000) to one of the vendors of
Shining Time on 31 December 2016, which has a maturity
period of 36 months from drawdown date and carries interest
at a rate of 8% per annum. The loan was fully drawn by the
vendor in February 2017 and the details of the loan principal
and interest receivable as at 31 December 2017 are set out in
Note 25(c). Upon the completion of the acquisition, the vendor
becomes a connected entity of the Group. The loan granted to
the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary constitutes a
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules and
the relevant disclosures are made in the directors’ report in the
Company’s 2017 and 2016 annual report.

Related party transactions

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Company'’s directors during the year
is as follows:

BRRERa MR EME D MIKESN - K
SERANFEANRBENEBROETZIR
S

HEBERS
BFHBAA2ZFRRREZ AR
%8

MR- RNE+_A=+-—BHA=REE
75 BT B 3 A R % 140,800,000 7t (8 & 7
#9157,696,0008 L) * B AR A BRI A
HIRERET36MA A - IEMEZEFE - B
RZE—+tF-_AHBEHZHRER 82
—E—tFE+ A=+ —HANERAE R
JE W 1) B, S 1 B R BT 7E 25(0) - R SRk UL
% BRRANESENHBEERE -ETH
BARIEERRE 2 B LR AIE
TZRHERERS  MABEBREEIRAR
AT —tERIE-RNFFRNESER
HHREL -

BAME S X5
TEEBASZHE
REEAR  KARREFZMESWT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —EAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT FETT

Directors’ fees EE-Yokn 1,801 1,757

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - Z8F R EWHZR 45,470 8,658
Contributions to defined contribution TFEBEEFURRET IR

retirement schemes 66 29

47,337 10,444

The remuneration of the Company’s directors is reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Further details of the emoluments of the Company’s directors
are included in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

AREEEZMEMFHEESL2E@/MA
=R HBE LR o

ARREEWEME—SHFBHANGEAY
TERERMFE1 -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BBEREERERBEE
AND POLICIES

The Group's financial instruments include financial assets at AEBEZEMIABERATEFARER
fair value through profit or loss, loans receivables, trade and ZHBEE  BRER BHREMEK
other receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, pledged FIE-AHEEMKEE  SHEPRTE
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, interest-bearing o RITERRRS  FTEERURES
borrowings, trade and other payables. The accounting policies REMEMNZKE - @SBRTENSHTBED
for financial instruments have been applied to the line items FEARLATIEBS o

below.

Financial Available-

assets at fair for-sale
Loans and value through financial
receivables  profit or loss assets Total
BNk BAYMEFA &
EUhHE BEvHBEE HBEE @t
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THER THET TR THT
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tE+=A=1-H
Financial assets BHEE
Available-for-sale financial assets R EERKEE - - 689,115 689,115
Financial assets at fair value through N RPN EES
profit or loss LIHBEE - 364,272 - 364,272
Loans receivables e E 1,490,968 - - 1,490,968
Trade and other receivables 2o R EMENFIE 1,040,708 - - 1,040,708
Pledged bank deposits BEARAER 58,364 - - 58,364
Bank balances and cash RTERRRS 1,759,412 = = 1,759,412
Total @c 4,349,452 364,272 689,115 5,402,839
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BERREEEERBER &)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Financial

liabilities

at fair value

through Amortised

profit or loss cost Total

BOFEA
BRzEBaE B R @t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
THT THET THT

Financial liabilities BHEE

Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENTIE - 555,962 555,962
Interest-bearing borrowings SHEER - 320,016 320,016
Amount due to an associate ER—FBE R AFHE - 20,000 20,000
Finance lease liabilities BEREERE - 1,194 1,194
Long-term liabilities RHBE = 278 278
Contingent consideration payable BT ARE 129,899 - 129,899
Total st 129,899 897,450 1,027,349
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BERREEEERBER &)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets Available-

at fair value for-sale

Loansand  through profit financial
receivables or loss assets Total

ERR  BRATFERA AftiheE
RUHE B MBEE FBEE a5t
HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000
TEL TET THET j

At 31 December 2016 R-ZZ-AE+ZA=+-H
Financial assets BHEE
Available-for-sale financial assets HNENEEE - - 665,461 665,461
Financial assets at fair value through BATFEFABREZ
profit or loss NHEE - 499,093 - 499,093
Loans receivables ERER 910,510 = = 910,510
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E YR 742,156 - - 742,156
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 22,359 - - 22,359
Bank balances and cash BITEHRIAS 651,419 = = 651,419
Total by 2,326,444 499,093 665,461 3,490,998
Amortised
cost
HK$'000
TAL
Financial liabilities B%aE
Trade and other payables ECPENTANE 1,006,361
Interest-bearing borrowings HEER 320,000
Total @t 1,326,361
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BEEBEREEERBEKR#)

AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, equity price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not have any
written risk management policies and guidelines except for
monitoring the credit risk on loans receivables and trade and
accounts receivables. However, the management generally
adopts conservative strategies on its risk management and
limits the Group's exposure to these risks to a minimum. The
management reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's loans receivables and
interest-bearing borrowings. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
100 basis points (2016. 100 basis points) higher or lower while
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s net loss for
the year would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$9,916,000 (2016: net loss for the year would decrease or
increase by approximately HK$6,300,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for all financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points (2076: 100 basis points) increase
or decrease represents management’'s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the end of the next annual reporting period. The analysis
was performed on the same basis for 2016.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk
because the exposure at the end of each reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

AEESBRTAMES 2 T BZEAR/FIE
Rk SNERRE - RABRRER - FERE
RRkiBHESRR BKRERERETIAR
85 MEVERFEREERRI - AKH
BRI X 2 E R B IR M5 - A
i EEE R ERREERRRTR
B - 30 AR S B AT R 2 BB IR S TE K
K EEERE RFAEERE LR ER

b MRBALER - SR Em T -
FERB

REERMNESEHMAEZMISERBES
EAEERKWERKR BERER - A%
B EE AT SR T A hMRER -

RERBLEER - WFE L F35 T 100
EES(ZF—NF : 100EE %) T HAb
FTEBERHTE AEEZFEFER
15080 D 8 1 01 499,916,0008 7T ( = F — %
& FEFEETE R L 218 p1496,300,000
L) e

ERgREIN 2 EETIBRRFREHN
ERMEEARL  AEERBHEAN
ZBFEZFIESRITAmE 2 FIE@ER
FE NSO A 100 8 B (= & — 74 100
EER)EEREFENEREET —FE
ERPAEERNE AR RENES - —
B REZDTTIRABREAEETT -

AEEERERS HRNERPEERAZ
RN RERANFE 2 R - ERED
HARKRE AR -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BEEBEREBERBEK®)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, PRC and Australia
with majority of business transactions being denominated in
HKS, US$, RMB and AUS.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the respective group entities and therefore, exposed to
foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of those financial
assets and liabilities are analysed as follows:

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s net profit before taxation (2076: net loss before
taxation) and equity in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has

SN LB
AEBEBERNES - RERRMEL AR
DEBRS  RERHHNEL £
ARH RRTTEE -

AEBEETHHEERMBREDINES
EERBNEEE N ERFHE - BfME
BRIMNERRR - ZEMBEER BB ZERE
BT :

BREDN

TRIGHNERPEE R EEREAR 2 E
KRB A EEBE - AEEBRBANE
WA (ZF—NF  BHADFER) s

significant exposure at the end of the reporting period.

2017
“E-t%
Increase/ Effect on Increase / Effecton
(decrease)  profit before (decrease) loss before
in foreign  taxation and inforeign  taxation and
exchange  accumulated exchange  accumulated
rates profits rates losses
ExEh/ HRHMENR BN,/ HRHAS
(RY) ZhiRzz2 ) RAER
% HK$' 000
TR
RVB AR 5 37,622 5 NATER
(5) (37,622) () 31,526
AUS A 5 268 N/ATER N/ANER
(5) (268)  NATER  NATER
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continuead)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to each of the
Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at the date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’'s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the end of the next reporting period. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. Results of the analysis
as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the group entities’ profit after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at
the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency
risk because the exposure at the end of each reporting period
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading
of listed equity securities and financial assets classified as
investments held for trading. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted market prices
of the equity securities had been 10% (2016: 10%) higher or
lower while all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit before taxation would increase or decrease by
approximately HK$36,427,000 (2016é: loss before taxation would
decrease or increase by approximately HK$49,909,000) as a
result of changes in fair value of investments.

41.

MBEREREBERBEE)

ShEEELBR ()

BRESH(E)

WWF DM DRRELR SR ERPEE
EREL YOREARASESER

W%marﬁmiﬂiﬁﬁﬁgm W ],

B FTEEMEE (LHEENE)RITIE -

MEHREBEHEXNBRET —EF
F#”HE%WWMAET%QEMﬁ%°
RUME  EMRETEERTEMEE
B fo] 58 Bh T & 39 78 T B S TT A B 0
EEXERTE - LRFAESTERERE
JIBMMA LS EIEERFENANEE
ERRBRENIESRERPEEAR
ﬁE@E@%%EM%Q%ﬁ%% n=
T REZAM AR EEE

AEEEEERR ARE
BB I A R BR A 2 BB
HARREBINE R -

RAKEERZ
 BRE D

IR A (E 45 L b

AREE 2 BAERRARTIKE D EARHE
BEREZEMBAESRMBEE - &
REDTIHERFAE 2 RABRERE

o

s

REBRBEER - WREABHF 2 MISRE
EAKTREI0%(=F—5F - 10%) &
AR ERETE  RNEBE KRB
FERKRE 2 A FEZBmE NS DK
36,427,000 T (= F—NF - RHAIEE

L A B A9 49,909,0008 7T ) »
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
reasonably possible changes in the stock prices had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also
assumed that the fair values of the investments of the Group
would change in accordance with the market price and that all
other variables remain constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
the relevant market price over the period until the end of the
next annual reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2016.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent equity price risk
because the exposure at the end of each reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to loans
receivables, trade and other receivables and bank balances
and cash. The carrying amounts of these balances substantially
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the
end of the reporting period.

Credit quality analysis for provision of financing
services

The Group regards a loan receivable as impaired if there is
objective evidence that a loss event has occurred since initial
recognition and the loss event has an impact on future
estimated cash flows from the asset.

A loan receivable that has been renegotiated due to a
deterioration in the borrower’s credit/financial condition is
usually considered to be impaired unless there is evidence that
the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BEEBEREEERBEKR#)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit quality analysis for provision of financing
services (Continued)

Management has money lending policies in place and the
exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.
The Group provides financing services only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that all
these borrowers are subject to credit verification procedures.

Loans receivable that are past due but not impaired are those
for which principal payments are past due but the Group
believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the
level of security or collateral available and/or the stage of
collection owed to the Group, if any.

Credit quality for business other than provision of
financing services

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures.

The Group performs credit evaluations on accounts receivables
from all clients, including cash clients, margin clients. Accounts
receivables from cash client are due within the settlement date
commonly adopted by the relevant market convention, which
is usually a few days from trade date. Because of the short
settlement period involved, credit risk arising from accounts
receivables due from cash clients is considered as low. The
Group normally obtains liquid securities as collaterals from
margin clients of its financial brokerage business.

The Group normally enters into transactions with brokers and
clearing houses which are registered with regulatory bodies
and with sound reputation in the industry.

The Group has limited credit risk with its money deposited in
financial institutions and brokers, which are leading and
reputable and are assessed as having low credit risk. The
Group has not suffered any significant losses arising from the
non-performance by these parties in the past and management
does not expect this position to change in the future.

EERR#)
RUERERBNEEERIN &)

ERECEREERR X THEREER
RBRREE AEBEEAERATEEERY
ZEZTREBERS - AEEZBERR
- AEZEBRRALABBERZER
o

ERBERAEL BRERAELER
8 EAREERRARRLEARR L
AR BRI B CE ) BB E R E I T

S -

RUERMERBLUIINNEBEEER

AEBEEREARREEAREZIE=T7E
IX5 - RBAKBEZBER - FTERRE
EHETRSNEF  MALBBEER
BRERF e

AEBEREUMBERR (BEREEP R
REP)WESETEENE - BRRER
BRI ERMISE EERA &
BRI —RRXFBARBRA - @R
E R EEME  HEWRE R PRNE
EZEERBEM - NEE—REAER
BREEBHNEFPMBRBESELER

]
AR °

AEE-—REDMEERBIMENER
FERUBEZRILENRGEMETRS

REBAGEFIBFHNESL - A% REF
MEERREZSRMBBREAFLL &
PEREZEERBRAR - AEEBELE
HZEALTETAEOMRIEMEKRE
K MEEERBRKZRRTSEE
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BEEBEREBERBEK®)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit quality for business other than provision of
financing services (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each client, customer and
borrower. The default risk of the industry in which clients,
customers and borrowers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as 72%
(2016: 100%) and 47% (2016 40%) of the total loans receivables
and trade and accounts receivables respectively, which were
due from the Group's five (2016: five) largest borrowers and
five (2016: five) largest customers.

The Group does not provide any other guarantee which would
expose the Group to material credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the
consolidated financial statements, which is net of impairment
losses, represented the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk without taken into account the value of any collateral
obtained.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility principally through bank and
other borrowings. The Group closely monitors its exposure to
liquidity risk by reviewing the cash position report on a daily
basis and analysing the efficiency of fund management.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had margin
facilities of HK$300,000 (2076: HK$10,000,000) from certain
financial institutions and brokers to maintain funding flexibility
and meet liquidity needs and none (2016: Nil) of the facilities
were utilised at the end of the reporting period.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continuea)

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period, based on
contractual undiscounted payments. The Group's financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
remaining contractual maturities, are summarised below:

On demand
or less than
3 months

BEXH
HR3MEA
HKS' 000
TAL

At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE

3-12
months

3Z128A
HKS' 000
ThR

41.

MEEREERERBK#®

EERE#)
FEERERPEERREORTRNR
SEZTEMBRE - ARERERY
HEARSKRTAENIBAAEZHMBKAR
Z BRI

Total
contractual Total
1-5 Over undiscounted carrying
years 5 years cash flow value
EHANE
1Z5% S5ENE  RERAH ARAEE
HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$'000
THT AL BT THL

TZA=t-8H
Trade and other payables  Z 5 REMEN B 555,178 784 - - 555,962 555,962
Interest-bearing borrowings  #t B & 31,684 275,186 23,000 - 329,870 320,016
Amount due to an associate  JEfT—FREES A AIZIE 20,125 - - - 20,125 20,000
606,987 275,970 23,000 - 905,957 895,978
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RE
+-A=t-8
Trade and other payables 2o REMERTIE 1,005,842 519 = = 1,006,361 1,006,361
Interest-bearing borrowings &t S&3k - 302,833 24,000 - 326,833 320,000
1,005,842 303,352 24,000 - 1,333,194 1,326,361
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The following presents the assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in
these financial statements on a recurring basis at 31 December
2017 across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value
measurement categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The
levels of inputs are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly;

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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HE-F—tF+-A=ft-BLFE

42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy

42. AVEFTE#®)

(@) D2FESER

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZA=t-H

Assets EE

Financial assets at fair value through BROTENBS MBEE
profit or loss

— investments held for trading —BEBERE (Wit24)

Level 1
R

HK$' 000
TAT

RAVEAECEERAESR

Level 2 Level 3 Total
F28 #38 @t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$" 000
AL AL AL

(Note 24) 364,272 - - 364,272
Liabilities 8
Financial liabiltties at far value through AT EFABZz HHAE
profit or loss
— contingent consideration payable —ERSARE W2 30)
(Note 30) - - 129,899 129,899
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=+-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through BRTEI BB HMBEE
profit or 10ss
— investments held for trading —BEEERE (W)
(Note 24) 499,093 - - 499,093
There were neither transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 MESHERN  F1RMRE2HAF

fair value measurements nor transfers into and out of
Level 3 fair value measurement during both reporting
periods.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
represented contingent consideration payable in relation
to the acquisition of Shining Time as disclosed in Not
34(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the management
of the Company was of the opinion that Shining Time can
achieve the profit target by reference to the forecasted
net profit attributable to the owner of Shining Time for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and for the year
ending 31 December 2018.

BEFfECEYEEE  TEBANE
HEIRAFEE -

BATEFABGEZMBABERK
BrEMENNIARE(HREE
BTSRRI RE 34(0))

HEZZ— t$+:ﬂi+—5¢¢
B ARREEERE K2ER
%EA@if%*t¢+fﬂ:+*
HEFERBEZE-Z-NFE+=A
=+ HIFENEIFER - =
BEERENEAZ
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
(@) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

264

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of contingent consideration payables is
determined by management of the Company with
reference to the valuation performed by Avista, an
independent profession valuer, by reference to the
forecasted net profit attributable to the owner of Shining
Time for the year ended 31 December 2017 and year
ending 31 December 2018.

The fair value of contingent consideration payable is a
Level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A
reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value
balances are provided as below:

Opening balance (Level 3 recurring

42. AVEFTE#®)

(a)

HIAERR (B3R H 1T

DNESERE)
BAVEFEZEERERE(E)

RENIAREZ A HETIAARBE
BERKSEF Y BEEEMILEMA
ETHEEARBE_Z—tF+=
A=t—BULFERHBE_FT-NF
TZA=+—HLEFERREARNG
FRFRNTEE °

ENIAREBHORFEREIRLEE
HRFERE - MY RARAFERS
BREVERRINT ¢

2017
—E-tF

HK$'000
THET

HK$'000
TAT

fair value) NEE) - _
Remeasurement during the year FREF= 129,899 -
At the end of the REHZMLER

reporting period 129,899 -

The forecasted net profit attributable for the owners of
Shining Time for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
for the year ending 31 December 2018 is involved in
significant unobservable input as following:

Forecasted net profit for the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_ZT—tF+ - A=+—HILFEZRUFREF

Forecasted net profit for the year ended 31 December 2018

BE T\ F+-A=+—HILFEZEAFHEFN

A higher in forecasted net profit would result in an
increase in the fair value of contingent consideration
payable while the lower of the estimated net profit would
result in a decrease in the fair value of consideration
payable.
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(@) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)
All other variables are assuming held constant. An
increase in the forecasted net profit of the year ended 31
December 2017 and year ending 31 December 2018
would result in an increase in the fair value of contingent
consideration payable by HK$74,196,000.

A decrease in the forecasted net profit of the year ended
31 December 2017 and year ending 31 December 2018
would result in a decrease in the fair value of contingent
consideration payable by HK$74,196,000.

(b) Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value
Except for certain available-for-sale financial assets for
which fair value cannot be measured reliably, the
carrying amount of the Group's loans receivables, trade
and other receivables, trade and other payables that are
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair value as at the end of reporting
period.

43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for shareholders. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including payment
of dividends to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debts, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to shareholders (comprising
issued share capital and reserves). No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group, which are engaged in the
brokerage of securities and commodities and related services,
are entities regulated by the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and subject to the respective minimum capital requirements.

42. AVEFTE#®)

43.

(@ 2DFEERE)
BAVEFEZEERERE(HE)

REFTAEEMESRIFTE - HE—
T—+F+-A=+—HILFEIE
E_E-N\F+-_A=+—RHILEE
ZIERIF R FNIE D0 A BB E s R
BAFEE 74,196,000 T ©

HE-Z—tF+-_A=+—ALF
ERBE-ZE-N\FEF+-A=+—H
LEFE 2 FEANF & AR A i S S
FARBE R FERD74,196,0008 7T ©

(b) FEATVENEZABEER
BEZAVE
RETHHLGEMBEEZ A FESE
ERI SR EZIN  AERBIRA A S
%}ﬂZZMHEEZJEHﬁZfé??x B HREM
FEWIR - B 5 REMENFIR K

ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ\ziﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁz NSRRI
BERER -

ErER

AEBEAERE ARARERAEE 2
BREENERBERREROR - AEEE
BRAEREEARE  BREARFES
A AR SRR B AR AR S B 7T #T AR ok L B B EE DA
BMAOER - AEENEARBREGERF
B Re KRS FEARRREGRE (2
REBETERARER) BE-FT—tFR
TE-RETZA=+—HILFE " 5
BiE BRREFHEZS -

AEBETHBAR(EEFREAREL
MIBRRS) RREFRBEGIEEZE
B YRETHESEERRE -
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43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 43. EXREE (&)
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its KERZEWNBRABIZ RREARE K% -
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure to be AEEEGEEHEM N EBHLEARGEE
maintained, taking into consideration the future capital NBERRARBFREBEARRE - RERNIFE
requirements of these subsidiaries. The minimum capital ZEWB AR Z HIEELRBE -
requirements for these subsidiaries were complied with during
the year.
44. COMMITMENTS 44. *EifE
Capital expenditure commitments B ARE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following RERMLEER  AEEEEUTEARRH
capital expenditure commitments: SEHE -
2017 2016
—E—+t5F T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Contracted but not provided for, EEIBMEREE - MRENES
net of deposit paid
— Acquisition of property, — WEYE - BENEE
plant and equipment 395 792
— Acquisition of intangible assets —WEEREE
— computer software and systems — BB R RS 3,628 2,268
— Subscription of interests in — B Agate Fund 2 #E 35
Agate Fund (Note 22(c)) (BtzE22(c)) 115,918 145,103
— Subscription of interest in — RBEHMCB Fund LP Z # 35
HMCB Fund LP 23,486 =
143,427 148,163
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44. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Commitments under operating lease
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of office equipment and premises, which are
payable as follows:

44. HHE(#)
REANEE
REBMEREBEA
RERPHEER  AEERBRABIER
BRBFZ A BERR LML 2 B REK
RIEHESEHEAT

2017 2016
—E2—tF —ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Within one year —F R 32,685 45,023
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFAT (BEEEMT) 75,823 70,603
108,508 115,626
The Group as lessor AEBEEBEEAA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of sub-lease of premises are as follows:

RERPLEER  AEERTAIRELE
HERTHNEEIAYENRKKEHEE
FEW IR R T

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Within one year —&R 1,228 1,220
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERT (BEEEMTE) 2,227 1,832
3,455 3,052
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45. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 45. KEMKEERMKAE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following tables present details of financial instruments TRIEAEE  AIATZRFREER
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements P BB EN SR T AFE -

and similar agreements.

Financial assets subject to offsetting
IEHAEEE

Gross
amountof  Netamount Related amounts
recognised of financial not offset in the
financial assets consolidated statement of
liabilities  presented financial position
Gross  offset in the in the BERGEHHRRE
amount of consolidated consolidated HEvEESE
recognised  statement  statement Cash Securities
financial  of financial  of financial collateral collateral Net
assets position position received received amount
RESHE  RGRHE
HAREH  RRREI
ERARE ZBRR ZBRER EHRE ElES
EEAE [HEE4E HEEEFH bl il it
HKS'000 HK$" 000 HKS'000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$" 000
T T T AL THIL BT

At 31December 2017  R=B—-+#
+ZA=t+-H
Type of financial assets HBEERR
Accounts receivable due  FREPEWER

from margin clients 548,204 (27,486) 520,718 - (415,903) 104,815
Accounts receivable due  BEAELEREWER
from HKSCC 166,234 (46,562) 119,672 - - 119,672

At 31 December 2014 RZE—1F
T-A=1-8
Type of financial assets HBEERE
Accounts receivable due  HREFEUR

from margin client 577,288 (8,033) 569,255 S (566,164) 3,091
Accounts receivable due  BREEREWER
from HKSCC 24,39 (24.152) 239 - - 239
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45. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

45. EENKEERBKERB (@)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting

MEENHEE
Gross
amount  Net, amount Related amounts
of recognised  of financial not offset in the
financial liabilities consolidated statement of
assets  presented financial position
Gross  offset in the in the BERGEHERRR
amountof consolidated consolidated B¥zABLE
recognised statementof  statement Cash Securities
financial financial  of financial collateral collateral Net
liabilities position position received received amount
RiEeiE  RREHE
HARESH  RRRZ25
ERARE ZBRER ZBRER 2kHe EHES
EEAT HHEEAE HEEERE EH ikt et
HK$'000 HK$" 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000
T T T THL T T
At 31December 2017  R=B—-+#
T-B=1+-H
Type of financial liabilities ~ B174 & EEH
Accounts payable due FREFPEMAER
to margin clients 56,247 (27,486) 28,761 - - 28,761
Accounts payable due BBLEERNER
10 HKSCC 46,562 (46,562) - = = =
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R~E+ZA
=+-A
Type of financial liabilities ~ BIEEELER
Accounts payable due FREFPEMAER
to margin client 16,495 (8,033) 8,462 - - 8,462
Accounts payable due BEREENER
10 HKSCC 29332 (24152) 5180 = = 5180
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46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

47.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has executed
guarantees in favour of banks, financial institutions and third
party individuals, in respect of facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries, amounted to HK$108,863,000 (2016: Nil). Of these
facilities, a total of HK$84,937,000 (2076: Nil) has been utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has issued a
financial guarantee in respect of a loan granted to a third party
individual with principal amount of RMB51,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$57,270,000) (2016: Nil) to a third party with a loan
guarantee fee income of HK$1,266,000 (2076 Nil) recognised in
profit or loss.

At the end of the reporting period, the management does not
consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the
Group under this guarantee. The maximum liability of the
Group at the end of the reporting period under this guarantee
of RMB52,653,000 (equivalent to HK$58,850,000) (2076: Nil),
representing the outstanding amount of the loan and interest
payable to the third party as at the end of the reporting period.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
The Group had the following events after the end of the
reporting period:

a)  Acquisition of Raiffeisen Privatebank Liechtenstein AG

On 18 October 2017, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with a third party, pursuant to
which the Group has agreed to acquire 100% issued
share capital of a private bank at consideration of
CHF58,600,000. The private bank is a Liechtenstein share
corporation, having its registered office at Liechtenstein.
At the date of authorisation of this consolidated financial
statements, the acquisition has not been completed.
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RAREE

REFRMEE R - NABIBNAET &
BELRE=7FTAARIZEARRTETW
B R a2 8 & 108,863,000/8 T ( =ZF— N
F:E)BITER EZEREY  EDA
$£84,937,0008 7T (ZFE—/NF : M) °

REFRBEER  AEECHBETE=FA
AT AREEE A AR 51,000,000 7T (FHE R
57,270,000 7T) (ZFE—F : &) 2ER
ME=FIRENBER BEXERERA
#51,266,0008 T (= F—NF - ) RE
R e

RERPHEER  BERERRSTAARER
BUHERAASERIAR - R2HRME
BH XEBEREBEZERNESREBEAR
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F—NF ) ERERPEERENS
=HERZREERERAE -
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REBRRERARBEEUTER
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RZE—+F+A+N\B - AEEH
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47. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

b)

Acquisition of Harris Fraser Group Limited (“"HFG") and
subsidiaries (collectively the “HFG Group”)

On 7 September 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party (the “vVendor”),
pursuant to which the Group has agreed to acquire (a)
the entire issued share capital in HFG and Harris Fraser
(Hong Kong) Limited; and (b) all of the issued capital, held
by the Vendor in Halena Co. Ltd, subject to and upon the
terms and conditions of the sale and purchase
agreement, at an aggregate consideration of
HK$116,500,000.

The HFG Group is principally engaged in the provision of
wealth management services, including asset
management, corporate and trust services, investment
savings plans, tax planning, life and general insurance,
mandatory provident fund advisory and overseas
property investments advisory.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, completion
is conditional upon the fulfilment of the conditions on or
before the condition deadline. As additional time is
required for the fulfilment of certain conditions, the
Vendor and the Group entered into a deed of extension
on 7 March 2018. Upon the execution of the deed, the
extended deadline shall expire on 7 June 2018. At the
date of authorisation of this consolidated financial
statements, the conditions have not been fulfilled and
the acquisition has not been completed.

47. REWPEREE @)

b)

U B&Harris Fraser Group Limited([HFG)
KB AT (e [EmeE])

RZT—+FNAtLH FEEEF
ZHTEFDITCEE RS Bt
AEBEDREREEERENIER R
R S 7 AR BR T B () HFG R &
WEVARARNZIPEEITIRA
X (0) E 75 Fir#%5 Halena Co. LidFy 2 &
B EITIRA - 48X 8 116,500,000 &
0

EMEEIECERUVEEER
% BREEEER  CEREFER
% REREE  WBELH - AS
KBRRE - aES RSN
EREEN -

RIBEEWHZ  TREFERENR
RENR S 2 BRI R T AIEE -
HRBEEZREERS TR - &
FEAEBR-_T—N\F=Z LA
SFERARRIE - MEL G REE - KT
RS EBRR—_F - \FALAH
A - RAGZAMBHMRIERT
{1 1R AR PR R IR B IR R R TERK
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48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS

(@)

(b)

272

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of the directors of the Company that were entered
into or subsisted during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
After consideration, the management is of the opinion
that no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49. QBB IR R
COMPANY
2017 2016
—E —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 5,102,344 2,482,057
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEHENKEE 579,600 579,600
5,681,944 3,061,657
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H fib jE W IR 12,940 1,567
Bank balances and cash RITHEBLRRS 256,725 270,267
269,665 271,834
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables E b pE A~ 50R (8,768) (279,584)
(8,768) (279,584)
Net current assets/(liabilities) BRBEE (&) 260,897 (7,750)
Total assets less current liabilities @EERGHARS 5,942,841 3,053,907
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings sTERER (20,000) (20,000)
NET ASSETS FEE 5,922,841 3,033,907
Capital and reserves BEARR#E
Share capital %N 6,142,961 3,277,443
Reserves (Note) s (HaE) (220,120) (243,536)
TOTAL EQUITY MR 5,922,841 3,033,907

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 22 March 2018 and signed on its behalf by

HEEgR - \F=ZA-+=-A#HtE
MRETE AR TIRREE

Ko Po Ming Lui Cho Yiu, Angela
=SEH E A

Director Director

BF BF
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49. AR B]HBEAMRRET (&)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Movements of reserves of the Company BiEE : AN RIS

Accumulated
profits/
(losses) Total

RKebaF,
(E18) #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TAT

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 181,221 181,221
Loss and total comprehensive FAFEBEREEKRALRE
income for the year (424,757) (424,757)
At 31 December 2016 and NZZE—RE
at 1 January 2017 +—A=+—HK
—2—+F—H—H (243,536) (243,536)
Profit and total FREFMRZE
comprehensive income WA 4%
for the year 23,416 23,416
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—+F
+=HB=+—H (220,120) (220,120)
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBEMREE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AT AXREERNBERETREE £ EREE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited REEHE  HHEALEZEAMBRRLLE
consolidated financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is EE#H D% o

set out below.

RESULTS £

Year ended 31 December
HZ+-A=1t—HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

—2—tF TR “T-RfF —F-mF =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAT TAET TET TAET

Revenue Wz
Continuing operations FRBICEET 2,900,438 66,501 166,517 567,458 44,924
Discontinued operations IR ERE T - - 193 430 422
2,900,438 66,501 166,710 567,888 45,346
Profit/(Loss) before taxation — FRE{ AT FI,/ (E512) 87,401 (792,836) 241,651 744,146 82,436
Income tax (expense)/credit  FrEFR (F), K% (60,931) 2,340 (263) (16) (43)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FR%F,/ (&) 26,470 (790,496) 241,388 744,130 82,393
Non-controlling interests IRt 2 (79,630) 318,474 115,760 - -
(Loss)/Profit for the year AR FEFEFEEA
attributable to equity PEfL (&518) 7
holders of the Company (53,160) (472,022) 357,148 744,130 82,393
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MBENEE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

At 31 December
Rt=R=t+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

—E—+HE —ZT—RE = —T-NFE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT T T FAT

Total assets BEE 7,793,748 5,042,277 4,408,866 2,599,181 1,818,336
Total liabilities marmE (1,300,905) (1,489,199) (353,642) (33,579) (7,022)
6,492,843 3,553,078 4,055,224 2,565,602 1,811,314
Equity holders' funds BREREAES 6,070,763 3,256,441 3,026,464 2,565,602 1,811,314
Non-controlling interests IR 422,080 296,637 1,028,760 - -
6,492,843 3,553,078 4,055,224 2,565,602 1,811,314
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